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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
GOVERNOR'S OFFICE
HARRISBURG

December 13, 1991

MICHAEL H. HERSHOCK
SECRETARY
QFFICE OF THE BUDGET

To the Governor, the Honorable Members of the General Assembly and the Citizens of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania:

This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania represents this
Administration’s continued commitment to sound fiscal management and to responsible financial reporting based on
nationally recognized standards. This CAFR, which includes the Commonwealth’s independently audited general purpose
financial statements as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991, will provide you and the financial community
with all the information required to fully assess the Commonwealth’s financial position, results of operations and the
management of its financial resources.

Financial results for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991 were shaped by the national economic recession that began
during the summer of 1990. The economic slowdown brought job losses, reduced consumer spending and lower corporate
profits which in turn generated General Fund tax revenues of $10,989.2 million through June 30, 1991 on a budgetary
basts, $59.0 miltion, or .5 percent, below collections from the prior fiscal year. Sales and use tax receipts declined
from the prior year for the first time in almost 20 years. Collections of sales and use tax for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1991, decreased .9 percent to $4,200.3 million. Personal income tax collections were also affected by the
recession, but not to the extent of other major tax revenues. Personal income tax collections totaled $3,375.6 million,
an increase of 2.0 percent over prior year.

A number of actions were taken during the fiscal year to help offset lower than anticipated revenue. Some of these
actions resulted in substantial non-tax revenue receipts that will not recur in subsequent fiscal years. The largest of
these non-tax revenues was a $214 million transfer of excess funds from the Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority
(PIDA). These funds became available for transfer to the General Fund following the issuance of PIDA bonds to capitalize
its loan portfolio. Other nonrecurring revenues during the fiscal year included $133.8 million transferred from the Fax
Stabilization Reserve Fund, $125.0 million transferred from the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund (SWIF) and $53.2
million transfered from reserves held by the SWIF for future state employe workmen's compensation claim payments.
Those future claims are to be paid from current revenues as they come due.

One of the Commonwealth’s major initiatives during 1991 was to begin the most extensive prison construction
program in its history — an undertaking that will add over 10,000 new beds between 1990 and 1994, During 1990-91
the Cambridge Springs institution was acquired, 635 new cells were added to existing institutions, an improved facility
for training employes was opened, and guidelines were developed for providing $200 million in grants to counties for
Tocal prison improvements. Plans were also made for the construction of six new 1,000-cell correctional institutions,
a 650-bed facility for drug and alcohol treatment, the opening of a motivational boot camp in 1991-92, and the installation
of over 1,800 beds through modular construction by January 1992, '



Our long-term commitment to the economic future of the Commonwealth was continued by providing
$10 million to the Industrial Communities Program to restore blighted industrial sites to productive use and
by transferring $5.6 million from the General Fund to the Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization Fund (PERF).

Within PERF-funded programs, we provided $14 million for the Business Infrastructure Development
Program which makes grants and loans to local sponsors for specific infrastructure improvements that comple-
ment private industrial development. We also continued an important effort initiated in prior years by pro-
viding $5 million for the Industrial Resource Centers Program which recruits and creates research facilitics
for jobs and for direct investment by private companies who will benefit from association with such a facility.

We also appropriated $39.5 million from the Sunny Day Fund to help private industries expand and attract
new businesses to Pennsylvania. We appropriated $37 million from the General Fund and PERF for the Hous-
ing and Redevelopment Program which provides grants to improve blighted neighborhoods through redevelop-
ment and to improve low and moderate-income housing through rehabilitation. We contimued a major change
initiated in the 1987-88 fiscal year in the way State government assists the job creation process by establishing
partnerships among businesses, working men and women, government officials, and educators to help create
more jobs.

Education continues to be the cornerstone of Pennsylvania’s future. We have continued our commitment
to the future by providing total funding of $2.7 billion to our public schools through the Equalized Subsidy
for Basic Education. The total funding for basic education was $4.5 billion, including funding for special educa-
tion, pupil transportation, teacher retirement and social security, and special programs to address the needs
of economically and educationally at-risk students. In addition, we provided over $1.2 billion for higher educa-
tional institutions and students.

During the 1990-91 fiscal year, several major pieces of legislation were enacted to create and expand several
programs:

— Act 1990-71 authorized lease purchase agreements for State prisons and authorized a $200
million bond issue for county prisons which was approved by the electorate in the November
1990 general election. :

— Act 1990-80, the Medicare Fee Control Act, prohibits health care practitioners from charg-
ing Medicare recipients more than Medicare pays.

— Act 1990-100 authorized an additional $25 million bond issue for low interest loans to volunteer
fire companies, ambulance services and rescue squads for the purchase of equipment and
increased the maximum loan limits. The bond issue was approved by electorate in the
November 1990 general election.

— Act 1990-113, the Tax Increment Financing Act, provides an additional financing mechanism
for local economic development.

— Act 1990-134 authorized the use of electronic funds transfers for payment of taxes.

— Act 1990-165 established a Hazardous Materials Planning and Response Program to create
a system to respond to health and environmental hazards caused by hazardous materials and
to create an emergency notification system.

— Act 1990-179 increased per capita reimbursement for local health departments.

— Act 1990-193 established a County Intermediate Punishment Program to develop optional
programs for punishment at the county level including noncustodial supervision and partial
confinement programs.

— Act 1990-198 made major changes in the Business Corporation Law to update and streamline

practices in the Commonwealth.
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— Act 1990-204 enacted the Family Caregivers Support Program to provide assistance to those
persons who provide home care for certain individuals.

— Act 1990-212 established an Early Intervention Program to provide a statewide system of
developmental services to eligible young children.

— Act 1990-215 established a Motivational Boot Camp Program for certain inmates of Correc-
tional Institutions. ‘

— Act 1991-6 established the Pennsylvania Intergovernmental Cooperation Authority to pro-
vide assistance to Philadelphia in overcoming its financial problems.

‘We made significant investments in programs to support the economically needy through general assistance,
aid to families with dependent children, and medical assistance. Total expenditures for these programs by the
Commonwealth and the Federal government amounted to $5.3 billion in the 1990-91 fiscal year. Approximately
40 percent of the total costs for assistance to the economically needy is funded by the General Fund. The balance
is provided by the State Lottery Fund, by reimbursements from the Federal government, and through various
program collection activities conducted by the Commonwealth. Additional funding was obtained through im-
plementation of a Medical Assistance Pooling Program which was initiated in 1990-91 and provided contribu-
tions for that year’s activities totaling $373 million. We focused attention on maintaining the financial integrity
of the State FLottery Fund by continuing a yearly transfer of selected program costs back to the General Fund,
We are continuing to develop a new reimbursement methodology for long-term care facilities providing nurs-
ing home care for medical assistance recipients.

Overall, the general purpose financial statements demonstrate our continued commitment to fiscal integri-

ty. It is our goal to maintain a strong emphasis on economic development, education and productive growth
in the Pennsylvania economy.

Sincerely,
Vrikall B ZhowkleK,

Michael H. Hershock
Secretary
Office of the Budget
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
GOVERNOR'’S OFFICE
HARRISBURG
December 13, 1991

HARVEY C. ECKERT
DEPUTY SECRETARY FOR COMPTROLLER OPERATIONS
OFFICE OF THE BUDGET

Dear Secretary Hershock:

It is my privilege to present this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) on the operations of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991. This report, which includes the
General Purpose Financial Statements (GPFS), was prepared by the Office  of the Budget, Comptroller Operations,
pursuant to the power vested in the Governor under Section 701 of the Administrative Code and delegated to the Secretary
of the Budget by Executive Order No. 1984-3, October 11, 1984. ' '

The financial statements contained in this CAFR were prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) as prescribed in pronouncements by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). They
were jointly.audited by the elected Auditor General of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and KPMG Peat Marwick,
a nationally recognized public accounting firm. Their Independent Auditors’ Report, expressing an unqualified opinion
on the GPFS, is included in this financial report.

1 believe the financial statements are fairly stated in all material respects; that they are présented in a manner designed
to fairly set forth the Commonwealth’s financial position, results of operations, and changes in the fund balances as
measured by the financial activity of its various fund types; and that all disclosures necessary to enable the Governor,
the Members of the General Assembly, the public, and the financial community to gain a full understanding of the
Commonwealth’s operations and financial affairs have been included. Responsibility for the completeness and fairness
of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Office of the Budget.

In addition to the GPFS, which provide an overview of the Commonwealth’s financial position and operating results
by fund type, this CAFR includes: combining financial statements presenting information by fund; supporting schedules;
certain narrative information describing individual funds; and statistical tables presenting financial, economic, social
and demographic data about the Commonwealth. The CAFR was prepared in accordance with standards established
by the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) and will be submitted to
the GFOA to determine its eligibility for a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting,

THE FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

The GPFS of the Commonwealth, in conformance with GASB Codification Section (Cod.Sec.)
2100 includes ali funds, account groups, agencies, boards and commissions, and governmental public
service corporations over which the Commonwealth’s executive and legislative branches exercise
oversight responsibility, Criteria used to determine oversight responsibility include budget adoption
and approval, taxing authority, funding of outstanding debt, authority to appeint an organization’s
governing body, constitutional officers’ ability to significantly influence operations, accountability
for fiscal operations and scope of public service. Inclusion of an organization in the Commonwealth
GPFS in no way alters the defined prerogatives of the organization’s management, its statutory authority,
or its legal characteristics.

Based on Cod.Sec. 2100, the following Commonwealth public service organizations meet the
oversight criteria and are included in the accompanying financial statements.

—Viji—
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Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority (PHEFA): The PHEFA was created for
the purpose of financing, constructing, improving and maintaining any educational facility, and assisting
colleges in financing, on a short-term basis, their working capital requirements. PHEFA revenue bonds
are financed through lease rental payments. Some of the lessees, although private institutions, are
recipients of Commonwealth grants and subsidies.

Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA): The PHEAA was created to
improve the higher educational opportunities of persons who are residents of the Commonwealth and
attending institutions of higher education by enabling the agency, lenders and post-secondary institutions
to make loans and grants to students for educational purposes. Debt service on bonds issued by the
PHEAA is met from loan repayments and interest and other revenues of the agency.

Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA): The PHFA was created to make loans secured
by real property or leasehold, including mortgages, to finance projects designed and planned to be
available for low and moderate income persons and families. Bonds issued by the PHFA are partially
secured by a capital reserve fund required to be maintained at an amount equal to the maximum annual
debt service on its outstanding bonds in any succeeding calendar year. Statute provides that if there
is a deficiency in the capital reserve fund or if funds are necessary to avoid default on interest, principal
or sinking fund payments on PHFA notes or bonds, an amount sufficient to make up such deficiency
shall be placed in the budget of the Commonwealth for the succeeding fiscal year.

Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority (PIDA): The PIDA was created for the purpose
of making secured loans to industrial development agencies for payment of a part of the cost of industrial
development projects in critical economic areas. Principal and interest payments to PIDA and other
revenues are used to pay debt service on revenue bonds issued by the PIDA and to make additional loans,

Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (PENNVEST): The PENNVEST was created
for the purpose of financing long-term, low interest loans for corporations, partnerships, sole
proprietorships, nonprofit organizations, authorities, and municipalities for the construction,
improvement, repair or rehabilitation of drinking water and waste water systems throughout the
Commonwealth. PENNVEST is an instrumentality of the Commonwealth, funded by contributed capital
from other funds, the federal government, general obligation bonds authorized by referendum, and
revenue bonds, Earnings of PENNVEST and repayments of loans are reinvested for additional financing
activities.

Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (PTC): The PTC was created for the purpose of constructing,
maintaining and operating a turnpike system together with connecting roads, tunnels and bridges. Debt
service on turnpike revenue bonds is payable from revenues, primarily tolls and rentals from leases
and concessions, of the turnpike system.

State Employes’ Retirement System (SERS), Public School Employes® Retirement System
(PSERS): The SERS and PSERS were established as independent administrative boards of the
Commonwealth. Each system is directed by a governing board which exercises control and management
of the systems, including the investment of assets. The retirement plans of the SERS and the PSERS
are contributory defined benefit plans covering all state employes, employes of certain state-related
organizations, and all public school employes. Proposed changes in benefit and contribution provisions
require legislative action and must be supported by an actuarially computed estimate of the cost of
such changes.

State Highway and Bridge Authority (SHBA): The SHBA was created to construct, reconstruct,
improve and maintain highway and bridge projects and roadside rests. All rental charges of SHBA
are transferred from the Motor License Fund, a Special Revenue Fund, and are used to meet debt
service requirements. No SHBA debt obligations have been issued since 1968.

State Public School Building Authority (SPSBA): The SPSBA was created for the purpose of
constructing, furnishing and equipping, and maintaining public school buildings, as part of the public
school system of the Commonwealth. Debt service on revenue bonds issued by the SPSBA is met
from lease rental payments made by the local school districts, all of which receive substantial financial
aid from the Commonwealth. '

—iX—




State System of Higher Education (SSHE): In accordance with Cod.Sec. 2100, Commonwealth-
owned universities are reported in a ‘‘discrete presentation’” under a separate fund category in the
Commonwealth’s GPFS. The SSHE, composed of fourteen universities, was created by Act No. 188
of 1982 to function independently of the Department of Education for the purpose of providing
instruction for undergraduate and graduate students. The corporaie powers of the SSHE are exercised

by a Board of Governors through the SSHE Chancellor.

Commonwealth-related universities named below are not included in the GPFS as the degree of
oversight responsibility exercised by the Commonwealth is so insignificant that it has not been deemed
appropriate to reflect them in the reporting entity.

Pennsylvania State University
Temple University
University of Pittsburgh
Lincoln University

It has been determined that the following organization is not a part of the Commonwealth reporting
entity after applying criteria of Cod.Sec. 2100 and is excluded from the GPFS because the
Commonwealth does not control its assets, operations or management.

Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement System (PMRS): The PMRS was established as an
independent board of the Commonwealth for the purpose of administering a retirement plan for officers,
employes, firemen and policemen of the Commonwealth’s political subdivisions and municipal
authorities, and of institutions supported and maintained by the political subdivisions and municipal
government associations. Control and management of the PMRS, including investment of assets, is
exercised by a governing board.

BUDGETARY CONTROLS AND ACCOUNTING SYSTEMS

The annual budget of the Commonwealth is comprised of separate appropriations to individual
agencies for their specific programs, purposes, special outlays and/or operating expenditures. Budgetary
control is exercised at the agency level by appropriation and by allocations to major categories of
expenditure within each appropriation. Major expenditure categories include personnel services,
operational expenses, fixed assets, subsidies and grants, debt service and fixed charges. An encumbrance
system 1s used to effect budgetary control at the appropriation and allocation levels.

Encumbrances represent the estimated amount of expenditures that are expected to be incurred
when purchase orders issued are filled and contracts and other commitments entered into are performed.
They serve to reserve that part of an appropriation until the actual liabilities are incurred and to ensure
that funds committed (encumbered) and expended do not exceed the total amounts appropriated and/or
allocated. Section 621 of the Administrative Code provides that unencumbered appropriated funds
shall automatically lapse at fiscal year end and become available for appropriation in the new fiscal
year. Encumbered appropriations are carried forward into the new fiscal year. They are reported in
the Commonwealth’s governmental funds as reservations of fund balance as distingnished from
unreserved fund balance. Funds reserved for appropriations carried forward may be expended until
October 31 of the new fiscal year at which time any remaining balances must be lapsed, except amounts
for encumbered itemns being litigated or arbitrated or otherwise extended for some other reason with
approval of the Secretary of the Budget. In no event, however, can an encumbrance carried forward
from one fiscal year be extended beyond the end of the next fiscal year except for a litigated item.

Accounting records of most departments under the Governor’s jurisdiction are maintained on a
centralized accounting system. The operations of this system are directed and supervised by the Office
of the Budget, Comptroller Operations. Separate accounting systems are maintained by the Department
of Transportation for the Motor License Fund; the Liquor Control Board for the State Stores Fund;
and the Department of Labor and Industry, Office of Employment Security, for the payment of
unemployment compensation benefits. The Treasury Department, the Department of the Auditor
General, and the Legislature and Judiciary, likewise, operate separate accounting systems.

The accounts of the Commonwealth’s governmental fund types are maintained on a budgetary
basis by fund, agency and appropriation. Revenues are recorded at the time cash 1s received.

—_X—
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Expenditures are recorded at the time payment requisitions and invoices are submitted to the Treasury
Department for payment. At the fiscal year end, both revenues and expenditures are adjusted to reflect
appropriate accruals for financial reporting in conformity with GAAP.

Within the accounting systems, internal controls effectively provide reasonable assurance that
financial transactions are executed in accordance with prior authorizations, that assets are protected
from unauthorized use or disposition, and that the financial records are reliable for the purposes of
preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability. All department records are reconciled
monthly with the Treasury Department’s records of cash disbursements and the Department of
Revenue’s records of cash receipts.

THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (GPFS)

Although the Commonwealth plans and manages its financial affairs on a budgetary basis, it also
prepares GPFS in conformity with GAAP applicable to governments. These financial statements differ
from those prepared on a budgetary basis in that generic funds are combined by fund types and the
financial information is presented on the basis of accounting principles applicable to each fund type.
Accordingly, governmental, expendable trust, and agency funds are reported on the modified accrual
basis of accounting; proprietary and pension trust funds are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.
The College and University Funds are reported on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
the National Association of College and University Business Officers’ College and University Business
Administration and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ Audits of Colleges and
Universities for institutions of higher education.

In measuring financial position and operating results on the modified accrual basis of accounting,
as compared to the budgetary basis, revenues are generally recognized when they become measurable
and available to finance current obligations, as opposed to when cash is received. Expenditures are
generally reported when goods and services are received and a liability incurred, rather than when
cash is disbursed. Due to these differences, the Commonwealth’s GPFS as of a fiscal year end include
amounts which actually will not be received or disbursed until a future date. Such amounts are
necessarily based on management’s best assessment and evaluation of available financial data at the
time the financial statements are prepared. They include revenues due the Commonwealth, net of
credits and refunds, and accounts payable and accrued expenditures for which a liability has been
incurred as of the fiscal year end.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND QUTLOOK

The recession that began in the summer of 1990 had an especially severe effect on the economies
of Pennsylvania and other Northeastern states. Consumer and business spending were particitlarly
affected in Pennsylvania during the 1990-91 fiscal year as evidenced by six consecutive months of
sales tax revenues being less than the previous fiscal year collections. Current economic data indicate
that the recovery from the recession will be slow and unstable,

The forecast for a long and slow economic recovery, combined with the severity with which
Pennsylvania and the Mid-Atlantic region have been affected by the recession, will make the recovery
more difficult for this region than the nation as a whole. Manufacturing, expected to be one of the
driving forces behind the recovery, has declined in importance in Pennsylvania in recent years adding
potential difficulties for Pennsylvania’s recovery.

When the 1991-92 fiscal year budget was adopted in August of 1991, economic growth was
anticipated to resume in late summer and a sluggish recovery was included in the forecast.
Unemployment for the 1991-92 fiscal year was projected to remain around 7 percent. Currently,
economic growth appears to have taken a pause and there is a concern over the possibility of further
declines in real gross national product. The pace of the economy during the recovery period will depend
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heavily on the actions by consumers. Recent consumer confidence surveys, however, have shown
some weakness that could lead to lower consumer buying and reduced economic growth. The direc-
tion the economy will move during the 1991-92 fiscal year remains uncertain but it appears there
is little chance that the economy will recover at a normal post-recession pace.

Revenue collections from most major tax-sources through the end of October, 1991 reflect the
slow economy. Sales tax receipts through the first four months of the fiscal year are one percent below
the official estimate. Personal income tax collections are also slightly below their projected growth
rate. Corporate tax collections, led by the corporate net income tax, are substantially above estimate.
The higher collections are thought to be due to early deposit of retroactive corporation tax payments
anticipated to be received later in the fiscal year.

THE GENERAL FUND

The General Fund, the Commonwealth’s largest fund, is the focal point in any assessment of
Pennsylvania’s financial position. It accounts for all revenues and receipts which are not required
by law to be accounted for or deposited elsewhere and for the major portion of Commonwealth ex-
penditures. Tax receipts, principally personal and corporate income and sales and use taxes, con-
stitute more than 65 percent of the General Fund’s revenues. Major fund expenditures are for general
government, protection of persons and property, public health and welfare, public education, economic
development and debt service on all obligations except those incurred for highway or other special
revenue fund purposes. A comparison of how the Commonwealth has operated within its adopted
General Fund budget, as amended, is presented in the *‘Combined Statement of Revenues, Expen-
ditures and Changes in Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances — Budget and Actual (Budgetary
Basis),”” included in the GPES.

Budgetary Basis: At June 30, 1991 the Commonwealth reported a $453.6 million unreserv-
ed/undesignated fund balance deficit (budgetary basis) in the General Fund, This compares (0 a
budgetary basis fund balance surplus of $136.2 million at June 30, 1990. The change in budgetary
basis fund balance for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991 was the result of revenue collections total-
ing $16,856.4 million less appropriation authorizations totaling $17,735.5 million, plus other financ-
ing sources totaling $289.3 million. Included in the $17,735.5 million appropriation authorizations
are $176.5 million of state supplemental appropriations and $215.8 million in federal supplemental
appropriations authorized during the fiscal year.

The following table shows the General Fund’s actual year end unreserved/undesignated fund balance
and increases or decreases (expressed in millions) on a budgetary basis at the end of the five most
recent fiscal years:

Unreserved/
Undesignated Increase
At June 30 Fund Balance (Decrease)
1987 $ 3478 $ 128.0
1988 94.7 (253.1)
1989 . 385.1 290.4
1990 136.2 (248.9)
1991 (453.6) (589.8)

Modified Accrual Basis: At June 30, 1991 the Commonwealth’s General Fund reported a fund
balance deficit of $981.0 million, an increase of $861.2 million from the $119.8 million fund balance
deficit at-June 30, 1990. Total assets increased by $108.5 million to $1,908.2 million. Liabilities in-
creased by $969.7 million to $2,889.2 million. These changes and others are reflected in the General
Fund summary comparative balance sheet that follows,
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General Fund
Summary Comparative Balance Sheets (GAAP Basis)
(Expressed in Millions)

Increase
June 30, 1991 June 30, 1990 (Decrease)

Assets

Cash and temporary investments .. . ............. ... c0.0ee... $ 3313 $ 5532 $ (2219

Receivables, NEt . ... ...ttt i 636.5 617.9 18.6

Due from other funds/governments ......................... 934.8 622.4 312.4

Other assets . ... e 5.6 6.2 (.6)
Total ASSES . .ot e e $ 19082 $ 1,799.7 $ 108.5
Liabilities

Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities ................ $ 1.6843 $ 1,3325 $ 351.8

Due to other funds/governments . ........................... 1,190.8 573.9 616.9

Deferred revenue ... 14.1 [3.1 1.0
Total Liabilities .................... .. e 2,889.2 1,919.5 969.7
Fund Balance

Reserved ... ... 165.2 173.4 (8.2)

Unreserved:

Undesignated (deficit) . .. ........... . ... ... ... .. ... (£,146.2) (293.2) (853.0)

Total Fund Balance (deficit) - ... .ovvverrorereenaeeenn s, (981.0) (119.8) (861.2)
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance .. ..................... .. ... $ 1,908.2 $ 1,799.7 $ 108.5

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNCTIONS — MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS

The Commonwealth’s governmental fund types include the General Fund, the Special Revenue Funds,
which includes the Motor License Fund, the Debt Service Funds and the Capital Projects Funds. These
funds account for most general operating revenues and expenditures. Their combined fund balances at June
30, 1991 decreased by $1,099 million to a $21 million deficit from $1,078 million at the beginning of the
fiscal year. Unreserved/undesignated fund balances at June 30, 1991 amount to a $1,189 million deficit
as compared to a $206 million unreserved/undesignated fund balance deficit a year ago. Comparative
summaries of general governmental revenues by source and expenditures by function (expressed in millions)
follow. :

General Governmenial Revenues by Source. Revenues of the Commonwealth’s General, Special
Revenue, Debt Service and Capital Projects Funds totailed $20,936 million. This represents a 6.2 percent
increase over the previous fiscal year. Taxes constituted 57.2 percent of general governmental revenues;
intergovernmental revenues, primarily Federal funds, constituted 24.7 percent.

Fiscal Years Ended

Increase

Revenue Source June 30, 1991 June 30, 1990 {Decrease)
RS . e e $ 11,981 $ 12,052 % (70
Licenses and fees . ... ... i e 685 661 24
Intergovernmental . ... ... .. ... o 5,165 4,358 807
Charges for goods and services ........... .00 1,015 504 511
Investment InCOME . ... ... .. ... . e 158 222 (64)
Lottery receipts . ... ..o e 1,521 1,530 )]
Lease rental principal and interest .. ....... ... ... ... ... ... 170 194 (24)
OtheT . e e e 241 195 46
Total Revenues . ... ... e $ 20,936 $ 19,716 $ 1,220

Intergovernmental revenues increased by $807 million due mainly to the increased participation in the Federal
Medicare Program. :

Charges for goods and services increased by $511 million due primarily to the receipt of donations realized
from pooling arrangements with medical assistance providers,
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Taxes decreased by $71 million over the previous fiscal year due mainly to the downturn in the
state and national economies. The following is a summary of tax revenue by type:

{
L

Fiscal Years Ended

‘ Increase f
Taxes by Type June 30, 1991 June 30, 199¢ (Decrease) f
Sales and USE .. ...t i e e $ 4,160 $ 4,230 5 (70)

Personal BCOmEE . . . . ot ettt e e e e e e 3,256 3,234 22 £
COTPOTAION -« -« . e vttt e e e e e et e e e 2,637 2,524 113 ]‘
Liguid FUEIS . ..o\ e 993 1,010 uan Lo
L0, 935 1,054 (119
Total TAXES ..ottt $ 11,981 $ 12,052 $ )] P
General Governmental Expenditures by Function. Expenditures of the Commonwealth’s E
General, Special Revenue, Debt Service and Capital Projects Funds totalled $22,652 million, reflecting _
an increase of $1.8 billion over the previous fiscal year. Of the total amount expended, public health b
and welfare accounted for 40.6 percent, public education for 25.8 percent and transportation for 10.6 P
percent.
-
Fiscal Years Ended i
Increase 1 i
Expenditure Function June 30, 1991 June 30, 1990 (Decrease)
General BOVEITITIENE . v oo oo v e o e i e ot i $ 1,890 % 1,921 $ {31)
Protection of persons and property . .. ....... ... ... i iiiiia 1,292 1,217 75
Public health and welfare ........... .. ... ... ... ... ... 9,200 7,745 1,455
Public education . .. . ... ..o e 5,853 5,598 255
Conservation of natural resources. .................c........ 431 374 57 o
Economic development and assistance . .. ...................... 315 364 (49) [ ;
TrARSPOTIAtiON . . ...\ vu vt et e e e 2,392 2,392 S .
Capital outlay . ... ’ 299 169 130
Debt service: ] .
Principal retirement .............. . e 527 608 (81)
Interest and fiscal charges .. ......... ... . ... Ll 453 456 3
Total Bxpenditures . ... «.oocvnraaeaii et § 22,652 $ 20,84 $ 1,808
Expenditures for public health and welfare increased by $1,455 million or 18.8 percent over the | i
previous fiscal year. Increases in financial support to the economically needy, aid to families with .}
dependent children, and medical assistance comprise the largest portion of the public health and welfare
expenditure increase. £
Por
. . Lo - . i
Expenditures for public education increased by $255 million or 4.6 percent over the previous P
fiscal year. Areas of increase include aid to local school districts for basic instruction, vocational
instruction, debt service, pupil transportation, employe retirement including secial security, and special 1
education programs. L
DEBT ADMINISTRATION
I
The Constitution of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania permits the incurrence of debt, without "
approval of the electorate, for capital projects specifically authorized in a capital budget. Capital project o
debt outstanding cannot exceed one and three quarters (1.75) times the average of the annual tax revenues !
deposited in all funds during the previous five fiscal years. The certified constitutional debt limit at b

August 31, 1991 was $23.7 billion. Outstanding capital project debt at August 31, 1991 amounted ~
to $4.1 billion. [

In addition to constitutionally authorized capital project debt, the Commonwealth may incur debt
for electorate approved programs, such as economic revitalization, land and water development, and
water facilities restoration; and for special purposes approved by the General Assembly, such as disaster
relief.

The total general obligation bond indebtedness outstanding at June 30, 1991 was $4,787.5 million.
Total debt service expenditures paid from General Fund and Motor License Fund appropriations during
the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991 amounted to $691.3 million.

r
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During the fiscal year ending June 30, 1992 the Office of the Budget projects general obligation
bond issuances amounting to $797 million, an increase of $156 million as compared to actual bond
issnances of $641 million during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991. This forecast reflects the need
to make investments in the Commonwealth’s capital infrastructure, particularly prisons, interstate
highway construction under the Federal Advance Construction Interstate Program, highway bridges,
mass transportation and water supply systems. Debt principal retirements of $485 million are forecast
during fiscal 1992. The table that follows shows total cutstanding long-term indebtedness for general
obligation bonds (expressed in millions) at the end of the seven most recent fiscal years.

Qutstanding

At June 30 Bond Indebtedness

" 1985 $4.535
1986 4,529
1987 4,559
1988 4,699
1989 4,705
1990 4,634
1991 4,788

In December 1985, June 1986, and April 1987, the Commonwealth issued general obligation
refunding bonds totalling $224.1 million. The proceeds are being used to retire general obligation
debt incurred in 1980, 1981, 1982 and 1984 at higher interest rates. This will result in estimated savings
of $11.6 million over the life of the refunding bonds, or $9.1 million when discounted to present
value. In November 1988, the Commonwealth issued $127.6 million in general obligation bonds to
advance refund $146.2 million of outstanding General State Authority (GSA) bonds. After this refunding
transaction, the GSA ceased to exist.

In addition to general cbligation bonds, the Commonwealth issues tax anticipation notes to meet
operating cash needs during certain months of the fiscal year. Tax anticipation notes may be issued
only for the General Fund and the Motor License Fund. They may not exceed 20 percent of the funds’
estimated revenues for the year, and must mature during the fiscal year in which they are issued.
Cash shortages occur during the fiscal year because tax receipts, unlike cash disbursements, are
concentrated in the fourth guarter of the fiscal year.

During the fiscal year ending June 30, 1992, total General Fund revenues and budgeted
expenditures, including Federal funds, are expected to increase by 24.2 percent and 10.3 percent,
respectively. As the result of tax changes and expenditure patterns that are likely to affect the cash
receipts flow, the Commonwealth anticipates issnance of $1.45 billion in General Fund tax anticipation
notes during the 1991-92 fiscal year. General Fund tax anticipation note or commercial paper issuances
(expressed in millions) during the five most recent fiscal years are shown below. Motor License Fund
tax anticipation notes were not issued for the periods shown and are not expected to be issued in the
future.

Amount Issued

Fiscal Year For the Account as a Percent of
Issue Ended of the General Fund
June 30 General Fund Tax Revenues
1988 $ 700 : 7%
1989 699 7
1990 955 8
1991 1,400 12
1992 (Estimated) 1,450 10



CASH MANAGEMENT

The Treasury Department is required by the Commonwealth’s Fiscal Code to deposit monies of
the Commonwealth, excluding certain component units, in state depositories approved by the Board
of Finance and Revenue. Monies deposited are not required to be segregated by fund.

In addition, the Treasury Department is empowered to invest monies of the Commonwealth that
have accumulated beyond the crdinary needs of the various Commonwealth Funds. Temporary
investments held by the Treasury Department by type, average maturity in days and percent at June
30, 1991 are depicted below.

Average

Maturity
Investment Type (days) Percent

Commercial Paper (Moody’s Prime One Rating or

Equivalent) ......... ... ... ... . ... ... 7 10.1
United States Treasury and Agency Obligations . .. .. ... 520 51.6
Repurchase Agreements........... . .oiiviii.. 5 21.0
Certificates of Deposit . ........ .. ... ... .. ... 337 6.5
Corporate Bonds and Notes . ....................... 691 10.3
Other ... . e 730 .5

Femporary invesiments held by the Treasury Department amounted to $2.8 billion, of the $5.8
billion reported on the combined balance sheet, as of June 30, 1991. Interest on investments made
by the Treasury Department during the fiscal year amounted to $263 million at an average yield of
7.8 percent.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Commonwealth maintains ongoing training and information programs to reduce risks associated
with employe injury and negligence, contract compliance, tort liabilities and property losses. As more
fully described at Note O to the financial statements, the Commonwealth became self-insured for
employe disability and medical claims on July 1, 1983. The Commonwealth is also self-insured for
tort liabilities, including automobile, employe and transportation-related claims. Reserves have been
established to fund self-insured claims. Third-party coverage is obtained for property losses in excess
of $1 million per occurrence, to a limit of $100 million per occurrence. Coverage for property losses
less than $1 million or more than $100 million is maintained through the Commonwealth’s self-insurance
program.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Proceeds of general obligation bonds are generally accounted for in the capital projects funds.
Completed projects and construction in progress at the fiscal year end are accounted for as assets
and are capitalized in the General Fixed Assets Account Group. Projects completed during the fiscal
year totalled $21 million; construction in progress at June 30, 1991 amounted to $131 million.
Authorized but unissued general obligation bonds at June 30, 1991 totalled $13,082 million.
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ENTERPRISE, FIDUCIARY AND COLLEGE AND UNIVERSITY FUNDS

The Commonwealth’s enterprise funds are used to account for revolving loan programs for
economic development, higher education and housing assistance. Also included are a turnpike system
and the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (PENNVEST) which loans funds to local
governments for improving water and sewer systems. All enterprise funds reported retained earnings
at June 30, 1991, totaling $1,666 million, which represents a decrease of $109 million from the $1,775
million retained earnings reported the previous year.

Fiduciary type funds, including expendable trust funds and pension trust funds, reported total
fund balances of $29,360 million at June 30, 1991, compared to $27,840 million at June 30, 1990,
Total fund balances of the expendable trust funds decreased $293 million over the previous fiscal
year, for total reported fund balances of $1,877 million at June 30, 1991, The two pension trust funds
included in the Commonwealth’s financial reporting entity reported combined fund balances of $27,483
million at June 30, 1991, an increase of $1,813 million over the previous fiscal year. Fund balances
of the pension trust funds are completely reserved for pension benefits.

The total fund equity for the College and University Funds, used to account for the State System
of Higher Education, at June 30, 1991 was $348.7 million, compared to $332.5 million, as restated,
at June 30, 1990.

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

General fixed assets of the Commonwealth are those used in the performance of general
governmental functions. The fixed assets of the proprietary and the fiduciary fund types and the College
and University Funds are not included in the General Fixed Assets Account Group, except for certain
real property used by the SSHE. General fixed assets as of June 30, 1991 amounted to $3,011.6 million
at actual or estimated historical cost. Depreciation is not recognized for the Commonwealth’s general
fixed assets. Infrastructure assets, consisting primarily of highways, roads and bridges, are not recorded
in the General Fixed Assets Account Group. Both of these practices are in conformity with GAAP.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

The audit of the GPFS, evidenced by the Independent Auditors’ Report submitted herewith, was
performed jointly by the Department of the Auditor General and the independent public accounting
firm of KPMG Peat Marwick. It was performed pursuant to the authority vested in the Auditor General
and the Governor under Section 402 of the Fiscal Code of 1929 and in the Governor under Section
701 of the Administrative Code of 1929.

The Fiscal Code provides that the Department of the Auditor General shall make all audits of
transactions after their occurrence, which may be necessary, in connection with the administration
of the financial affairs of the government of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and that it shall be
the duty of the Governor to make such audits of the affairs of the Department of the Auditor General.
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CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in:Financial Reporting to the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report as of and for the fiscal year ended June
30, 1990. This represents the fifth consecutive year the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania has received
this award.

To merit a certificate of achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report which conforms to GFOA standards
and satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. A certificate
of achievement is valid for a period of one year only.

We believe the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991 conforms to the GFOA standards and we are submitting
it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

In conclusion, 1 wish to express my appreciation to the staff of the various Commonwealth agencies
whose time and dedicated effort made this report possible and, at the same time, to reaffirm my
commitment to you to maintain the highest standards of accountability in financial reporting to the
citizens of the Commonwealth.

Sincerely,

NN

Harvey C. Eckert
Deputy Secretary for Comptroller Operations
Office of the Budget '
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e fac tS Sheet

The Bill of Rights are the first Ten Amendments (additions) to the
Constitution of the United States. 1991 marks the bicentennial of the
adoption and ratification or approval of the Bill of Rights.

The Bill of Rights was an outgrowth of the battle for ratification of the
Constitution itself. Because they feared that the federal government
might become too powerful and usurp some of the rights for which they
had fought, several of the more powerful and larger states such as
Virginia, Massachusetts, and New York, insisted that the Bill of Rights
be added to the Constitution, or they would not accept the Constitution
at all.

Many colonies in the new world had already adopted a declaration of
human rights in their state charters or constitutions. These provided a
model for the national Bill of Rights.

James Madison, often called the "Father of our Constitution," along with
some other founding fathers, felt that since the federal government
would be a limited government of only those powers expressly delegated
to it in the Constitution, the limits in the Bill of Rights were unnecessary
and might later be used to justify government interference in any rights
that are not specifically listed.

However, Madison eventually realized that the Constitution might not be
accepted at all without the assurances of the first 10 amendments.
Thomas Jefferson also pointed out that a Bill of Rights could, in fact,
serve as a proper limitation on governmental power.

As a result, the ninth and tenth amendment reaffirmed that the people
kept other unlisted rights against the government and the states kept the
powers not expressly given to the federal government in the
Constitution.

Twelve amendments were originally proposed, but the first two were
never approved. One of these proposed amendments would have set the
number of representatives in the House at a population ratio. It did not
take into consideration the fact that the increase in population could

The Bill of Rights :
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result in a House of over 7,000 members. The second rejected
amendment dealt with compensation for members of Congress and had
nothing to do with "rights." The other ten were finally approved by the
required eleven states on December 15, 1791.

The first amendment guarantees various freedoms of conscience —
freedom of religion, speech, press, assembly, and the right to petition
the government.

The second amendment gives states the right to raise militias and
prohibits the federal government from abridging the "right to bear
arms." '

The third amendment prohibits quartering of troops in private homes
while the fourth, fifth and sixth amendments cover various rights that
arise largely where crimes may have been committed. They include
limitations on governmental searches, arrests, as well as guaranteeing
certain rights to the accused. The seventh amendment preserved the
common law right to a jury trial in civil lawsnits, while the eighth
amendment bars excessive bail or fines, or "eruel and unusual
punishments."

With the adoption of the 14th Amendment in 1868, the court began
making individual provisions of the Bill of Rights binding on the states
also. Today, most, but not all, of the guarantees of the Bill of Rights
are applicable to state and local governments, as well as the federal
government. This process took many years however. Most of the
"incorporation" of the Bill of Rights took place, in fact, in the 1960's
and it wasn't until 1979 that the Supreme Court held that defendants
in state courts were cntitled to a unanimous verdict of at least 6 jurors
(although the Court has refused to require a jury of 12 jurors, as is
required by the Constitution in federal trials). The Bill of Rights
continues to grow and adapt to our ever-changing world.

Acknowledgment:

We thank the
NATIONAL CONSTITUTION CENTER
located in Philadelphia, PA
for providing us with these facts.
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**EXPLANATORY NOTES: On September 25, 1789, the Congress proposed itwelve articles of amendment
to the Constitution of the United States. Except for the first two, they were ratified by the required number of States
by December 15, 1791, and these became the first len amendments. They have since been known as the Bill of Rights.

The original first two articles in brief were: ARTICLE I — Regulating the number of representatives
according to the population of the State. Article I1 — Senators and Representalives cannot increase their salaries
during their present term in office.
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Peat Marwick  ©

Certified Public Accountants

Office of the Auditor Generat

Harrisburg, PA 17120 '  Suite 300 11

P.O. Box 1190

225 Market Street

BARBARA HAFER ) Harrisburg, PA 17108-1120
AUDITOR GENERAL

Independent Auditors’ Report -

The Honorable Robert P. Casey
Governor '
Commeonwealth of Pennsylvania
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

We have jointly audited the general purpose financial statements of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania as of and for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991, as listed in the accompanying table of contents. These general purpose financial
statements are the responsibility of the Commonwealth’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit. We did not jointly audit the financial statements of certain component
units, which represent 58, 49, 62 and 83 percent of total assets and 4, 34, 41 and 46 percent of total revenues, respectively,
of the Special Revenue, Debt Service, Capital Projects and Enterprise Funds, 92 percent of total assets of the Trust
and Agency Funds, all revenues of the Pension Trust Funds, and 21 percent of total liabilities of the General Long-
Term Obligations Account Group, and we did not jointly audit the financial statements of the State System of Higher
Education which represent the amounts shown as the College and University Funds. The financial statements of these
component units and the College and University Funds were audited by other auditors, including KPMG Peat Marwick
acting separately, whose reports thereon have been furnished to us and our opinion expressed herein, insofar as it relates
to the amounts included for those component units and the College and University Funds, is based solely on the reports
of the other auditors. KPMG Peat Marwick has audited separately 58, 49, 62, 23 and 59 percent of total assets and
4,°33,41,20 and 56 percent of total revenues, respectively, of the Special Revenue, Debt Service, Capital Projects,
Enterprise and Pension Trusi Funds and 20 percent of total liabilities of the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted anditing standards. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the general purpose financial statements, An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit and the reports of other aunditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. L

The Department of the Auditor General emphasizes that, as required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
the general purpose financial statements, prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), :
include a Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances ]
- Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis), General and Budgeted Special Revenue Funds. The Commonwealth of R
Pennsylvania’s budgetary basis of accounting is described in Note B. GAAP requires a reconciliation of budgetary
and GAAP basis amounts when a governmental entity adopts a budget on any basis other than GAAP. This reconciliation o
is included in Note M. The Department of the Auditor General also emphasizes that, for financial reporting purposes, {




the Tax Stabilization Reserve Fund is included in the General Fund. The inclusion of the resources of the Tax Stabilization
Reserve Fund reduced the General Fund fund balance deficit from $1,116.6 million to $98(.9 million. A component
of this deficit is an unreserved/undesignated fund balance deficit which, as a result of the above mentioned inclusion,
was reduced from $1,281.9 millior to $1,146.2 million.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the general purpose financial statements referred
to above present fairly, in all material respecis, the financial position of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania at June
30, 1991, and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its Proprietary Funds for the fiscal year then ended,
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note B to the general purpose financial staternents, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania has adopted
Statement No. 9 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board which requires the presentation of a statement of
cash flows and certain other disclosures.

As discussed in Note C to the general purpose financial statements, the fund balance of the College and University
Funds has been restated to record depreciation of fixed assets and certain liabilities that were not previously reported.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole.
The combining financial statements and schedules listed in the accompanying table of contents are presented for purposes
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose financial statements of the Commonwealth
of Pennsylvania. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general
purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, is fairly presented
in all material respects in relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

We did not audit the data included in the introductory and statistical sections of this report and, therefore, express no
opinion thereon.
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THE BIRTHPLACE OF AMERICAN RIGHTS

This year, 1991, we celebrate Freedom of Expression in honer of the
200th Anniversary of the ratification of the Bill of Rights.

The Bill of Rights is the most comprehensive protection of individual L
freedom ever written. It guarantees freedom of religion, speech, the '
press, the right to assembly, and other basic liberties we so often take -
for granted.

The 55 delegates from 12 states who met in Philadelphia over 200 years

ago were not sure of the need for the Bill of Rights in the federal
Constitution because most states had their own. But when the ,
Constitution went to the states for ratification, popular demands for

more individual liberties was so great that the Bill of Rights became part

of the Constitation in 1791,

The Bill of Rights was written when the nation's capitol was in New -
York, but by the time it was ratified the capitol had been moved to
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.

[
[

For the past 200 years, these Great Rights have ensured a degree of
freedom in America unprecedented in the history of civilization. Clearly,
this document remains quite relevant today and is the "heart and soul" of
our liberty.

The Bill of Rights
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**EXPLANATORY NOTES: On September 25, 1789, the Congress proposed iwelve articles of amendment
to the Constitution of the United States. 'Excepl. for the first two, they were ratified by the required number of States
by December 15, 1791, and these became Lhe first ten amendments. They have since been known as the Bill of Rights.

The original first two articles in brief were: ARTICLE I — Regulating the number of representatives
according to the population of the State. Article I1 — Senators and Representalives cannot increase their salaties
during their present term in office.

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND .
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES _ i
All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1991 |

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

Fiduciary
Governmental Fund Types Fund Type
Totals Lot
Special Debt Capital Expendabl Memorandum Los
General Revenue Service Projects Trust Only}
REVENUES:
TAXES .\ttt e $10,950,307 % 1,030,279 3 - 6,012  $11,986,598 N
UREmpIOYINENt TAXES . ..« v evveeeern e e e eeennaen R S C . 1,174,513 1,174,513 P
"Ticenses and feES .. ... 119,180 566,016 R e 58,851 744,047
Intergovernmental . ....... ... 4,354,455 200,848 e 9,765 R 5,165,068
Charges for sales and services ................... ..., e 795,396 179,594 20,038 20,141 . 1,015,169 bl
. IOVESHMENE IMCOIMIE .+ . . v vveeie et eeieae e e e e ainnaes 56,183 57,274 21,870 22,953 164,667 322,947 L
Lotery Fevenues . ... ... oore i e 1,520,943 PPN e e 1,520,943
Lease rental principal and interest ......... ... ... .. ... e 156,697 13,454 I - 170,151 £
L0117 e 125,453 105,140 602 9,849 1,055 242,099 -
TOTAL REVENUES . ... ... i 16,400,974 4,416,791 55,964 62,708 1,405,098 22,341,535 N
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General GOVEFIMIENE . . ...t o ot ii e e 847,616 1,040,553 e 2,219 6,120 1,896,508
Protection of persons and property ................... .. 1,279,755 11,991 P o 79,421 1,371,167
Public health and welfare . ................... ... ..., 8,424,656 775,643 RN Ce e 1,612,130 10,812,429 P
Public education . ............ ... .. i s 5,547,253 1,982 Ce 303,715 47 5,852,997 P
Conservation of natural resources ........vvveeennnn . 288,625 142,381 . e e 431,006 o
Economic development and assistance .................. 177,517 91,665 Ce 46,180 C e 315,362
 TTANSPOTEALOT - .« vv e e e e e oo e 254,425 2,041,810 S 95,550 C 2,391,785 | |
Capital OUIAY -+ 0 e e e 33,191 18,569 . 246,746 e 298,506 i
Debt service:
Principal retirement. .. ........... . i e R 526,625 R e 526,625
Interest and fiscal charges ............ ... 51,165 1621 400,012 188 22 453,008 ||
TOTAL EXPENDITURES ... ...t 16,904,203 4,126,215 926,637 694,598 1,697,740 24,349,393 {
REVENUES OVER (UNDER} ,
EXPENDITURES . ... (503,229) 290,576 (870,673) (631,890) (292,642) (2,007,858) '
H
OTHER: FINANCING SOQURCES (USES):
Bond procesds. - . ..o oni i R 71,932 15,030 723,832 P 810,794 ;
Refunding bond proceeds . .. ... e C e 85,101 Ce C e 85,101
Operating transfers in—Note H...................... ... 395,152 483,298 887,105 150,225 11 1,915,791 P
Operating transfers omt—Note H.................... ... (973,088) (998,369} (45,667} (273,306) e (2,290,430)
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent .................. e I (85 tOL) e e (85,101} .
Capital lease and installment purchase obligations .......... 4,582 5,737 S L. 10,319 z :
: NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) ........ (573,354) (437,402) 856,468 600,751 11 446,474 i
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES [
UNDER EXPENDITURES AND P
OTHER USES .. ... e iiiaiae e (1,076,583) (146,826) (14,205) (31,139 (292,631) (1,56).,384) b
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), JULY I, 19980 ............. (119,776) 771,419 145,983 280,432 2,169,554 3,247,612
3 RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFERS—NOTE H...... e 215,423 (10,967) e (34,696) L 169,760
1 FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), JUNE 30, 1991 ........... $ (9%0,936) $§ 613,626 $ 131,778 § 214,587 § 1,876,923 § 1,855,988
— See notes to financial statements. — . 0



COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES—
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)
General and Budgeted Special Revenue Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1991

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)

General Fund Budgeted Special Revenue Funds
Variance Varfance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
State Programs:
Taxes, netofrefunds ............ ... ............... $11,717,353  $10,989.206 $ (728,147) $ 048,601 $ 942210 § (6,391)
Lottery receips .. ..o vien e .. IV e 844,190 809,825 (34,365)
Liquor store profits transfer........... . ............. 25,700 38,000 12,300 e T .
Licensesand fees ... ........ ... .. ... ... ... ... ... 55,000 46,141 (8,859) 470,997 460,526 (10,471)
Fines, penalties and interest........................... 19,800 26,062 6,262 e R .
Departmental services . .......... . i 928,648 928.648 . 79,085 79,085 e
Other ... e 342,326 308,953 (33,373) 121,822 102,473 (19,349)
TOTAL STATE PROGRAMS ....................... 13,088,827 12,337,010 (751,817 2,464,695 2,394,119 {70,576)
Federal Programs .. ........ ... ... .oiiiiuineennn... 4,795,155 4,519,340 (275,815) 735,322 546,706 (188,6_1_6)
TOTAL REVENUES _........................... 17,883,982 16,856,350 (1,027,632) 3,200,017 2,940,825 (259,192)
EXPENDITURES:
State Programs:
General government . ...... ... 1,148,795 1,108,862 46,933 531,888 474,705 57,183
Protection of persons and property ..................... 1,142,323 1,138,844 10,479 193,583 191,237 2,346
Public health and welfare .. .. ... ... oo on. . 4,565,276 4,511,652 53,624 735,116 727,048 8,068
Public education ......... ... ... ... . ool 5,981,965 5,901,006 80,959 5,196 4,757 439
Conservation of natural TESOUTCES . ... v e nnnnn 234,759 214,633 20,126 . e e
Economic development and assistance .................. 112,533 108,081 4,452 . e, R
Fransportation .. .. ...t 252,945 247,034 5,911 1,209,118 1,159,402 49,716
TOTAL STATEPROGRAMS . ... ... ... ........ 13,438,596 13,216,112 222,484 2,674,901 2,557,149 117,752
Federal Programs ............... ... ........co0v.... 4,795,155 4,519,340 275,815 735,322 546,706 188,616
TOTAL EXPENDITURES . . ...................... 18,233,751 17,735,452 498,299 3,410,223 3,103,855 306,368
REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES ............ (349,769) (879,102) {529,333) (210,206) (163,030) 47,176
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Prior year lapses .......... .. ... 75,276 75,276 e 41,468 41,468
Transfer — Pennsylvania Industrial Development Fund . ... 214,000 214,000 . S N
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES .. .. i e e 289,276 289,276 . 41,468 41,468
REVENUES AND OTHER SCURCES
UNDER EXPENDITURES . ............................ {60,493) (589,826) (529,333) {168,738) {121,562) 47,176
UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES
(BUDGETARY BASIS), JULY 1, 1990................ 136,183 136,183 C 232,530 232,530
UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES
(DEFICIT), (BUDGETARY BASIS), JUNE 30, 1991 -
NOTE M. .. ... . e e $ 75,690 $ (453,643) § (529,333y % 63,792 % 110968 % 47,176

— See notes to financial statements. —



COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND : -
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCES |
All Proprietary Fund Types and Pension Trust Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1991

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

Fiduciary
Proprietary Fond Types Fund Type
Pension Totals [
Internal Trust— {Memorandum : |
Enterprise Service Note 1 Only) |
OPERATING REVENUES:
Sales and SETVICES . v o v vt v e e e e e $ 1,374,846 $ 38,390 $ .. $ 1,413,236 b
INVESTMENT INCOME .« . o oot ittt e et e et ettt e e o 205,134 . 1,329,888 1,535,022 | :
Interest on notes and 10ans . ... .. ... e 258.866 . 258,866 v
Pension contributions . ... ... .ottt e R L. 2,068,231 2,068,231
L0 7= 12,353 36 P 12,389
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES . _......... ... .. .vvans 1,851,199 38,426 3,398,119 5,287,744 )
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales and SETVICES . .. ... ... v it rirnrecn e 1,587,028 34,767 19,912 1,641,707
INEETESt EXPENSE . .. ..ottt it i - 264,790 N 1,905 266,695l
DEPreciation .. .. .. ..ttt iiiit s i a e e 76,180 5,380 1,116 82,676
Bad debts. . ... .. e 27,068 R A 27,068 s
Benefit payments and refunds .. ... ..ooaea e . L 1,554,641 1,554,641 | ’
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES . ... ... ... ..o, 1,955,066 40,147 1,577,574 3,572,787 b
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) . .. ... . (103,867} (1,721) 1,820,545 1,714,957
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES): 11 ;
{avestment INCOITIE . . .. .. .. e e e a e 29,912 1,463 L. 31,375
INCErest EXPeNSE ... ..o veueenee i aans P JR (8,702) 2 Cee (8,700) .
Policyholder dividends . . ....... ... .. ... L o (53,915) e [ {53,915 }'
OHIEE « oo et e e e e e (8,526) 163 L (8,363) [ |
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES), NET ........... 41,231 1,628 e . (39,603)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS ... ... .. (145,098) 93) 1,820,545 1,675,354 ! :
OPERATING TRANSFERS:
Operating transfers in—Note H.............. .. ..ot 192,952 e 1,775 200,727 ;
Operating transfers out—Note H. ............. ... ..ot (159,428) A (15,361) - (174,789} b
OPERATING TRANSFERS, NET ......0\0vvvennreeeaaeian 33,524 C (7,586) 25,938 o
NET INCOME (LOSS) ...t (111,574) 93) 1,812,959 1,701,292
RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCES, . _
i AS RESTATED, JULY 1, I990—NOTEC ..................... 1,782,165 30,557 25,670,354 27,483,076 -
{ RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFER—NOTEH..................... {5,000) e L (5,000) l
RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCES, - ’ .
JUNE 30, 1991 . . e $ 1,665,591 $ 30,464 $27,483,313 $29,179.368

— See notes to financial statements. —




COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

All Proprietary Fund Types

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1991

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

CASH USED FOR OPERATIONS:
Operating 1058 .. ... .. i

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to

net cash used for operating activities:

Depreciation . ... ... .. i e e s

AmMOTHZAHON .. o e

Provision for uncollectible accounts ........................

Change in assets and Habilities:
Increase inreceivables. ............ ... ... ... ... L.
(Increase)/decrease in due from other funds ................
{(Increase)/decrease in due from other governments ..........
Decrease in inventory ........ ..ot
(Increase)/decrease in other assets . .......................
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities . ... ... ...
Increase/(decrease) in due to other funds ..................
Increase/(decrease} in due to other governments ............
Increase/(decrease) in deferred revenue . ...................
Increase in insurance loss liability ........................
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities .. ...................

Total adfustments . ............ ... ... ...............

NET CASH USED FOR OPERATING
ACTIVITIES ... .. . e e

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of notes payable and revenue bonds . . . ...
Principal paid on notes payable and revenue bonds. ... .........
Interest paid on notes payable and reveaue bonds . ..............
Operating transfers in......... .. ... i
Operating transfers out ... ... ... ... ..o i
Residual equity transferout ... ... . ... ... ... ... . .l
Decreases in contributed capital ................. ... ... ...,
Nonoperaling TevenUes ... ... ... ...ttit i iiieeaan
NONOPEFating EXPENSES . . .. oo vttt ittt e inaer i

NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ... .. ... ... ... ...........

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of revenue bonds ........... ... .......
Principal paid on revenue bonds ................L L,
Interest paid on revenue bonds . ................. L,
Increases in contributed capital ................... ... ...
Decreases in contributed capital ............ ... ... ... ...
Acquisition and construction of capital assets ..................
Proceeds from sale of capital assets ..........................
(Gain)/loss on disposition of capital assets . ....................

NET CASH USED FOR CAFPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES ...................

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investments . ... _....... .. ... ... ... .. .......
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investments ...............
Investment INCOME . . ... ... it ie e eiaens
Investment eXpense .. ... ... i e

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES ......

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) INCASH ..................
CASH, JULY 1, 1990 . ... i v

CASH, JUNE 30, 1991 .. .ivvnriiiiitiiiiiiiii i iaiinnaeane.

(Expressed in Thousands)

Proprietary Fund Types

]

Totals
Internal {(Memorandum
Enterprise Service Only)
$ (103,867 $ (1,721) $ (105,58%)
76,180 5,380 81,560
4,062 N 4,062
27,068 27,068
(584,146) (60) (584,206)
7,216 (1,893) 5,323
(8601) 318 (543)
11,857 850 12,707
(8,754) 42 (8,712}
45,051 1,260 46,311
2,187 (7,305) (5,118)
(7,530) 3 (7,527)
8,135 (104) 8,031
99,241 L 99,241
9,716 (46) 9,670
(310,578) (1,555 (312,133)
(414,445) (3,276) (417,721)
635,405 635,405
(333,791 (333,791)
(1 (N
192,952 192,952
(159,428) (159,428)
(5,000 (5,000
(209,953) . {209,933)
s 170 170
(8,526) (8,526)
111,658 170 111,828
118,631 118,63t
(64,135} e (64,135)
(70,452) 34) (70,486}
70,610 e 70,610
(10,408) e (10,408)
(327,112) (2,949) (330,061)
90 478 568
(60) 35 (25)
(282,836} (2,470) (285,306}
(18,117,249) (47,793) (18,165,042}
18,633,226 51,807 18,685,033
94,698 ,587 96,285 -
(120) (43) (163}
610,555 5,558 616,113
24,932 (18} 24,914
21,878 459 22,337
$ 46,810 $ 441

$ 47,251

— See notes to financial statements. —
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF CURRENT FUNDS REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

College and University Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1991

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

REVENUES:

Tuition and fees ........... ... ... . .. . .. ... ...

Government grants and contracts:
State and local
Federal

Private gifts, grants and contracts

Investment income . ......... .. ... i,

Activities of educational departments. . ........., ...,
Other SOUICES . ... vi ettt o et i

EXPENDITURES AND MANDATORY TRANSFERS:

EXPENDITURES:
Educational and general:

Instruction ........... .. ... .. .. . ... .

Research

Academic support ........ ... ... oL
Student Services. ... ... i

Operations and maintenance of plant

General institutional support ............ ceee
Studentaid.......... ... ... ... il

Auxiliary enterprises
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

MANDATORY TRANSFERS:
Renewal and replacement

Principal and interest . ..........................
Other ... e

TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND MANDATORY

TRANSFERS......... ... ... .. ..........

OPERATING TRANSFERS, OTHER TRANSFERS
AND DEDUCTIONS:

Operating transfers in from General Fund..........
Othertransfers . ..... ... ... ... ... ...........

Deductions
OPERATING TRANSFERS, OTHER

TRANSFERS AND DEDUCTIONS, NET .....

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCES .

(Expressed in Thousands)

Unrestricted Restricted Total
$ 263,713 5 $ 263,713
217 29,266 29,483
1,126 48,143 49,269
2,420 5,846 8,266
14,682 208 14,890
41 363 404
996 108 1,104
13,812 13,812
_ 104,592 e _ 104,592
401,599 83,934 485,533
306,978 5,143 312,121
606 1,376 1,982
6,011 10,439 16,450
68,429 3,664 72,093
51,894 2,867 54,761
74,473 363 74,836
91,183 3,216 94,399
5,743 59,212 64,955
605,317 86,280 691,597
95,083 173 95,256
700,400 86,453 786,853
1,528 . 1,528
10,292 80 10,372
31,161 ) 58 31,219
42 981 138 43,119
743,381 86,591 820,972
337,882 4,284 342,166
(10,530) (14) {10,544)
e (1,411 (1,411)
327,352 2,859 . 330,211
$ (14,430 $ 202 $ (14,228)

— See notes Io financial statements. —
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 1991

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
NOTE A—FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

For financial reporting purposes, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), the
Commonwealth includes all funds, agencies, boards, commissions and authorities over which the
Commonwealth’s executive or legislative branches exercise oversight responsibility. Oversight responsibility
of the Commonwealth was determined on the basis of budget adoption, tax authority, funding, outstanding
debt secured by revenues of the Commonwealth and authority to appoint an organization’s governing board.
The organization’s scope of service and financing relationship with the Commonwealth were also considered
in determining which organizations to include in the Commonwealth’s financial reporting entity. The
accompanying financial staterents include all Commonwealth funds, agencies, boards and COMMissions
required to submit an annual budget in accordance with Section 610 of the Administrative Code of 1929,
as amended, and the following organizations:

Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority
Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency
Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission

Public School Employes’ Retirement System

State Employes’ Retirement System

State Highway and Bridge Authority

State Public School Building Authority

State System of Higher Education

Certain independent charitable foundations and affiliated organizations of the State System of Higher
Education, including alumni associations, trusts, student government associations, bookstores and science
and research centers are not included in the Commonwealth financial reporting entity. Such foundations
and organizations are separate and distinct from the respective universities — they are separately incorporated,
have their own charters and are governed by representatives from the private sector. The foundations and
affiliated organizations are responsible for their own daily operations, debt service, personnel and financial
management. '

The State-Related Universities listed below are not considered pari of the reporting entity since they determine
their own budgets without review or modification by the Commonwealth, have the power to fix and collect
charges for their services, have the responsibility to fund their own deficits, dispose of their own surplus,
exercise complete autonomy over fiscal and institutional matters and may issue debt which is neither a statutory
nor a moral obligation of the Commonwealth:

Pennsylvania State University
Temple University
University of Pittsburgh
Lincoln University

The Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement System is excluded from the reporting entity because the System
independently fixes and collects charges for providing municipal pension benefits, receives no funds from
the Commonwealth, has no continuing policy-making affiliation with the Commonwealth and exercises
complete autonomy over financial, operational and personnel matters.

NOTE B—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fund Accounting: In governmental accounting, a fund is defined as an independent fiscal and accounting
entity with a self-balancing set of accounts, recording cash and/or other resources together with all related
liabilities and equities which are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining
certain objectives in accordance with the fund’s special regulations, restrictions or limitations. In the
Commonwealth, funds are established by legislative enactment or in certain cases by administrative action.

—14—




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE B—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

The Commonwealth has established the following fund categories, fund types and account groups:
Governmental Funds

General Fund — Accounts for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for
in another fund. The General Fund is the Commonwealth’s major operating fund.

Special Revenue Funds — Account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than
expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditure for specified
purposes. Although included as a Special Revenue Fund, the State Lottery Fund reports on a
basis of accounting which provides results which are the same as if the full accrual method of
accounting were used, except for fixed assets and related depreciation, which are not reported.

Debt Service Funds — Account for the accumulation of resources, principally transfers from
other funds, for the payment of general long-term debt principal and interest.

Capital Projects Funds — Account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities, including those provided to political subdivisions and
other public organizations (other than those financed by Proprietary or Fiduciary Funds).

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Funds — Account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar
to private business enterprises. Costs of providing goods and services to the general public on
a continuing basis, including depreciation, are financed or recovered primarily through user
charges. The State Workmen’s Insurance Fund is included for its fiscal year ended December
31, 1990, the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission for its fiscal year ended May 31, 1991 and
the State Stores Fund for its 52 week period ended June 25, 1991.

Internal Service Funds — Account for the financing of goods or services provided by one
department or agency to other departments or agencies of the Commonwealth, or to other
governmental units, on a cost-reimbursement basis. The Manufacturing Fund is included for
its fiscal year ended June 24, 1991.

Fiduciary Funds

Trust and Agency Funds — Account for assets held by the Commonwealth in a trustee capacity
or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds,
These include Expendable Trust Funds, Pension Trust Funds and Agency Funds. The State
Employes’ Retirement System, a Pension Trust Fund, and the Deferred Compensation Fund,
an Agency Fund, are included for their fiscal years ended December 31, 1990,

Account Groups

General Fixed Assets Account Group — Accounts for all general fixed assets acquired or
constructed for use by the Commonwealth in the conduct of its activities, except those accounted
for in Proprietary Funds, Pension Trust Funds, and College and University Funds.

General Long-Term Obligations Account Group — Accounts for all long-term obligations of
the Commonwealth, except those accounted for in Proprietary Funds and College and University
Funds.

College and University Funds

Account for the operations of the Office of the Chancellor and the 14 state-owned universities,
which comprise the State System of Higher Education, in accordance with existing authoritative
accounting and reporting principles applicable to colleges and universities. Accordingly, the
College and University Funds are an aggregation of the following funds:

Current Funds— Unrestricted — Account for economic resources of the institution which
are expendable for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the universities
and have not been designated by the governing body for any other purpose.

—15—
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE B—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Current Funds—Restricted — Account for resources received from donors or other out-
side agencies that are restricted by them for specific operating purposes.

Loan Funds — Account for resources available for loans to students, faculty or staff.

Endowment and Similar Funds — Consist of endowment funds, term endowment funds
and quasi-endowment funds.

Endowment Funds — Account for resources which the donor has stipulated, as a
condition of the gift instrument, that the principal amount would be maintained in-
violate and in perpetuity for investment. Investment earnings may be added to the
principal or expended for restricted or unrestricted purposes, based on the donor’s
stipulation.

Term Endowment Funds — Account for resources, all or a part of the principal of
which may be expended upon the passage of time or the occurrence of a particular
event.

Quasi-Endowment Funds — Account for resources that the governing board of an
institution, rather than an outside source, has determined will be retained and in-
vested. Since this is an internal designation, the Board of Governors has the right
to expend the principal of these funds at any time.,

Plant Funds — Account for (a) resources available to acquire or repair institutional pro-
perties and to service debt incurred to acquire such properties and (b) the cost of fixed
assets and the source from which the cost is funded.

Agency Funds — Account for resources held by the institution acting in the capacity of '

an agent for distribution to designated beneficiaries.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (GAAP): The general, special revenue, debt service, capital
projects funds (Governmental Fund Types) and expendable trust funds are reported using the current finan-
cial resources measurement focus and modified accrual basis of accounting. Assets and liabilities of agency
funds are reported using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this measurement focus only cur-
rent assets and current liabilities are normally included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these
funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and
other financing uses) in net current assets. Fund balance represents a measure of “‘available spendable
resources.”” Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues of governmental and expendable trust
funds are recognized in the year that they become both measurable and available (within 60 days of fiscal
year-end) to pay current fiscal year liabilities. The Commonwealth accrues the following major revenue
sources that are both measurable and available:

Sales and use taxes, cigarette taxes, corporation taxes, personal income taxes, liquid fuels taxes, li-
quor taxes, grant revenues, investment income, institutional revenues, lottery revenues and sales of
goods and services.

Revenues from other sources are recognized when received. Expenditures are generally recognized in the
fiscal year the goods or services are received and the related fund liability is incurred. Debt service expen-
ditures for principal and interest on general long-term obligations are recognized when due unless resources
have been provided for payment early in the subsequent fiscal year. Prepaid items and inventory purchases
are reported as current fiscal year expenditures, rather than aliocating cost to the fiscal year when the items
are used. Expenditures for claims, judgments, compensated absences and employer pension contributions
are reported as the amount accrued during the fiscal year that normally would be liquidated with expendable
available financial resources. '

—16—
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE B—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

The enterprise, internal service (Proprietary Fund Types) and pension trust funds are reported using the
flow of economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this measurement
focus all assets and liabilities associated with the operations of these funds are included on the balance sheet.
Fund equity (i.e., net total assets) consists of contributed capital and retained earnings. Under the accrual
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the fiscal year earned and expenses are recognized in the
fiscal year incurred.

The College and University Funds are reported using the *‘financial flow”’ (spending) measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. This treatment is in accordance with the National Association of College
and University Business Officers’ (NACUBOQ) College and University Business Administration (1982) and
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ (AICPA) Audits of Colleges and Universities (1975)
for institutions of higher education.

Basis of Accounting (Budgetary). The Commonwealth’s Constitution requires that the Governor submit
a budget annually to be adopted by the General Assembly for the ensuing fiscal year. The General Assembly
may add, change or delete any items in the budget proposed by the Governor, but the Governor retains
veto power over the individual appropriations passed by the legislature. The Governor may also reduce
individual appropriations, but may not increase them. A gubernatorial veto can be overridden only by a
two-thirds majority of each House of the General Assembly.

The Commonwealth’s budgets are prepared essentially on a cash basis. Total appropriations enacted by
the General Assembly may not exceed the ensuing fiscal year’s estimated revenues, as developed by the
Governor, plus (less) the unappropriated fund balance (deficit) of the preceding fiscal year, except for
constitutionally authorized debt service payments.

Budgetary control is exercised at the appropriation level (legisiative spending authority level). Encumbrances
and expenditures cannot exceed appropriated amounts. Appropriation transfers between departments and
any supplemental appropriations require both executive and legislative branch approval. Unencumbered
and unexpended appropriations lapse at fiscal year end and become available for appropriation in the
subsequent year. On the budgetary basis of accounting, certain estimated tax revenue accruals are recorded
at fiscal year end for the General Fund and the Motor License Fund, a Special Revenue Fund. Accruals
include sales and use taxes and personal income taxes, both applicable to the General Fund, and liquid fuels
taxes applicable to the Motor License Fund, which are estimated to be owed to the Commonwealth but
not collected at fiscal year end. Also, estimated encumbrances are established for all funds at fiscal year
end to pay certain direct expenditures for salaries, wages, travel, and utility costs payable against current
vear appropriation authority but expended in the subsequent year. Over-estimates of prior year encumbrances
are lapsed in the subsequent year and under-estimates are charged to subsequent year appropriation authority.
A separate document, ‘“Status of Appropriations’” for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991 reports the level
of legal control at the appropriation level for specific departmental programs and functions, and is available
from the Commonwealth’s Office of the Budget.

Budgets are legally adopted each fiscal year for the following funds:

General Fund
Special Revenue Funds:
State Lottery
Motor License
Workmen’s Compensation Administration
State Public School Building Authority

The.legally adopted budget for the General Fund includes $176.5 million in supplemental appropriations
approved during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE B—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Not all Special Revenue Funds are controlled by legally adopted budgets. Controls over spending in such
Special Revenue Funds are maintained by use of spending limits (executive authorizations) established by
the Governor.

The Commonwealth also makes appropriations to authorize expenditures for various capital projects.

Appropriations for capital projects normally remain in effect until the completion of each project unless
modified or rescinded.

Budget revenues in the accompanying Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances — Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) represent official estimates
while expenditures represent amounts originally adopted and legally amended. Actual amounts are presented
on the budgetary basis. Because the budgetary basis of accounting differs from GAAP, a reconciliation
of the differences between budgetary basis and the GAAP basis of reporting is presented in Note M.

Pooled Cash: In accordance with the Pennsylvania Fiscal Code, cash balances of most Commonwealth
funds are pooled by the Treasury Department. Cash balances are segregated by fund, but accounted for
centrally for receipt and disbursement purposes. The law requires that collateral be pledged by banks and
other financial institutions to guarantee the Commonwealth’s cash on deposit.

Temporary Investmenis: Investments expected to be realized in cash within twelve months or less are
reported as temporary investments. These invesiments include cash equivalents, which have original maturity
dates of three months or less, are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an
insignificant amount of changes in interest rates. No investments which could be defined as cash equivalents
have been treated as such on the Statement of Cash Flows, therefore, net changes in cash only are displayed.
Temporary investments are stated at cost, which approximates market.

Long-Term Investments: Investments expected to be realized in cash after twelve months are reported
as long-term investments. Long-term investments are stated at cost for equity securities and at amortized
cost for debt securities, except for various investments of the State Employes’ Retirement System and the
Deferred Compensation Fund, which are stated at market value. '

Grants: Federal grants and assistance awards made on the basis of entitlement periods are recorded as
intergovernmental revenues when entitlement occurs. Federal reimbursement type grants are recorded as
revenues when the related expenditures or expenses are incurred.

Inventories: Inventories of goods, materials and supplies are maintained by the Proprietary and College
and University Funds. These inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market (first-in, first-out) for
Proprietary and weighted average for College and University Funds. In the governmental fund types,
inventories are accounted for on the purchases method.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation: General fixed assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated
fixed assets are stated at fair market value at the time of donation. Public domain general fixed assets (including
highways, bridges, highway land and rights-of-way) are not capitalized. No depreciation is provided on
general fixed assets. Land and buildings used by the State System of Higher Education (SSHE), which were
acquired or constructed before July 1, 1983, the inception date for the SSHE, are reported in the
Commonwealth’s General Fixed Assets Account Group. All general fixed assets acquired or constructed
by the SSHE subsequent to June 30, 1983 without the use of university funds or incurrence of the SSHE
debt are also reported in the Commonwealth>s General Fixed Assets Account Group. This accounting treatment
is used to conform to the enabling legislation for the SSHE, which includes the vesting of title for the SSHE

property.

Fixed assets related to Proprietary and Pension Trust Funds are reported in those funds at cost or estimated
historical cost. Depreciation is reported on a straight-line basis over the fixed assets’ estimated useful lives.
The following lives are used:

Buildings .......... .0 R S 10-50 years

Improvements other than buildings ........................... © 5-50 years
Furniture, machinery and equipment. ......................... 3-25 years

Fixed assets reported by the SSHE are stated at cost. Depreciation of SSHE fixed assets is recognized over
the estimated useful life of the assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE B—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Amounts Available in Commonwealth Funds: The amount available for retirement of Other General Long-
Term Obligations in the amount of $13.3 million is reported in the Workmen’s Compensation Security Trust
Fund, an Expendable Trust Fund, as Fund Balance ‘‘Designated—Other’’ at June 30, 1991.

Insurance Loss Liability: The insurance loss liability represents an estimate of the ultimate net costs of
unpaid claims relating to policyholders of the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund, an Enterprise Fund. These
loss reserves are discounted at a 6 percent rate.

Self-Insurance: The Commonwealth is uninsured for property losses and self-insured for employe disability
and tort claims. Reporting of self-insurance liabilities is described in Note O.

Compensated Absences: Employes accumulate annual leave based on 2 percent to 10 percent of regular
hours paid to & maximum of 45 days. Employes are paid for accumulated annual leave upon termination
or retirement.

Employes accumulate sick leave based on 5 percent of regular hours paid to a maximum of 200 days. Retiring
employes that meet service, age or disability requirements are paid for 30 percent of their accumulated
unused sick leave. :

Accumulated annual and sick leave liability payable in subsequent fiscal years from Governmental Funds
and Expendable Trust Funds are reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group. Proprietary,
Pension Trust, and College and University Funds accrue annual and sick leave in the fiscal year earned.

Pension Costs: The Commonwealth’s policy is to fund pension costs incurred and to amortize prior service
costs over varying periods not exceeding 30 years.

Encumbrances: Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments
for expenditures are recorded as a reserve of the applicable appropriation, is employed as an extension
of formal budgetary integration in the Commonwealth’s accounting system. Encumbrances outstanding at
fiscal year end are reported as reservations of fund balance for subsequent year expenditures.

Reserves and Designations: Reserves represent portions of fund balances that are legally segregated for
a specific future use or are not approprizble for expenditure.

The amount reserved for advances in the General Fund is applicable to a demand loan to the State Stores

Fund, an advance to the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund, both Enterprise Funds, and an advance to the
Motor License Fund, a Special Revenue Fund.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE B—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Reserved retained earnings for Enterprise Funds are provided principally for the retirement of debt relating
to the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission, insurance claims relating to the State Workmen'’s Insurance Fund,
student loans relating to the Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency, and housing loans relating
to the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency. At June 30, 1991 the Commonwealth has included the following
reservations of retained earnings for the Enterprise Funds (expressed in thousands):

" Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission.................. $ 870,828
Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency ..... 128,232
State Workmen’s Insurance Fund . ................... 74,614
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency ............... 25,268
Other funds . . ... .. i i e 5,025

Total Enterprise Punds ... ..., $1,103,967

Designations of unreserved fund balances reflect managerial plans for the future use of financial resources.
At June 30, 1991 the Commonwealth has included the following amounts as “*Designated—Other’” for the
Special Revenue Funds and Expendable Trust Funds (expressed in thousands):

Special Revenue Funds:

Land reclamation ............ ... ... ... . ... ..., $ 16,456
-Energy conservation and development ... ........... 4,345
Solid waste grants. .. .........ouuierit i 3,739
Other . ... e 17

Total Special Revenue Funds............... PR $ 24,557

Expendable Trust Funds:

Workmen’s Compensation Security Trust Claims ... .. $ 13,318
Other .. ... e e e 208
Total Expendable Trust Funds . .................. $ 13,526

Intergovernmental Revenues: These amounts represent revenues received principally from the Federal
Government.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE B—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Interfund Transactions: The Commonwealth has the following types of transactions among funds:

Statutory Transfers (Operating Transfers) — Legally required transfers that are reported when incurred
as “‘Operating transfers in>” by the recipient fund and as ‘*Operating transfers out”” by the disbursing
fund.

Transfers of Expenditures (Reimbursements) — Reimbursement of expenditures made by one fund
for another that are recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as a reduction of expenditures
in the reimbursed fund.

Residual Equity Transfers — Nonroutine or nonrecurring transfers between funds that are reported
as additions to or deductions from the fund equity balance.

Interfund Payments (Quasi-external Transactions) — Charges or collections for services rendered by
one fund to another that are recorded as revenues of the recipient fund and expenditures or expenses
of the disbursing fund.

The composition of the Commonwealth’s interfund receivables and payables at June 30, 1991 is presented
in Note H.

Totals—Memorandum Only: The “‘Totals (Memorandum Only)’* columns represent an aggregation of
the combined financial statement amounts of the fund types and account groups and are presented only for
analytical purposes. These amounts are not comparable to a consolidation and do not represent the total
resources available to or used by the Commonwealth. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the
aggregation of the totals.

Statement of Cash Flows: The provisions of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s Statement
No. 9, **Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and Nonexpendable Trust Funds and Governmental Entities
That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting,”” were adopted during the current fiscal year. There were no material
investing, capital and financing activities which did not result in cash receipts or cash payments during the
fiscal year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE C—RESTATEMENTS/FUND BALANCE/RETAINED EARNINGS DEFICITS

The General Fund reported a fund balance deficit of $980.9 million at June 30, 1991. To eliminate this
deficit, the Commonwealth has implemented cost containment measures and increases in the rates of tax
imposed on personal income and corporate net income, as well as increases in public utility, cigarette and
insurance company tax rates. The range of goods and services subject to sales and use tax has been expanded.
These changes are part of legislation enacted in August, 1991.

The State Lottery Fund, a Special Revenue Fund, reported a fund balance deficit of $66.8 million at June
30, 1991. This deficit results from increasing expenditures for benefits for the elderly and stable lotiery
revenues. The Pharmaceutical Assistance Fund, a Special Revenue Fund, reported a fund balance deficit
of $3.6 million at June 30, 1991. The Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization Fund, a Special Revenue Fund,
reported an unreserved, undesignated, fund balance deficit of $40.7 million at June 30, 1991. The Agricultural
Conservation Easement Purchase Fund, a Special Revenue Fund, reported a fund balance deficit of $545
thousand at June 30, 1991. PR

The Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority Redemption Fund, a Debt Service Fund, reported

“a fund balance deficit of $57 thousand at June 30, 1991.

The Capital Facilities Fund, an individual fund included in the Capital Projects fund type, reported a deficit
unreserved/undesignated fund balance of $285,693 at June 30, 1991. This deficit was primarily caused by
a fund balance reservation for encumbrances of $299,716. In total, the individual Capital Facilities Fund
reported a fund balance of $14,023 at June 30, 1991. Total Capital Projects Funds reported reservations
for encumbrances and long-term investments of $300,196 and $27,954, respectively, designations for capital
projects of $172,140 and a deficit unreserved/undesignated fund balance of $285,693, for a total combined
fund balance of $214,597 at June 30, 1991 (amounts in thousands).

The Catastrophic Loss Benefits Continuation Fund, an Expendable Trust Fund, reported a fund balance
deficit of $42,650 thousand at June 30, 1991.

The Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority, an Enterprise Fund, reported contributed capital and
a retained earnings deficit of $228,332 and $324, respectively, at June 30, 1990. These amounts have been
restated and were decreased and increased, respectively, for net grant receipts and disbursements of $9,040.
Also, retained earnings was decreased to recognize an allowance for potential loan losses of $2,959 and
increased to recognize deferred loan origination costs of $1,302. As a result, restated contributed capital
and retained earnings amount to $219,292 and $7,059, respectively, at June 30, 1990 (amounts in thousands).

The current funds unrestricted fund balance for College and University Funds at June 30, 1990 was $35,521

* as originally reported. This amount has been decreased by $13,444 to properly state a liability related to

a contracted sale of electricity. The June 30, 1990 fund balance, as restated, is $22,077 (amounts in thousands).

The fund balance of the College and University Funds’ plant funds’ investment in plant was $305,899,
as originally reported, at June 30, 1990. This amount has been decreased by $104,232 to allow for the
recognition of depreciation on fixed assets, and the restated fund balance at June 30, 1990 is $201,667 (amounts
in thousands).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE D—DEPOSITS AND INYESTMENTS

Authority for Commonwealth deposits and investments: The deposit and investment policies of the Commonwealth’s
Treasury Department are governed by sections 301.1 and 505 of the Pennsylvania Fiscal Code (Act of 1929, P.L. 343,
No. 176, amended November 16, 1985). Commonwealth deposits must be held in insured depositories approved by the
Board of Finance and Revenue and must be fully collateralized. Permissible investments include direct obligations of the
U.S. Treasury and U.S. Government agencies with maturities not exceeding two years; commercial paper rated *Prime
One™ by Moody’s Credit Service or the equivalent by Standard and Poor’s or Fitch’s Rating Service; certificates of deposit
issued by Pennsylvania banks or savings and loan associations; repurchase agreements secured by U.S. Government
obligations that are held by the Treasury Department at the Federal Reserve bank; banker’s acceptances; and up to a maximum
of 10 percent of the book value of a fund’s assets in any investment (other than common stock) not otherwise specifically
authorized. It is also permissible for the Treasury Department to participate in reverse repurchase agreements.

In some cases, deposit and investment policies of certain individual funds and component units are established by statutes
other than the Fiscal Code; however, all deposits, investments and reverse repurchase agreements of Commonwealth
component units are specifically authorized by law.

In accordance with applicable statutory authority, the State Employes” Retirement System and the Public School Employes’
Retirement System, Pension Trust Funds, have invested in common and preferred stocks, corporate and foreign bonds
and notes, mortgages and real estate during their fiscal years.

Deposits: The following summary presents the amount of Commonwealth deposits which are fully insured or collateralized
with securities held by the Commonwealth or its agent in the Commonwealth’s name (Category 1), those deposits which
are collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent in the Commonwealth’s
name (Category 2) and those deposits which are not collaterized or are collaterized by the pledging financial institution
or the pledging institution’s trust department or agent, but not in the Commonwealth’s name (Category 3) at June 30,
1991 (expressed in thousands).

Total Carrying
Category 1 Category 2 Category 3 Bank Balance Amount
Cash ...... ... ..., $ 367,546 $ 1,833 $35,239 $ 424,618 $ 142,399
Cash with fiscal agents . ......._. 1,455,339 e 35918 £,491,257 1,491,257
Certificates of deposit and related
Hems o ovviiie s 193,898 38,066 57,657 289,621 289,621

The above-listed $289,621 in certificates of deposit and related items is reporied as temporary investments at June 30, 1991.

Investments: The Commonwealth categorizes investments according to the level of credit risk assumed by the
Commonwealth. Category 1 includes investments that are insured, registered or held by the Commonwealth or the
Commonwealth’s agent in the Commonwealth’s name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments held
by the counterparty’s trust department or agent in the Commonwealth’s name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered
investments held by the counterparty, its trust department or its agent, but not in the Commonwealth’s name. Certain
investiments have not been categorized because securities are not used as evidence of the investment. These uncategorized
investments include ownership interests in mutual funds and in mortgage, real estate and venture capital pools. The following
summary identifies the level of credit risk assumed by the Commonwealth and the total carrying amount and market value
of Commonwealth investments at June 30, 1991 (expressed in thousands).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE D—Deposits and Investments (continued)

Carrying Amount

Market
Category 1 Category 2 Category 3 Total Value
Bankers acceptances....... $ R R $ 11,868 $ 11,868 $ 11,868
Commercial paper .......- 70,575 145,504 144,774 360,833 360,853
Common and preferred
SIOCK. . oot 8,260,548 . 624 8,267,172 9,212,967
Corporate bonds and notes . 2,323,288 6,549 69,631 2,399,468 2,401,250
International fixed income . . 574,284 e e 574,284 553,709
Mortgage loans........... 2,840,579 e 34,174 2,874,753 2,919,666
Realestate............... 225,200 e P 225,200 181,458
Repurchase agreements . . . . 670,405 888,996 111,188 1,670,589 1,670,589
U.S. Government
obligations . ............ 6,532,936 202,585 110,145 6,845,666 6,981,436
U.S. Government agency
obligations . ............ 1,129,095 44,723 83,434 1,257,252 1,266,245
Other ................... 993,411 R 715,429 1,708,840 1,699,251
Totals ....vvvennnn... $23,626,321 $ 1,288,357 $ 1,281,267 26,195,945 27,259,292
Add invested amounts not susceptible to credit risk categorization:
Investment pools in which State Employes’ Retirement System (SERS)
participates at December 31, 1990:
MOrtgage LOANS . ... ..ottt e i 631,512 631,512
Mutual funds .. ... e 2,914,984 2,914,984
Real BSHALE . .. .ottt e 862,145 862,145
Venture capital .. ....... o e e 93,849 93,849
Securities loaned by SERS at December 31, 1990:
U.S. Government Securities. .. ... ... i caa i 724,117 724,117
Corporate bonds and notes .. ..., ... oo 56,323 56,323
Common and preferred stocks .. ... e 56,904 56,904
Venture capital pool and other pooled investments in which the Public School
Employes® Retirement System participates at June 30, 1951 ................ 451,972 450,233
Mutual funds in which the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency participates
atJune 30, 1901 . ... e e 29,592 29,592
Pooled investments in which the Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance
Agency participate at June 30, 1991 ... .. ... 102,031 102,031
32,119,374 33,180,982
Certificates of deposit and related items . .......... ... it 289,621 289,621
Securities sold under reverse repurchase agreements ... 125,531 126,475
Total temporary and long-term investments ........................ $32,534,526 $33,597,078

The above-listed $289,621 in CD’s are reported as investments at June 30, 1991 but have been treated as
deposits for a determination of the level of credit risk associated with them. In addition, the Commonwealth
participated in reverse repurchase agreements at June 30, 1991. The carrying amount of the securities sold
was $125,531 and was collateralized by $126,475 in U.S. Government securities. Accrued interest owed
to the counterparty was $76 and accrued interest receivable related to the collateral was $926.

Included in the above-listed $715,429 of “‘other” investments included in Credit Risk Category 3 are $607,162
of investments owned by the State Employes’ Retirement System, the Deferred Compensation Fund and
the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund, which report their investments at December 31, 1990 in the State
Treasury pool. ‘

The Pension Trust Funds own approximately 100 percent of the common and preferred stock, 85 percent
of the corporate bonds and notes, 99 percent of mortgage loans and 100 percent of the real estate reported
in the above summary. There were no violations of statutory authority or contractual provisions for in-
vestments during the year ended June 30, 1991.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE E—FIXED ASSETS

A summary of fixed assets by category at June 30, 1991 is as follows (expressed in thousands):

College
Internal Pension General Fixed and
Enterprise Service Trost Assets University
Funds Funds Funds Account Group Funds
Land ...... ..o e, 5 67825 $ 6 5 ... $ 216,446 $ 3,730
Buildings .. ................. ... 61,319 2,761 e 2,071,541 107,328
Improvements other than
buildings .................... 51,540 376 e 152,482 14,485
Furniture, machinery and
equipment ................... 180,892 41,805 8,451 440,204 245,652
Turnpike infrastructure .......... 1,255,576 . .. e .
Construction in progress ......... 306,431 L e 130,961 30,347
Total ....ooovviii il $1,923,583 5 44,048 $ 8,451 $ 3,011,634 $ 401,542

Changes in general fixed assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991 are as follows (expressed in thousands):

Balance Balance
June 30, June 30,
1990 Additions  Retirements 1991

Land ... $ 209,026 $ 7.434 % 14 3% 216,446
Buildings . ............... .. .. ... 2,050,093 22,047 599 2,071,541
Improvements other than buildings....... 152,017 465 R 152,482
Furniture, machinery and equipment . .. .. 419,321 35,354 14,471 440,204
2,830,457 65,300 15,084 2,880,673
Construction in progress ............... 69,044 83,325 21,408 130,961
Totals .......... ... ... .. ... 000 $2,899.501 $ 148,625 § 36,492 $3,011,634

Interest costs of $9.5 million were capitalized for the Enterprise Funds for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991.

The Commonwealth’s initial valuation of general fixed assets was made as of June 30, 1986 using appraisal and historical
cost reconstruction techniques. Subsequent to June 30, 1986 general fixed asset acquisitions are valued at cost. At June
30, 1991 the amount of general fixed assets related to the initial valuation amounts to $2,092 million.

Construction in progress included in the General Fixed Assets Account Group at June 30, 1991 is composed of the following
(expressed in thousands):

Expended
Project Through Authorization
Project Authorization June 30, 1991 Available

Capitol Complex Buildings ...................... $ 97,946 $ 49,198 $ 48,748
Department of Corrections Institutions............. 115,195 33,393 81,802
Colleges and Universities ....................... 50,449 15,634 34,815
Department of Public Welfare Institutions . ......... 39,083 9,752 29,331
Other . ... 79,360 22,984 56,376
Total .. ... 5 382,033 $ 130,961 $ 251,072

NOTE F—DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

This receivable represents amounts due primarily from the Federal Government for various departmental programs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE G — TAXES, LOANS AND LEASE RENTAL RECEIVABLES

Taxes Receivable: Taxes receivable at June 30, 1991 consisted of the following (expressed in thousands):

Special Trust and

General Revenue Agency Total

Fund Funds Funds
Sales and USE . ... oo v $ 365932 % .... $ .... § 3650932
Unemployment compensation. . ............ C e 256,254 256,254
Personal income .. ........ . .. i, 124,525 e e 124,525
Liquid fuels . .........ooooi oot C 103,190 4,144 107,334
Corporation . ............cocooiaiaa.. 61,265 P C. 61,265
Other ... e 19,872 42,771 A 62,643

$ 571,594 $ 145961 $ 260,398 $§ 977,953

Loans Receivable: Loans receivable at June 30, 1991 consisted of the following (expressed in thousands):

College
Special and
Revenue Enterprise  University Total
Funds Funds Funds
Mortgage loan program .................. $ ..., $1,758640 § . ... $1,758,640
Student loan program ... ......... . ..nn.. . 1,123,465 25,580 1,149,045
Business development loan program ........ 14,480 531,467 e 545,947
Municipal water system loan program ...... 57,013 304,087 C e 361,100
Nursing home loan program .............. 32,580 Ce .. 32,580
Other loan programs: ............c.c...o... 3,531 45,351 Ce 48,882
107,604 3,763,010 25,580  3.896,194
Less: Allowance for uncoliectible accounts 3,091 81,609 3,797 88,497
1oans receivable, net .................. $ 104,513 $3,681,401 $ 21,783 §$3,807,697

Lease Rentals Receivable: The Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority and State Public School
Building Authority finance construction projects for educational institutions through the issuance of bonds
and other obligations, the principal and interest of which are paid through the collection of lease rental
payments related to the projects. Also, the Capital Facilities Fund, a Capital Projects Fund, finances
construction projects for educational institutions through the issuance of General Obligation Bonds, the
principal and interest of which are paid through the collection of lease rental payments and deposited in
their related debt service funds. The General State Authority, which no longer exists, formerly financed
similar transactions. At the conclusion of the lease terms, the project facilities are conveyed to the educational
institutions. Accordingly, these lease arrangements are classified as direct financing leases. Lease rental
receivables and associated deferred revenue equal to the principal lease payments to be received are recorded
in the Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds relating to these arrangements. The total minimum lease
payments to be received was $2,770 million and the present value of the lease payments was $1,519 million
at June 30, 1991, the difference representing interest of $1,251 million. Minimum lease payments for the
five fiscal years succeeding June 30, 1991 are as follows (expressed in millions):

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30 Amount .
1992 e $94
1993 e e 143
1994 . e 144
1005 e 131
1996 . oot e 123




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE H—INTERFUND ACCOUNTS/OPERATING TRANSFERS/RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFERS __

A summary of interfund receivables and payables reported on the combined balance sheet at June 30, 1991
is as follows (expressed in thousands):

FUND TYPE/FUND DUE FROM DUE TO
General ... . $ 25,765 $478,585
Special Revenue:
Fish and Game Fund ......... .. ... ... .. ... ... ........ 977 1,454
Water Facilities Loan Fund .. ... .. ... .. ............... C e 1,002
Hazardous Sites Clean-up Fund........................... 50,179 280
Motor License Fund . . ....... .. .. . . 38,544 16,690
Vocational Rehabilitation Fund . ......... . ... .. .. ..... ... 156 3,188
Other Funds. ........ ... .., 318 6,998
90,174 20,612
Debt Service ... . 220 2,274
Capital Projects:
Capital Facilities Fund ... ............................... Ce 33,782
Land and Water Development Fund ... ............ ... ... 27 90
' 27 33,872
Enterprise:
State Stores Fund . .. .. .. ..., 237 17,165
State Workmen’s Insurance Fund ......................... 125 1,247
Other Funds. .......... .. 2,651 5,254
3,013 23,666
Internal Service: :
Parchasing Fund . .... ... ... .. ... .. ... ... ... ... 8,610 453
Manufacturing Fund .. ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ..... .. 3,958 203
' 12,568 656

Expendable Trust:

Catastrophic Loss Benefits Continuation Fund .. ............. ) Ce . 21,587
Unemployment Compensation Fund ....................... 3,351 C e
Workmen’s Compensation Security Trust Fund.............. 21,500 17
Other Funds. ... .. . 1 N
24,852 21,604

Pension Trust:
State Employes’ Retirement System . ...................... 98,112 194
Public School Employes’ Retirement System . ............... 285,656 415
383,768 609
AZENCY ..o 378 1,102
College and University . ... ... 00ttt 89,374 99,457
TOTAL ... e $630,139 $691,437
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE H—Interfund Accounts/Operating Transfers/Residual Equity Transfers (continued)

The amount of total interfund receivables of $630,139 does not agree with total interfund payables of $691,437
at June 30, 1991 due to different fiscal year ends for certain funds included in the combined balance sheet
at June 30, 1991. The amounts shown as interfund accounts for the State Employes’ Retirement System,
a Pension Trust Fund, and the Deferred Compensation Fund, an Agency Fund, are as of their fiscal year
end of December 31, 1990. The amounts shown for the State Workmen's Insurance Fund and the Pennsylvania
Turnpike Conunission, Enterprise Funds, are as of their respective fiscal year ends of December 31, 1990
and May 31, 1991. The following presents a reconciliation of interfund accounts reported at June 30, 1991
(expressed in thousands) and those amounts which would have been reported if all funds used the same
fiscal year end: '

Due from other funds - combined balance sheet at June 30, 1991 ..... .. $630,139

State Workmen’s Insurance Fund decrease in receivables from

January 1, 1991 through June 30, 1991 ... ... ... ... .ot (112)
State Employes’ Retirement System increase in receivables from
January 1, 1991 through June 30, 1991. ... ... ... ... it 59,354
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS . ... ... ...t $689,381
Due to other funds - combined balance sheet at June 30, 1991 ......... $691,437
Deferred Compensation Fund decrease in payables from
January 1, 1991 through June 30, 1991 ........ ... ... ... ..ot (205)
State Employes’ Retirement System decrease in payables from
January 1, 1991 through June 30, 1991 .. ... ... ... . L 29
State Workmen’s Insurance Fund decrease in payables from
Tanuary 1, 1991 through June 30, 1991 ........ ... ......ooient. (747)
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission decrease in payables from
June 1, 1991 through June 30, 1991 .......... ... . i, (1,075)
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS .. ... . .. it $689,381
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE H-Interfund Accounts/Operating Transfers/Residual Equity Transfers (continued)

A summary of operating transfers reported for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991 is as follows (expressed
in thousands):

OPERATING TRANSFERS

FUND TYPE/FUND IN ouT
General ... .. ... $395,152 $ 973,088
Special Revenue:
State Lottery Fund ... ... .. ... . .. ... ... .. C e 241,245
Motor License Fund ... ... . ... ... ... ... ... .. ....... 125,422 474,673
State Public School Building Authority..................... 35,160 104,842
Pharmaceutical Assistance Fund .......................... 222,000
Vocational Rehabilitation Fund ........................... 18,590 e
Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization Fund ................ 5,600 1,591
Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority ......... 52,869 149,501
Hazardous Sites Clean Up Fund .......................... . 7,000
Other Funds........... e e 3,657 19,517
483,298 998,369
Debt Service:
Land and Water Development Sinking Fund ................ 36,351
Water Facilities Loan Redemption Yund ............ ... ... 14,723
Capital Debt Fund. .......... ... .......... ... ... 592,746 Ce e
Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority ......... 137,214 39,697
State Public School Building Authority..................... 54,700 3,686
Disaster Relief Redemption Fund ......................... 10,276
State Highway and Bridge Authority Sinking Fund........... 12,248 C e
Other Funds......... ... ... .. . . i, 28,847 2,284
887,105 45,667
Capital Projects:
Capital Facilities Fund . ................................. C e 120,785
Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority ......... 150,225 151,262
State Public School Building Authority..................... R 1,180
Land and Water Development Fund ....................... e 79
150,225 273,306
Enterprise Funds:
State Workmen’s Insurance Fund ......... ... ............ e 120,000
State Stores Fund ..... ... ... ... .. ... ... . . C. .. 39,428
Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency........... 186,452
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency..................... 6,500 L.
192,952 159.428
Expendable Trust:
State School Fund . . ....... ... ... ... ... ... ... .. ..... 11
Pension Trust;
State Employes’ Retirement System ....................... 5,700 3,835
Public School Employes’ Retirement System .. .............. 2,075 11,506
7,775 15,361
College and University. . ...... .. ... ... ... . ... . ........ 346,115 Ce e
TOTAL ... $2.462,633 $2,465,219
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE H—Interfund Acceunts/Operating Transfers/Residual Equity Transfers (continued)

The amount of total operating transfers in of $2,462.633 does not agree with total operating transfers out
of $2,465,219 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991 due to different fiscal year ends for certain funds
included in the financial reporting entity. The amounts shown as operating transfers for the State Employes’
Retirement System, a Pension Trust Fund, and the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund, an Enterprise Fund,
are for their fiscal year end of December 31, 1990. The following presents a reconciliation of operating
transfers reported in the financial statements to those transfer amounts which would have been reported
if all funds used the same fiscal year end (expressed in thousands):

Total operating transfersin -all funds . .. ....... .. ... ... ... ... .. $2,462,633
State Employes’ Retirement System increase in operating transfers in from
the period January 1, 1991 through June 30, 1991 ... ... ........... 5,806
TOTAL OPERATING TRANSFERSIN ............ .. ... ..., $2,468,439
Total operating transfers out - all funds ... .......................... $2,465,219
State Workmen’s Insurance Fund increase in operating transfers out from
the period January 1, 1991 to June 30, 1991 ... ... ... ... ... ... ... 5,000
State Employes’ Retirement System decrease in operating transfers out from
the period January 1, 1991 to June 30, 1991 ... .. ... ........ ... ..... (1,780)
TOTAL OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT .................vvivnn. $2,468,439

The Enterprise Funds provided $170 million in net residual equity transfers to governmental funds reported
as reductions in Enterprise Funds’contributed capital and increases in governmental funds’ fund balances.
In addition, a $20 million net increase in contributed capital was reported by Enterprise Funds, resulting
- from funds received through general obligation bond proceeds and the Federal government less grants made
to parties external to the Commonwealth.

The State Workmen's Insurance Fund (SWIF), an Enterprise Fund, reported a residual equity transfer of
$5 million to the Sunny Day Fund, an Enterprise Fund, during SWIF’s fiscal year ended December 31,
1990, The Sunny Day Fund reported this $5 million residual equity transfer as an increase in contributed
capital during its fiscal year ended June 30, 1990.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I-RETIREMENT AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
PENSION SYSTEMS

The Commonwealth has contributory defined benefit pension plans covering substantially all state employes,
public school employes and employes of certain other state-related organizations. State employes and employes
of state-related organizations are members of the State Employes’ Retirement System (SERS). Public school
employes are members of the Public School Employes’ Retirement System (PSERS).

The SERS follows the accounting and reporting requirements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s
(FASB) Statement 35 and the PSERS follows the National Council on Governmental Accounting’s Statement
1. Both the SERS and the PSERS currently follow the disclosure requirements of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board’s (GASB) Statement 5, *‘Disclosure of Pension Information by Public Employee Retirement
Systems and State and Local Governmental Employers’”. FASB Statement 35 provides autheritative guidance
on accounting and financial reporting for defined benefit public employe retirement systems and GASB
Statement 5 provides disclosure guidance. The following summaries present disclosure requirements for
both the SERS and the PSERS for their fiscal years ended December 31, 1990 and June 30, 1991, respectively.

Since the SERS reports under the provisions of FASB Statement 35, a statement of changes in net assets
available for benefits has not been presented separately. Financial information which would have been
presented in such statement is included in the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes
in Fund Balances for Pension Trust Funds.

STATE EMPLOYES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Plan Description: The SERS is the administrator of a cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement system
established by the Commenwealth of Pennsylvania (Commonwealth) to provide pension benefits for employes
of state government and certain independent agencies. At December 31, 1990 there were 112 participating
state and independent agencies. At December 31, 1990 the actuarially-computed annualized covered payroll
was $3,197 million. For the same period, the covered payroll for agencies included in the Commonwealth’s
financial reporting entity was $2,814 million, or 93 percent of total payroll of $3,012 million for the
Commonwealth’s financial reporting entity.

Membership in the SERS is mandatory for most state employes, members and employes of the legislature
and certain elected persons in the executive branch. Certain other employes are not required but are given
the option te participate. At December 31, 1990 the SERS membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving
benefits and terminated employes entitled to

benefits but not yet receiving benefits ... ... 77,840
Current employes:

Vested . ..ot 68,243

Nomvested .. ... ... ... .. ... 43,005

Total members ............coo ... 189,088

The SERS provides retirement, death, and disability benefits. Retirement benefits vest after 10 years of
credited service. Employes who retire at age 60 or, if under age 60 with 35 years of service, are entitled
to an unreduced annual retirement benefit. Members of the legislature and certain law enforcement officers
can retire with full benefits at age 50.

The general annual benefit is 2 percent of the member’s high-three year average salary times years of service.
Members of the legislature who were members of the SERS before March 1, 1974 are entitled to a benefit
of 7.5 percent of average salary for each year of legislative service. Judges are entitled to a benefit of 3
to 4 percent of average salary for each year of judicial service.

Covered employes are required by statute to contribute to the SERS at a rate of 5 percent of their gross
pay except for employes hired on or after July 22, 1983 who contribute at a rate of 6.25 percent of their
gross pay. Increased contributions are required of the previously noted legislators and judges (18.75 percent
and 7.5 to 10 percent of gross pay, respectively) who are entitled to increased benefits. The contributions
are recorded in an individually identified account which is also credited with interest, calculated guarterly
to yield 4 percent per annum, as mandated by statute. Accumulated employe contributions and credited
interest, which amounted to $1,855 million as of December 31, 1990, vest immediately and are returned
upon termination of service if the employe is not eligible for other benefits.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I—Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

Participating agency contributions are also mandated by statute and are based upon an actuarially determined
percentage of gross pay that is necessary to provide the SERS with assets sufficient to meet the benefits
to be paid to SERS members. According to the retirement code, all obligations of the SERS will be assumed
by the Commonwealth should the SERS terminate.

At December 31, 1990 the SERS owned 163,294,950 units of the Wells Fargo Bank Equity Index Fund
P and 32,354,297 units of the Wells Fargo Asset Allocation Fund P, with respective carrying amounts of
$1,638 million and $689 million. The Equity Index Fund represents 17 percent and the Asset Allocation
Fund represents 7 percent of net SERS assets at December 31, 1990. The SERS owned no securities issued
by the Commonwealth or related parties and made no loans to the Commonwealth or related parties during
the year ended December 31, 1990,

Funding Status and Progress: The amount shown as “‘pension benefit obligation™ is a standardized disclosure
measure of the present value of pension benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases, estimated
to be payable in the future as a result of employe service to date. The measure is the actuarial present value
of credited projected benefits and is intended, on an ongoing basis, to facilitate the assessment of the SERS
funding status and progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due and to allow
for appropriate comparison of this data among public employe retirement systems. The measure is independent
of the actuarial funding method used to determine contributions to the SERS as discussed below.

The pension benefit obligation was determined as part of an actuarial valuation at December 31, 1990.
Significant actuarial assumptions used include (a) a rate of return on the investment of present and future
assets of 9.25 percent per year compounded annually, (b) projected salary increases of 4 percent per year
compounded annually, attributable to inflation, (c) additional projected salary increases of 2.5 percent per
year, attributable to merit/promotion, and (d) no postretirement benefit increases.

Net assets in excess of the pension benefit obligation at December 31, 1990 totalled $350 million as calculated
below (expressed in thonsands):

Pension benefit obligation:
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving
benefits and terminated members entitled to
benefits but not yet receiving benefits . ... ... ... $3,554,545

Current employes:

Accumulated member contributions with interest ........... 1,855,312
Employer-financed, vested .. ............. .o - 3,776,219
Employer-financed, nonvested . . ..., 350,255

Total pension benefit obligation............. A 9,536,331

Net assets available for benefits (at market value)................ 9,885,900
Net assets in excess of pension benefit obligation ......... $ 349,569

Contributions: The SERS funding policy provides for periodic member contributions at statutory rates and
employer contributions at actuarially determined rates (expressed as a percentage of annual gross pay) that
are sufficient to accumulate assets to pay benefits when due. All required 1990 contributions were made.

—32—

o
i
i
:
i




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I—Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefits {continued)

Employer contribution rates are determined using the entry age normal actuarial cost method, with
amortization of the unfunded actuarial liability ($1,584 million} and of the supplemental annuities arising
from cost of living and other adjustments over varying pericds ending June 30, 2004, These rates are computed
on a Commonwealth fiscal year basis such that employer contribution rates in effect for the SERS for 1990
reflect a blended average of those in effect through June 30, 1990 and subsequent to that date, as calculated
based upon actuarial vaiuations prepared as of December 31, 1988 and December 31, 1989, respectively.
The actuarially determined contribution requirement for the year ended December 31, 1990 consisted of
(amounts in thousands):
% of Current

Covered
Payroll Amount
Employer normal cost. . .................. ... .... 4.67 $147,070
Amortization of unfunded actuarial liability ......... 5.87 184,861
Amortization of supplemental annuities. ............ 2.14 67,394
Total contribution requirement ................ y 12.68 $399,325

Member contributions amounted to $175 million, or 5.6 percent and employer centributions amounted to
$419 million, or 13.3 percent, of total actual covered payroll of $3,149 million, for the year ended December
31, 1990. Total employer contributions of $419 million exceeded the above actuarially determined contribution
requirement of $399 million due to employer contributions related to employe purchases of prior service
cost and employer contributions related to the transfer of prior employe service from the Public School
Employes’ Retirement System to the SERS. Total employer contributions amounted to $407 million for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991, of which $358 million relates to agencies included in the Commonwealth’s
financial reporting entity. The Commonwealth employer contributions of $358 million approximate 88 percent
of total employer contributions of $407 miliion.

Significant actuarial assumptions used to compute contribution requirements are the same as those used
to compute the pension benefit obligation as described above, except for a statutorily-required rate of return
on investments of 5.5 percent per annum and certain revisions to salary increase assumptions.

THREE-YEAR HISTORICAL TREND INFORMATION
Year Ended December 31

1990 1989 1988
Net assets available for benefits as a
percentage of the pension benefit obligation
applicable to covered employes ............ 103.6% 111.4% 106.7%
Unfunded (assets in excess of) pension
benefit obligation as a percentage of the
SERS’s annual covered payroll ............ (10.6) (33.5) : 2.0}
Employer contributions to the pension plan
as a percentage of annual covered payroll . .. 13.1 13.8 13.8

All required contributions were made, in accordance with actuarially determined requirements, for each
of the three years ended December 31, 1990, 1989 and 1988.

Ten-year historical trend information is available in separate financial reports issued by the SERS. These
separately issued reports include information about progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay
benefits when due.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE. I—Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

The following information is presented in accordance with the reporting requirements of FASB Statement 35.

The calculation of actuarial liabilities under GASB Statement 5 (the pension benefit obligation presented
above) differs principally by the consideration of future salary increases from the calculation required under
FASB Statement 35 of the actuarial present value of accumulated plan benefits presented below.

The accumulated plan benefit information as of December 31, 1990 is as follows (expressed in thousands):

Actuarial present value of accumulated plan benefits:
Vested benefits:

Participants currently receiving payments ....... $4,619,085
Other participants .. .......coovoveaia e 4,026,829
8,645,914

Nonvested benefits . .. ... .. veeir i, 134,783
Total................. e e $8,780,697

Changes in accumulated plan benefits as of December 31, 1990 are as follows (expressed in thousands):

Actuarial present value of accumulated plan benefits

at December 31, 1989 ... . ... .. . i iiii. .. $8,268,430
Changes during the year attributable to:
Passage of tiMe . ...ovvrvivrenen e 354,136
Plan provision changes ...................... 57,331
Change in salary assumptions .. ............... 100,800
Net increase ....... e 512,267

Actuarial present value of accumulated plan benefits
at December 31, 1990 . ... .. ... ... . ... $8,780,697

The significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation of the actuarial present value of accumulated
plan benefits as of December 31, 1990 are as follows:

Mortality
Superannuation (normal retirement) and
early retirement .............. .o The 1971 Group Annuity Mortality Table
Disability ........... oo e Modifications of the 1965 Railroad
' Retirement Board Mortality among
Totally Disabled Annuitants
Assumed rate of return on investments. .. .......... 7.25%

PUBLIC SCHOOL EMPLOYES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Plan Description: The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Public School Employes’ Retirement System (System)
was established July 18, 1917 under the provision of P.L. 1043, No. 343. The System is a cost-sharing
multiple-employer plan and its designated purpose is to provide retirement allowances and other benefits,
including disability and death benefits, to members. As defined by GASB Statement 5, the Commonwealth
is a non-employer contributor to the System.

Membership in the System is mandatory for substantially all full-time public school employes in the
Commonwealth. Certain part-time employes are eligible for membership in the System. At June 30, 1991
there were 632 reporting units, generally school districts, and membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving
benefits and terminated employes entitled

to benefits but not yet receiving benefits ....... 132,000
Current employes:

Vet et e e 125,000

Nonvested ... oo vne i e 76,000
Total MEMbBEIS . ..ot e 333,000



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I—Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991, the covered payroll for public school employes was $5,955
million. Total payroll for public school employes was substantially the same. The annualized covered payroll
at June 30, 1990, the date of the most recent actuarial valuation, was $5,364 million.

Significant amendments to the System were made in the 1975 revision of the Pennsylvania Public School
Employes’” Retirement Code (*“The Code’”) by the Pennsylvania General Assembly. Under the provisions
of the Code, members are eligible for monthly retirement benefits upon reaching (a) age 62, (b) age 60
and 30 or more years of service, or (¢) 35 or more years of service regardless of age. For the period expiring
on September 30, 1993, the Code permits school employes with at least 30 years of credited service to
retire without a reduction in benefits. This so-called ““early retirement window’” does not require a minimum
age in conjunction with length of service for a member to be eligible for full benefits.

Funding Status and Progress: The amount shown as ““pension benefit obligation™ is a standardized disclosure
measure of the present value of pension benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases, estimated
to be payable in the future as a result of employe service to date. The measure is the actuarial present value
of credited projected benefits and is intended to help users assess the System’s funding status on a going-
concern basis, assess progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due, and make
comparisens among public employe retirement systems. The measure is independent of the actuarial funding
method used to determine contributions to the System.

The pension benefit obligation was determined as part of an actuarial valuation at June 30, 1990, the date
of the most recent actuarial report. Significant actuarial assumptions used, which differ from those used
for the June 30, 1989 valuation as a result of Act 23 of 1991, include (a) a rate of return on the investment
of present and future assets of 8.50 percent per year compounded annually, (b) projected salary increases
of 7.50 percent, including an allowance for inflation of 4 percent, National productivity of 1 percent and
merit or seniority increases averaging 2.50 percent, (c) assets valued at cost, (d) no postretirement benefit
increases assumed in the future, and (&) mortality, vesting, retirement age and withdrawal estimates based
on tables furnished by the actuary.

At June 30, 1990 the unfunded pension benefit obligation was $3,598 million as follows (expressed in
thousands):

Pension benefit obligation:
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
and terminated members entitled to benefits but not

yet receiving benefits .. ... ... ... .. L. $ 6,123,851
Current members:
Accumulated member contributions with interest. . .. 3,271,575
System-financed vested ... ........... ... ....... 3,072,800
System-financed nonvested .. ............... ... .. 7,015,416
Total pension benefit obligation .. .............. 19,483,642
Net assets available for benefits, at cost (market value is
$16,897,686) ... 15,885,767
Unfunded pension benefit obligation ............ $ 3,597.875

Ten-year historical trend information is available in separate financial reports issued by the System. These
separately issued reports include information about progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay
benefits when due.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I—Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

Contributions: The contribution policy is set by the Code and requires contributions by active members,
employers and the Commonwealth. The rate of contribution for most active members is set by statute at
5.25 percent of the member’s compensation. For members joining the system on or after July 22, 1983
the rate of contribution is 6.25 percent. The contributions required of employers and the Commonwealth
are based upon an actuarial valuation, using the ‘‘entry age normal’ method, computed as a percentage
of the total compensation of all active members during the period for which the amount is determined. The
combined amounts required from the employers and Commonwealth were 19.18 percent of active member
payroll for the year ended June 30, 1991 and consisted of (amounts in thousands):

% of Current

Covered
Payroll Amount
Employer normal cost........................... 8.28 $ 493,038
Amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liability . . 7.31 435,279
Amortization of supplemental annuities............. 3.59 213,769
Total contribution requirement . ................. 19.18 $1,142,086

The employer and the Commonwealth equally share the cost of required contributions and all required
contributions were made. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991 Commonwezlth school districts contributed
$571 million and the Commonwealth contributed $571 million to the System. The Commonwealth contribution
approximates 10.6 percent of current covered payroll, Employe contributions of $311 million approximate
5.8 percent of covered payroll of $5,364 million for the year ended June 30, 1990, the most recent year
for which actual amounts are available.

The System revised the economic assumptions used for the June 30, 1990 valuation. These revisions resulted
in a reduction in the combined contribution rate amounting to 2.30 percent, effective July 1, 1991. Also,
Act 23 of 1991 provides that employer contributions to amortize the unfunded liability on account of active
members and supplemental annuity payments to annuitants are to be rescheduled over a period of 20 years
from July 1, 1991, with each subsequent annual payment to be 5 percent greater than the previous fiscal
year. This change reduced the combined contribution rate by 2.20 percent.

Also, a health insurance premium assistance program was established effective July 1, 1991 for all eligible
annuitants who elect to participate. Under this provision an employer contribution rate of .50 percent for
premium assistance is to be established for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1991 in order to provide reserves
in the Health Insurance Account as of June 30, 1992 which are sufficient for the payment of premium assistance
during the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1992. Effective July 1, 1992 participating eligible annuitants are
to receive premium assistance payments equal to the lesser of $55 per month or the actual monthly preminm.

Effective July 1, 1991 the combined contribution rate was decreased to 14.90 percent of covered payroll.

The rate of 14.90 percent is comprised of a pension contribution rate of 14.40 percent for pension benefits
plus a health care contribution rate of .50 percent for health insurance premium assistance.

—36—

s
i
|
|




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I—Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefits {(continued)

A summary of the July 1, 1991 combined rate follows:

Combined contribution rate, July 1, 1990...... 19.18%
Less: system experience . ................. (.28)
Less: revised economic assumptions ........ 2.30)
Less: revised amortization period for
unfunded hability .. ... .. ... ... ... .. (2.20)
Add: Health insurance premium assistance . . . .30

Combined contribution rate, July 1, 1991...... 14.90%

Based on the June 30, 1990 valuation, the unfunded actuarial liability is $5,028 million and the average
funding period to amortize this liability is 20 years at July 1, 1991.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991 the System owned no securities issued by school districts, the
Commonwealth or any related parties and made no loans to school districts, the Commonwealth or any
related party.

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Commonwealth provides certain health care benefits for retired employes that meet specified length-
of-service and age requirements. These benefits are provided as a result of negotiated union contracts and
through administrative policy. These benefits are provided through insurance companies whose premiums
are based on the benefits paid during the fiscal year. The Commonwealth recognizes the cost of providing
these benefits as paid, which totalled $89 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991. Approximately
47,000 individuals qualified for this benefit during the fiscal year.

Unemployment and workmen’s compensation is provided for certain individuals in compliance with Federal
and State law. These benefits are provided on a self-insured basis as claims are paid. During the fiscal
year ended June 30, 1991 the cost for these benefits was $8.6 million and $60.5 million, respectively.
Approximately 2,000 individuals received unemployment benefits and 3,000 individuals received workmen’s
compensation benefits.

Certain survivor, scholarship and disability benefits are provided to beneficiaries of state police officers
killed in the line of duty. These benefits are provided through union contracts and approximately 60 individuals
received these benefits during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991 at a cost of $560 thousand.

Disability life insurance is provided to qualifying individuals through union contracts and administrative

policy. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991 approximately 1,800 individuals received benefits at
a cost of $350 thousand.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE J—NOTES AND DEMAND REVENUE BONDS PAYABLE

The Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA), an Enterprise Fund, maintains a line of credit agreement
with the Pennsylvania Treasury Department. Under the agreement, PHFA may borrow up to $20 million.
At the time funds are drawn, interest rates are fixed at 2 points below the current prime rate as listed by
Morgan Guaranty Bank of New York. These funds may be used for any and all purposes for which PHFA
is lawfully established. As of June 30, 1991 PHFA had notes payable of $24.6 million bearing an interest
rate of 8 percent.

The Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA), an Enterprise Fund, has $435.0 million
of demand revenue bonds outstanding and $369.2 million of notes payable at June 30, 1991. Demand revenue
bonds at June 30, 1991 consist of the following (expressed in thousands):

Student Loan Student Loan Student Loan Student Loan
Adjustable Rate Adjustable Rate Adjustable Rate Adjustable Rate
Tender Revenue Tender Revenue Tender Revenne Tender Revenue Student Loan

Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Revenue Bonds
1988 Series D 1988 Series B 1988 Series A 1986 Series A 1984 Series A
Amount issued....... $75,000 $110,000 $100,000 $50,000 $100,000
Date of issue ........ 12/23/88 7/29/88 1/28/88 12/15/86 7119/84
Interest rate . ........ 4.375% 4.375% 4,375% 6.875% 4.0%
Duedate............ 1/1/19 T8 E/1/18 1041716 £2/1/00
Letter of credit:
Principal amount . .. $81,562 $119,625 $106,904 $53,500 $103,082
Expiration date. .. .. 12/31/93 T/31/93 1/31/93 12/31/91 12/15/00

The 1933 bonds bear interest at an adjustable rate determined by PHEAA’s remarketing agent based upon
prevailing market conditions and is reset weekly. The 1986 bonds bear interest at an adjustable rate determined
by PHEAA and its remarketing agent. The 1984 bonds bear interest at a fluctuating rate based on the
remarketing rate of the I.J. Kenny Index and is also reset weekly. All bonds are subject to purchase, at
par plus accrued interest, by PHEAA on the demand of the bondholders upon seven days prior irrevocable
written notice. None of the letters of credit pertaining to PHEAA’s demand revenue bonds have been used
as of June 30, 1991. Subsequent to June 30, 1991 the 1986 bonds were remarketed. The interest rate was
fixed at 7.05 percent through maturity and the requirement of PHEAA to purchase the bonds on demand
was eliminated.

Notes payable for PHEAA at June 30,1991 consist of the following (expressed in thousands):

Dauphin County General Authority Revenue Bond. Interest is
a weighted average rate of 6.8 percent. Interest is paid
semi-annually on March 1 and September 1. Principal is
due through 2009 . ... ... ... ... ... ... ... oo ... A 8,675

Amount due under revolving credit agreement dated February
1, 1991 through February 18, 1992. Interest rate at June
30, 1991 was 6.663 percent. Principal not to exceed $50
million. Secured by student loans ...................... 48,901

Unsecured note payable with interest rate at 7.4 percent, with
annual payments of principal and interest through 1995 ... 20,000

Note payable, interest at 13 week U.S. Treasury bill rate plus
1.25 percent (7.002 percent at June 30, 1991), security
interest in student loans equal to the outstanding principal,
due November 30, 1991, ... ... ... ... .. i iiiinn.... 109,631

Note Purchase agreement dated as of May 1, 1990 through
May 1, 1992. Interest is the 13 week Treasury bill rate
plus .20 percent (5.95 percent at June 30, 1991), secured
by investments and student loans ...................... 182,000

........................................... $ 369,207
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE J—Notes and Demand Revenue Bonds Payable (continued)

Subsequent to June 30, 1991 the terms of the note purchase agreement dated May 1, 1990 were revised.
The new terms permit borrowing up to $260 million which will be secured by student loans. The new maturity
date will be July 1, 1993, but may be extended by mutual agreement of the PHEAA and the lender for
two additional one year periods.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991 the Commonwealth issued $430 million of tax anticipation notes
and $970 million in commercial paper which matured on June 30, 1991. The $49 millicn of interest related
to the notes and commercial paper is shown as a debt service expenditure in the General Fund.

The State System of Higher Education, College and University Funds, has $2.8 million of notes payable
as of June 30, 1991 that are collateralized by an equivalent amount of equipment. The notes bear interest
at rates ranging from 5 percent to 11.5 percent and mature in varying amounts through 1997. The scheduled
principal payments for the notes outstanding at June 30, 1991 follow (expressed in thousands):

1992 ... $ 384
1993 ... 386
1994 ... 375
1995 .. ... ... 387
Thereafter . ................... 1,261

Total . .................. $2,793




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE K—LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Long-term obligations of the Commonwealth at June 30, 1991 (May 31, 1991 for the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission)
and changes for the fiscal year then ended are as follows (expressed in thousands):

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
Revenue Bonds Payable From User
Charges:
Pennsylvania Higher Education
Assistance Agency ...................
Pennsylvanta Housing Finance Agency ... .
Pennsylvania Industrial Development
Authority ..o
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission ... ....
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment
Authority ...

Less: Bond discounts . .. .. .............

TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUNDS . ..........

GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS ACCOUNT GROUP

General Obligation Bonds Payable From
Tax Revenues:
Capital Facilities . ................... ...
Disaster Relief .............. ... ...
Land and Water Development............
Nursing Home Loan Development ........
Project 70 Land Acquisition . ............
Volunteer Companies Loan ..............
Vietnam Conflict Veterans
Compensation. , .. ..................
Water Facilities Loan. ..................
Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization . ... .
State Highway and Bridge Authority ......
Pennsylvania Infrastructure
Investment Authority .................
Agricultural Conservation Easement
Purchase........ccoooiviniiannaan
Refunding Bonds. ................... ..,

Bonds Payable From Lease Rentals:
Pennsylvania Higher Educational
Facilities Authority ...................
State Public School Building Authority . ...

Other General Long-Term Obligations
Payable From Tax Revenues:

Capital Lease and Installment

Purchase Obligations. .................
Self-Insurance — Note O . ...............
Compensated Absences .................
Catastrophic Motor Vehicle Losses .......
Other ... .. e

TOTAL GENERAL LONG-TERM
OBLIGATIONS ACCOUNT GROUP.. ..

Maturity Bonds

Issue Interest Dates Authorized Balance Balance
Dates Rates Through  But Unissued July 1, 1990 Additions Reductions June 30, 1991
1985-90 6.15- 835% 2020 §$ ... % 413000 5 ..., 5 . $ 413,000
1976-91 3.60-14.50% 2028 1,924,688 157,573 63,505 2,018,756
1991 5.80- 7.00% 2011 94,360 278,415 94,360 278,415
1986-89 5.65- 7.85% 2019 1,065,240 60,000 64,135 1,061,105
1990 4.68% 2010 60,000 60,000
'3,497,288 555,988 222,000 3,831,276
....... 110,832 6,038 9,392 107,478
....... $ ... $3386,456 § 549,950 $§ 212,608 $3,723,798
196891 4.15-10.75% 2011 $13,067,013 $3,680,660 § 497,000 § 379,645 $3,798,015
1673-89 4.91- 8.56% 2009 21,908 89,885 L. 5,735 84,150
196991 5.13-10.75% 20117 15,300 261,770 2,000 21,045 242,725
1975-86 5.30- 8.89% 2006 31,000 36,880 4,105 32,775
1970 6.26% 2000 5,785 415 5,370
1977-83 5.32-10.75% 2002 14,895 1,385 13,510
1969-74 5.36- 6.11% 2003 3,000 32,920 G 2,645 30,275
1983-91 6.53- 9.83% 2011 153,000 99,205 11,000 11,795 08,410
1984-91 6.53- 8.86% 2011 62,000 31,580 55,000 6,965 79,615
1968 2.75- 4.00% 1991 19,135 12,195 6,940
1988-91 6.53- 7.07% 2011 232,000 48,750 18,000 2,500 64,250
1991 6.53- 6.87% 2011 93,000 e 7,000 L 7,000
1985-91 6.70- 7.85% 2005 312,042 51,255 38,820 324,477
13,678,221 4,633,507 641,255 487,250 4,787,512
196991 5.50- 9.00% 2025 1,338,515 246,395 80,686 1,504,224
1986-91 5.58- 8.91% 2024 256,500 34,970 36,669 254,801
1,595,015 281,365 117,355 1,759,025
....... 131,915 10,318 11,153 131,080
....... 504,991 243,411 66,850 681,552
....... 251,003 224,010 216,955 258,058
....... 304,300 24,567 31,667 297,200
....... 545,402 385,726 252,668 678,460
1,737,611 888,032 579,293 2,046,350
....... $13,678,221 $7,966,133  $1,810,652  $1,183,898  $8,502,887
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE K—Long-Term Obligations (continued)

The Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA), the Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency
(PHEAA), the Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority, and the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission
(PTC), Enterprise Funds, have pledged all of their revenues for the redemption of revenue bonds outstanding.
Revenue bonds outstanding as reported in this note disclosure for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991 (May
31, 1991 for the PTC) include bond discounts of $107.5 million,

On September 26, 1985, PHEAA issued Student Loan Adjustable Rate Tender Revenue Bonds, 1985 Series
A (1985 Bonds) in the amount of $202 million. The 1985 Bonds bear interest at a rate of 6.8 percent through
maturity. On July 29, 1988 and December 30, 1988 PHEAA issued Student Loan Adjustable Rate Tender
Revenue Bonds, 1988 Series C and E in the amounts of $75 million and $36 million, respectively. Interest
on the 1988 Series C and E bonds is set by the remarketing agent weekly and was 6.296 percent for each
issue at June 30, 1991. The Series C and E bonds are private placements in which the holder may terminate
its agreement to hold the bonds as of August 1, 1998 and January 1, 1999, respectively, PHEAA may call
a mandatory tender each year, on any date from August 1 to November 1 for Series C, and from January
1 to April 1 of each aliernating calendar year for Series E. If the bonds are tendered before maturity date,
they will be remarketed by the remarketing agent. On March 29, 1990 PHEAA issued Student Loan Revenue
Select Variable Rate Bonds 1990 A, B, and C in the amount of $100 million. The Series A and B bonds
bear interest at rates of 9.794 pecent and 4.73 percent, respectively, at June 30, 199} and will thereafter
be adjusted based on orders placed in an auction conducted on the business day before each subsequent
interest period. The Series C bonds interest rate is fixed at 7.5 percent.

The Commonwealth has pledged its full faith and credit for the payment of principal and interest on general
obligation bonds accounted for in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

The Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority and the State Public School Building Authority
have bonds outstanding, reported as General Long-Term Obligations, as of June 30, 1991, which are payable
from the lease rentals of the projects financed. The lease rentals are pledged as collateral for the bonds
outstanding.

The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania by enactment of the General Assembly created the Pennsylvania Energy
Development Authority (PEDA) to finance projects related to energy conservation and research. Fees are
assessed to recover related processing and application costs incurred. The bonds issued by the Authority
represent limited obligations payable solely from payments made by the borrowing entities. The majority
of the bonds are secured by the property financed. Upon repayment of a bond, ownership of acquired property
transfers from the trustee to the entity served by the bond issuance. The PEDA has $175.2 million in revenue
bonds outstanding at June 30, [991. The Commonwealth has no obligation for this debt. Accordingly, neither
the financed assets nor the bonds are included in the accompanying financial statements.

The Commonwealth uses fiscal agents to process payments for the servicing of the majority of its bond
issues. Additional cash with fiscal agents is held by the Federal Government for unemployment compensation
claims.

Inciuded in ““Other’” for Other General Long-Term Obligations payable from tax revenues are the following
(expressed in thousands):

Workmen’s Compensation Security Trust Claims $312,163
Litigation — Note P 182,883
Public Utility Realty Tax Act (PURTA) 133,235
Medical Assistance Cost Settlements 50,179

$678,460

The Commonwealth is liable for underpayments of medical assistance to nursing homes and inpatient hospitals
based on audits performed on the medical assistance program. The PURTA provides for a tax on utility
realty property which is available for appropriation as a general revenue source. The Act also provides
for payment of a tax distribution to local taxing authorities. The Workmen’s Compensation Security Trust
Fund provides for payment of valid claims under the Workmen’s Compensation Law to individuals whose
employments are insured by insolvent insurance carriers. Amounts included in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group at June 30, 1991 relating to Medical Assistance, PURTA, Workmen’s
Compensation Claims and Litigation are not payable with currently expendable available financial resources.

The constitutional debt limit, which allows for the incurrence of debt to be used for capital projects without
electorate approval as specifically itemized in a capital budget, was $23.7 billion as of August 31, 1991,
with net debt outstanding of $4.1 billion.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE K —Long-Term Obligations (continued)

The following table presents annual principal and interest payments for long-term debt outstanding at June 30, 1991 (May 31,
1991 for the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission) (expressed in thousands):

1997
Through
1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 Maturity Total
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
Revenue Bonds:
Pennsylvania Higher Education
Assistance Agency .................. $ 28919 $ 28,920 $ 28919 $ 28,920 $ 28919 $ 737,674 $ 882,271
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency . ... 188,430 190,909 191,728 189,436 185,536 4,159,689 5,105,728
Pennsylvania Industrial Development
Authority ......... ... .o L. 11,427 28,847 40,339 39,387 37,759 270,822 428,581
Pennsylvania Turapike Commission ....... 73,788 86,979 87,588 87,248 86,997 2,135,394 2,557,994
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment
Authority ... 3,794 5,821 5,901 6,200 6,253 77,486 105,455
Total Principal and Interest ............ 306,358 341,476 354,475 351,19 345,464 7,381,065 9,080,029 -
Less: Interest Payments ............. 269,320 283,372 278,943 273,732 208,496 3,874,800 5,248,753
TOTFAL ENTERPRISE FUNDS........... $ 37,038 3 58,104 $ 75,532 3 77,459 $ 76,968 $3,506,175 $3,831,276
GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS ACCOUNT GROUP
General Obligation Bonds:
Capital Facilities .. ..................... $ 613,202 $ 602,888 $ 534,682 $ 503,048 $ 432,957 $2,704,684 $5,391,461
Disaster Relief ............... ... ..... 10,657 10,634 10,597 10,570 10,536 60,505 113,499
Land and Water Development............ 36,335 35,642 35,489 35,338 35,232 147,271 325,307
Nursing Home Loan Development . ....... 0,319 6,270 6,218 6,166 3,848 13,460 42,281
Project 70 Land Acquisition ............. T70 770 769 775 779 3,125 6,988
Volunteer Companies Loan .............. 2,436 2,366 2,292 2,220 2,143 7,257 18,714
Vietnam Conflict Veterans
Compensation ............cooveee.on. 4,560 4,559 4,562 4,567 4,575 16,277 39,100
Water Facilittes Loan . .................. 14,981 14,671 14,090 13,853 12,811 90,116 160,522
Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization .. ... 12,144 13,224 10,543 9,698 6,903 71,760 124,272
State Highway and Bridge Autherity ...... 7,061 7,061
Pennsylvania Infrastructure
Investrnent Authority ................. 7,122 7,421 7,206 6,990 6,774 75,501 107,014
Agricultural Conservation Easement
Purchase. . ... 700 782 761 139 718 8,189 11,889
Refunding Bonds. ...................... 59,908 56,877 48,585 42,230 39,270 205,962 452,832
Total Principal and Interest ............ 776,195 756,104 675,794 636,194 556,546 3,400,107 6,800,940
Less: Interest Payments . ............ ) 291,224 262,293 230,159 205,239 177,203 847,310 2,013,428
484,971 493,811 445,635 430,955 379,343 2,552,797 4,787,512
Other Bonds:
Pennsylvania Higher Educational
Facilities Authority ................... 133,882 130,198 132,868 125,746 122,174 2,064,345 2,709,213
State Public School Building Autherity . ... 41,314 39,929 38,310 32,639 27,509 228,367 408,068
Total Principal and Interest ............ 175,196 170,127 171,178 158,385 149,683 2,292,712 3,117,281
Less: Interest Payments ............. 110,812 106,140 101,986 97,450 03,827 848,041 1,358,256
64,384 63,987 69,192 60,935 55,856 1,444,671 [,759,025
TOTAL GENERAL OBLIGATION
AND OTHER BONDS................ 549,355 557,798 514,827 491,890 435,199 3,997,468 6,546,537
Other General Long-Term Obligations....... 225,256 87,812 83,986 83,029 78,820 1,487,447 2,046,350
TOTAL GENERAL LONG-TERM
OBLIGATIONS ACCOUNT GROUP. ... $ 774611 $ 645,610 $ 508,813 § 574919 $ 514,019 $5,484,915 $8,592,887
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE K—Long-Term Obligations (continued)

The Commonwealth has entered into agreements to lease various facilities and equipment. Such agreements
are in substance purchases (capital leases) and are reported as Other General Long-Term Obligations and
Capital Lease Obligations for the College and University Funds.

The following is a schedule by fiscal year of future minimum lease payments under capital leases together
with the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of June 30, 1991 (expressed in thousands):

General
Long-Term College and
Obligations University Funds
Fiscal year ending June 30: ‘
100 e e $ 7,830 $ 19,675
L 7.473 19,590
100 e 7,E51 22,597
100 e 7.061 15,627
1906 e 6,713 12,833
Laler YeaTS .o e 126,611 175,737
Total minimum lease PAYMENS .. ...\t 162,839 266,059
Less: amount representing estimated executory costs
included in total minimum lease payments ............ 20,253 .
Net minimum lease payments . .. .............. . 00 v.an... 142,586 266,059
Less: amount representing interest ............._........ 78,286 115,581
Present valve of net minimum lease payments .............. 64,300 150,478
Installment purchase obligations .......................... 66,780
TOTAL CAPITAL LEASE AND INSTALLMENT

PURCHASE OBLIGATIONS $131,080 - $150,478

At June 30, 1991 general fixed assets included $96.9 million of buildings and $8.8 million of equipment
being procured by capital leases. A total of $88.6 million in general fixed assets is being procured by
installment purchase arrangements. :

Capital lease obligations outstanding as of June 30, 1991 for the College and University Funds relate to
various capital projects currently under construction for which a related public financing authority is the
lessor. Revenue bonds were issued by the public financing authority to provide funding for these capital
projects. College and University Funds fixed assets include $30.3 million of construction in progress related
to capital leases at June 30, 1991,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE L—REFUNDED DEBT

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991 the Commonweaith issued bonds, accounted for in the General
Long-Term Obligations Account Group, to advance refund $78 million of previously issued bonds as follows
{(expressed in thousands):

Duquesne University Dugquesne University Messiah College
Revenue Refunding Revenue Revenue
First Series A 1991  Bonds Series A 1991  Bonds Series D 1991 Bonds First Series 1990

Issuing Authority........ Commonwealth PHEFA PHEFA PHEFA
Bond Type . ............ G.0. Revenue Revenue Revenue
Date Issued ............ 1-1-91 4-1-91 4-1-91 8-2-90
Refunding Bonds Principal $51,225 $14,235 - $7,055 $20,410
Interest Rate (Refunding) . 6.7% 7.1% 7.1% 6.9%
Refunded Series......... First Series 1983 Duguesne University ~ Duquesne University Messiah Coilege
Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds
Series A 1986 Series B 1986 First Series 1985/1987
Refunded Bonds Principal $44,335 $11,665 $3,650 $14,225/%4,105
Interest Rate (Refunded) .. 3.9% 7.3% 7.3% 8.8%/7.3%
Payment to Escrow Agent $50,456 $12,031 $3,666 $19,412
Debt Service Savings .... $1,876 $2,870 $37 $29)
Economic Gain ......... $2,232 $805 $105 $460

The net refunding bond proceeds, after payment of underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs,
were used to purchase U.S. Government securities which were deposited in irrevocable trusts to provide
for all future debt service payments on the refunded bonds. As a result, the refunded bonds are considered
to be defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the General Long-Term Obligations
Account Group.

On May 15, 1991 the Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority (PIDA), an Enterprise Fund, issued
$278.4 million of Series A and B 1991 Economic Development Revenue Bonds with an average interest
rate of 6.3 percent to advance refund $85.9 million of outstanding 1976, 1978, 1982 and 1984 Series bonds
with an average interest rate of 10.2 percent, and to provide funds for the return of contributed capital
to the Commonweaith. Of the net proceeds of $272.8 million (after payment of $3.6 million in underwriting
fees, insurance, and other issuance costs) $93.8 million were used to purchase U.S. government securities
which were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service
payments on the refunded bonds. As a result, the refunded bonds are considered to be defeased and the
liability for those bonds has been removed from the financial statements.

Although the advance refunding resulted in the recognition of an accounting loss of $7.6 million for the
year ended June 30, 1991 the PIDA in effect reduced its aggregate debt service payments by almost $3.9
million over the next 20 years and obtained an economic gain of $10.5 million.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991, the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA), an Enterprise
Fund, advance refunded $1.6 million of limited obligation residential development bonds, issue 1985B.
The PHFA refunded these bonds by depositing sufficient funds, which were used to purchase U.S. Treasury
State and Local Government Notes, in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future
debt service payments on the refunded bonds. As a result, the refunded bonds are considered to be defeased
and the liability for these bonds has been removed from the financial statements. A loss of $61 thousand
resulted from the refunding.

At June 30, 1991 $1.1 billion of bonds outstanding, that were previously accounted for in the General Long-
Term Obligations Account Group, have been defeased through advance refundings. Included are $312 million
of general obligation bonds and $235 million and $544 million of other bonds for the State Public School
Building Authority and the Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority (PHEFA), Debt Service
Funds, respectively. At June 30, 1991 the PIDA and the PHFA have $85.9 million and $1.6 million of
bonds outstanding, respectively, that have been defeased through advance refundings.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE M—RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETARY AND GAAP BASIS AMOUNTS

The Commonwealth adopts formal annual budgets for the General and three Special Revenue Funds (Motor
License, State Lottery and Workmen’s Compensation Administration). In addition, the State Public School
Building Authority approves a formal annual budget for its operations and is included as a Budgeted Special
Revenue Fund.

The Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Unreserved/Undesignated Fund
Balances—Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)—presents comparisons of the legally adopted budget, as
amended, with actual data on a budgetary basis, which differs from GAAP primarily by the omission of
certain revenue and expenditure accruals.

The following presents a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis of reporting {expressed
in thousands):

Special
General Revenune
Fund Funds
BUDGETED FUNDS:
Budgetary basis — revenues and other sources under expenditures . . . . $ (589,826) $ (£21,562)
Adjustments:
To adjust revenues, other financing sources and related
receivables and deferred revenue. ., ... ... ... ... ..., (344,918) 1,169,209
To adjust expenditures, other financing uses and related accounts
payable and accrued liabilities ............ ... ... ... . ... ... (1,615,827 (1,358,070}
To adjust encumbrances. .. ............. ... i 1,473,988 165,452
Net adjustments . .. .. ... 0 it e (486,757) (23,409)

NONBUDGETED FUNDS:

GAAP basis — revenues and other sources under expenditures and
Other Uses .. ... ..o e P (1,855)

TOTAL ALL FUNDS:

GAAP basis — revenues and other sources under expenditures and
OtIEI- USES .« . . . ittt et e e e $ (1,076,583 $ (146,826)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE N—SEGMENT INFORMATION—ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The Commonwealth has seven major Enterprise Funds which provide for a limited access highway system, industrial development loans,
workmen’s compensation insurance services, liquor sales, student loans and scholarships, low-cost housing and capital development loans.

Segment information for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991, unless otherwise noted, is as follows (expressed in thousands):

Operating revenues . .................
Depreciation. ............... ...
Operating inco_rnc (lossy ..............
Operating transfers in................
Operating transfers out ... ..o.vvnvn. ..
Net income (loss) ........ooveraa. s

Capital contributions . ................

Acquisition and construction of
capital assets

Net increase (decrease) incash ........
Total assets

Bonds and other long-term liabilities
payable from operating revenues .....

Total fund equity . ......... ...t
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Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania ~ Pexmsylvania State State Higher Pennsylvania ~ Pennsylvania
Turnpike Indusirial Workmen’s Stores Edneation Housing Infrastructure Other Total
Commission ~ Devefopment Insurance Fund Fund Assistance Finance Investment Enterprise Enterprise
(May 31, 1991)  Authority  (Dec. 31, 1990) (June 25, 1991)  Agency Agency Authority Funds Funds
.$ 220,721 $ 28,963 $ 315,107 § 657,257 § 373,343 § 214,580 § 8,573 $ 32,655 $1,851,199
63,521 588 4,561 6,408 245 23 834 76,180
42,097 14,324 (57.311) 41,698 (180,612) 22,520 1,659 11,758 (103,867)
186,452 6,500 192,952
120,000 39,428 159,428
59,780 6,732 (231,226) 4,725 5,840 27,854 1,659 13,062 (111,574)
{214,000) 60,202 4,047 (149,751)
309,713 196 9,232 6,767 604 18 582 327,112
13 218 591 165 21,672 2,316 (43) 24,932
2,063,442 545,397 972,291 160,571 1,540,409 2,487,863 348,633 269,004 8,387,610
1,024,121 276,402 785,788 1,217,207 1,974,828 60,000 5,338,346
917,553 266,236 88,040 12,758 209,921 315,782 288,212 264,957 2,363,459
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE O—SELF-INSURANCE

Effective July 1, 1983 the Commonwealth became self-insured for losses for all statutory worker’s
compensation and medical payments to employes injured on the job after June 30, 1983. On July 31, 1990
the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund transferred approximately $101.8 million to individual Commonwealth
agencies. This cash transfer represents the unpaid lability for worker’s compensation claims incurred prior
to July 1, 1983. As a result of the commutation of the employe disability liability and related cash transfer,
the Commonwealth became self-insured for all future worker’s compensation claim payments. The employe
disability claim liabilities listed below were determined as of June 30, 1991, without regard to the date
of injury, based on reserves computed from the Commonwealth’s claim experience.

The Commonwealth is self-insured for tort liability claims. Major tort self-insurance areas include automobile,
general tort, employe and transportation-related liability claims. Tort liabilities were determined as of June
30, 1991 based on reserves computed from the Commonwealth’s claim experience.

At June 30, 1991 the following amounts are reported as General Fund and Motor License Fund, a Special
Revenue Fund, accrued liabilities representing the estimate of payments to be made from currently expendable
available financial resources for accidents occurring on or before June 30, 1991 (expressed in thousands):

General Fund

Employe disability . . ................ $ 53,500
Auwtomobile. .......... ... ... ..., 2,559
General tort ....................... 1,246
Employe . ......................... 758

Total ...................... $ 58,063

Motor License Fund
Transportation-related . .. ........., .. $ 11,854

The portion of Commonwealth self-insurance liabilities that will not be liquidated with currently expendable,
available financial resources at June 30, 1991 is reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Account
Group as follows (expressed in thousands):

Employe disability . ................. $247,288
Transportation-related .. ............. 380,919
General tort ....................... 28,643
Employe .......................... 18,925
Automobile........... ... ... . ... 5,777

Total .. ... ... ... .. ... .. $681,552

Prior to July 1, 1983, The State Workmen’s Insurance Fund, an Enterprise Fund, was the Commonwealth’s
employe disability insurance carrier.

—47—




3t e e e ket 3 Sl ik

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE P—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Construction and Other Commitments: At June 30, 1991 the Department of Transportation and the
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission have contractual commitments of approximately $798 million and $394
million, respectively, for various highway construction and mass transit projects. Financing for these future
expenditures will be primarily from approved federal grants and general obligation bond sales. In addition,
the Commonwealth has certain contractual commitments for future purchases of various goods and services
approximating $2.9 billion at June 30, 1991. These commitments are contingent upon availability of financial
resources.

At June 30, 1991, the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority and the Pennsylvania Industrial
Development Authority, which are Enterprise Funds, had $470 million and $127.9 million, respectively,
in approved loans that had not been disbursed.

Operating Lease Commitments: The Commonwealth has commitments to lease certain buildings and
equipment. Future minimum rental commitments for noncancelable operating leases as of June 30, 1991
were as follows (expressed in thousands):

Fiscal year ending June 30:

I90 e $108,204
1993 i e e 74,363
1904 i 59,024
L 45,874
1996 ot e 30,473
Later ¥EAIS ... ...\ttt e 199,956

Total Minimum Lease Payments . ..................... $517,894

Rental expenditures/expenses for all operating leases for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991 amounted to
$160 million.

Litigation: The Commonwealth is a defendant in numerous legal proceedings pertaining to matters normally
incidental to routine operations. Such litigation includes, but is not limited to, claims asserted against the
Commonwealth arising from alleged torts, atleged breaches of contracts, condemnation proceedings and
other alleged violations of Commonwealth and Federal laws. The Commonwealth has recorded accrued
liabilities at June 30, 1991 with respect to torts as described in Note O and as follows with respect to other
matters of litigation for which the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome is probable (expressed in thousands):

General Fund . ..... i e e $ 3,787
Motor License Fund .. ... ... ..., 7,000
Capital Facilities Fund. ...t 1,669
Other General Long-Term Obligations. ............... 182,883

Additionally, the Commonwealth has been involved over the past several years in certain legal proceedings
relative to bank taxes and insurance company taxes and a labor union case, which continues into the present
year. The Commonwealth is vigorously contesting these cases, but if unsuccessful, the Commonwealth could
be required to make settlements from the General Fund of approximately $730 million for bank taxes, up
to $90 million in insurance company taxes-and $96 million to labor union employes. Other cases that the
Commonwealth is currently vigorously contesting could range from approximately $6 to $148 million, $1
to $45 million, and $4 to $40 million of additional liabilities for the General Fund, Capital Projects Funds
and Special Revenue Funds, respectively.

Based on the current status of all these legal proceedings for which accruals have not been made, it is the

opinion of the Commonwealth’s management and counsel that they will not have a material effect on the
Commonwealth’s financial position.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE P—Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

Federal Grants: The Commonwealth receives significant financial assistance from the Federal government
in the form of grants and entitlements, including several non-cash programs (which are not included in
the general purpose financial statements). Receipt of grants is generally conditioned upon compliance with
terms and conditions of the grant agreements and applicable Federal regulations, including the expenditure
of resources for eligible purposes. Substantially all grants are subject to either the Federal Single Audit
Act or to financial and compliance audits by the grantor agencies of the Federal government or their designees.
Disallowances and sanctions as a result of these audits may become liabilities of the Commonwealth. The
Commonwealth is currently involved in administrative and legal proceedings, with certain Federal agencies,
contesting various disallowances and sanctions related to Federal Assistance Programs ranging from $1
to $107 million. The Commonwealth’s management believes ultimate disallowances and sanctions, if any,
will not have a material effect on the general purpose financial statements.

At June 30, 1991 the Commonwealth had custody of $361 million in Federal Food Stamps. These food
stamps will be distributed to eligible recipients in accordance with Federal regulations.

Student Loan Guarantees: The Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA), an Enterprise
Fund, guarantees loans made by private lenders to certain resident students. Total outstanding guarantees
issued by PHEAA approximated $6.7 billion at June 30, 1991. The U.S. Department of Education reinsures
losses under these guarantees up to 100 percent until losses are in excess of 5 or 9 percent of the total loans
in repayment status, then the’ reinsurance rate decreases to 90 and 80 percent, respectively.

Other Contingency: The State Lottery Fund, a Special Revenue Fund, has entered into agreements with
insurance companies under which the Lottery purchases annuities under group contracts which provide
payments corresponding to the State Lottery Fund’s obligation to prize winners. The Commonwealth would
be liable for such future payments if the insurance companies would default on their payment. In the event
of default, the Commonwealth would have to fund future prize payments amounting to $2.1 billion, discounted
at an interest rate of 8.99 percent to a net present value of $996 million at June 30, 1991,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE Q—MEDICAL PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY CATASTROPHE LOSS FUND

The Medical Professional Liability Catastrophe Loss Fund, an Agency Fund, acts primarily as an agent
to facilitate the payment of claims covering excess liability of health care providers practicing in the
Commonwealth. The Fund levies surcharges to health care providers to pay settled claims and administrative
expenses paid on behalf of health care providers during the prior year. The actuarially computed liability
to the health care providers for claims outstanding at June 30, 1991 totals $1,948.5 million ($1,376.7 million
at present value based on the expected payment pattern and an assumed long-term interest rate of 8 percent).
At June 30, 1991 $107 million is payable with expendable available financial resources and is reported
as a fund liability. The remaining claims will be funded exclusively through assessments to health care
providers in future years as claims are settled and paid and, therefore, do not represent liabilities of the
Commonwealth. The following is a summary of the increases and decreases of the Fund’s assets for the
year ended June 30, 1991 (expressed in thousands):

Fund assets, July 1, 1990........................ $120,002
Surcharges to health care providers................ 123,116
Investment earnings. ... ........ ... aiiii... 8,550
Payments to claimants. .. .............. ... (132,160)
Admimstrative COSIS . ... . vt e e (10,544)
Fund assets, June 30, 1991 ...... .. ... ... . ... ... $108,964

NOTE R—DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Commonwealth offers its employes a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, which is administered by the State Employes’ Retirement System,
permits participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts deferred under the plan
are not available to employes until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency.

Al} amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with the amounts,
and all income attributable to these amounts are solely the property and rights of the Commonwealth, subject
only to the claims of the Commonwealith’s general creditors. Participants’ rights under the plan are equal
to those of general creditors of the Commonwealth in an amount equal to the fair market value of the deferred
account of each participant. The Commonwealth has no liability for losses under the plan but does have
the duty of due care that would be required of an ordinary prudent investor. The Commonwealth believes
it is unlikely that plan assets will be used to satisfy future claims of general creditors.

Of the $50.0 million in assets (at market value) reported in the Deferred Compensation Fund, an Agency
Fund, at December 31, 1990, $49.8 million relates to participants employed by organizations included in
the Commonwealth’s financial reporting entity. The remaining balance relates to participants employed by
organizations not included in the Commonwealth’s financial reporting entity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE S—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On June 1, 1991 the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission, an Enterprise Fund, issued $273 million of Series
L Revenue Bonds primarily for the purpose of advance refunding certain of the 1986 Series A Bonds. The
Series L Bonds pay interest semiannually commencing on December 1, 1991. In addition, the remarketing
of the $48 million of 1986 Series I Bonds scheduled for June 3, 1991 was extended to coincide with the
remarketing of the $72 million 1986 Series J Bonds on July 1, 1991. The Series I and J Bonds were remarketed
into a fixed mode with interest rates varying from 4.9 percent to 7 percent and maturing in varying amounts
through December 1, 2017. Accordingly, these bonds have been classified as long-term debt at May 31, 1991.

During the month of July, 1991 the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (PENNVEST), an
Enterprise Fund, issued $50 million of 1991 Series A Revenue Bonds. These bonds were issued to fund
PENNVEST’s loan pool program, to provide financing for the eligible costs of projects under the PENNVEST
Act for the benefit of governmental units in the Commonwealth, and to pay all or a portion of the costs
of issuing the bonds. The 1991 Series A Bonds are secured by PENNVEST’s revenues and a letter of credit
issued by Tokai Bank, Limited.

On August 28, 1991 the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA), an Enterprise Fund, issued $85
million and $35 million of Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series 1991-31 and 1991-32, respectively.
These bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 4.98 percent to 8.95 percent, and are due in varying amounts
from April 1, 1993 through October 1, 2023. The proceeds of these bonds will be used for single family
mortgage loans.

On September 19, 1991 the Commonwealth issued $1.45 billion of Tax Anticipation Notes, First Series
of 1991-92. The notes are payable from and secured by the pledges of revenues to be received in the General
Fund during the fiscal year ending June 30, 1992. These obligations are due and payable not later than
June 30, 1992.

During the months of September, October, and November 1991 the Commonwealth issued $87 million of
General Obligation Bond Anticipation Notes, Subseries 1991 Al.
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Congress shall make no law respecting an establishment of religion, or o
prohibiting the free exercise thereof; or abridging the freedom of speech, ||
or of the press, or the right of the people peaceably to assemble, and to

petition the Government for a redress of grievances. o i

The Bill of Rights 8
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Combining Financial Statements and Schedules
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**EXPLANATORY NOTES: On September 25, 1789, the Congress proposed twelve articles of amendment
10 the Constitution of the United States. Except for the first two, they were ralified by the required number of States
- hy December 15, 1791, and these became the first ten amendments. They have since been known as the Bill of Rights.

The original first two articles in brief were: ARTICLE I — Regulating the number of representatives
according to the population of the State. Article Il — Senators and Representlatives cannot increase their salaries
during their present term in office.
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A well regulated Melitia, being necessary to the security of a free State,
the right of the people fo keep and bear Arms, shall not be infringed.

- The Bill of Rights
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¥*EXPLANATORY NOTES: On September 25, 1789, the Congress proposed twelve articles of amendment
Lo the Constitution of the United States, Except for the first two, they were ratified by the required number of States
by December 15, 1791, and these became the first ten amendments. They have since been known as the Bill of Rights.

The original first two articles in brief were: ARTICLE I - Regulating the number of representalives
according to the population of the State. Article IT — Senators and Representatives cannot increase their salaries
during their present term in office.
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
DESCRIPTIONS

Special revenue funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
legally restricted to expenditure for specified purposes.

State Lottery Fund — to account for the payment of prizes to winners in the state lottery, for property tax and rent
assistance to the elderly, for mass transit fare subsidies, for the inflation dividend program for the elderly and for a
partial rebate of drug and medical costs incurred by the elderly.

Motor License Fund — to account for highway and bridge improvement, design and maintenance, for the purchase
of Rights-of-Way, for aviation activities, for transportation licensing and safety activities, for payment of subsidies
for construction and maintenance of roads, and for financing Pennsylvania State Police highway patrol operations.

Workmen’s Compensation Administration Fund — to account for the administration of the Pennsylvania Workmen’s
Compensation Act and the Pennsylvania Occupational Disease Act. The Fund assesses insurance companies and self-
insured businesses a periodic fee for costs incurred in administering these Acts.

State Public School Building Authority — to account for the administration of the State Public School Building Authority
{(SPSBA). The SPSBA acts as a financing authority for the construction and improvement of public school facilities.
Excess funds, after payment of debt service and administrative costs, are returned to the public schools.

Pharmaceutical Assistance Fund - to account for a limited pharmaceutical assistance program for the Commonwealth’s
senior citizens who are 65 years of age or older.

Water Facilities Loan Fund — to account for the implementation of the water project loan referendum that authorizes
the Commonwealth to approve loans to local water companies for the repair, construction, extension and improvement
of water supply systems, dams and port facilities and water control systems. Repayments of principal and interest from
loans are transferred te the General Fund.

Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization Fund — to account for the promoetion of economic redevelopment throughout
Pennsylvania, for grants and loans for industrial and small business development, for acquisition of equipment for
vocational programs in secondary schools, and for agricultural and recreational programs.

Hazardous Sites Cleanup Fund — to account for cleaning up abandoned hazardous waste sites throughout the
Commonwealth and restoring the land to productive use.

Fish and Game Fund — to account for the administration and enforcement of fish and game laws and for the protection
and propagation of game and aquatic life,

Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority — to account for the administration of the Pennsylvania Higher
Educational Facilities Authority (PHEFA). The PHEFA acts as a financing authority for the construction and improvement
of higher educational institutions. Excess funds, after payment of debt service and administrative costs, are returned
to the higher educational institutions.

Other — to account for programs rejated to conservation and protection of natural resources, the preservation of historical

landmarks, administrative and regulatory activities of various departmental programs, and other miscellaneous
Commonwealth activities.
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES—
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

BUDGETED SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

{Expressed in Thousands) , \

!7 State Lottery Motor License
Variance ’ Variance
Favorable Favorable i
Budget Actual (Unfavorable} Budget Actual {Unfavorable) ! }
L
REVENUES:
State Programs:
Taxes, netof refunds ...... ... ... . . .ol $ .... 3 ... ... % 9303812 $ 922423 % (8,389)
LOMEry TECEIPIS o v v v oo meae e e aa et 844,190 209,825 (34,365) .. I .
Licenses and fees .. ... .ot . TN e 469,600 459,321 (10,279)
Departmental services .. ... ... iii 5,767 5,767 e 72,379 72,379 P
{0117 U O 6,707 12,484 5,777 110,343 87,793 (22,5500 i
TOTAL STATE PROGRAMS . ...................... 856,664 828,076 (28,588) 1,583,134 1,541,916 (41,218) "
Federal Programs ................... ... i 60,617 57,869 (2,748) 674,705 488,837 (185,868)
TOTAL REVENUES ........ ... i 917,281 885,945 (31,336) 2,257,839 2,030,753 (227,086) :
EXPENDITURES:
State Programs:
General GOVEIMMENt . ... ..ottt 273,211 247,537 25,674 237,170 205,805 31,365
Protection of persons and property ............. ... ... L e e 193,583 191,237 2,346 ‘l
Public health and welfare . ......................... ... 735,116 727,048 8,068 e e e e :
Public ediCalion . . .vv v vnr oo .- P e 5,196 4,757 439
Transportation . .. ... o i e e C e 1,209,118 1,159,402 49,716 -
TOTAL STATE PROGRAMS .. ..................... 1,008,327 974,585 33,742 1,645,067 1,561,201 83,866 i
Federal Programs ................ ......oiiiiininnons, 60,617 57,869 2,748 674,705 488,837 185,868 C
TOTAL EXPENDITURES ... ... ... . i, 1,068,944 1,032,454 36,490 2,319,772 2,050,038 269,734 .
k
L
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES. . ... (151,663) (146,509) 5,154 (61,933) (19,285) 42,648
OTHER FINANCING. SOURCES:
Prior year 1apses ... ... ottt e 17,841 17,841 AT 23,426 23,426
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES .. ittt e 17,841 17,841 e 23,426 23,426
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES .............. .. ... .. (133,822) (128,668) 5,154 (38,507) 4,141 42,648
UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES
(BUDGETARY BASIS), JULY 1, 1990 ................ 154,393 154,393 e 56,356 56,356
UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES
(BUDGETARY BASIS), JUNE 30,1991 ............... $ 20,571 % 25,725 % 5,154 % 17,849 § 60,497 § 42,648




For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1991

(Expressed in Th ds)

Total |

Workmen’s Compensation Administration State Public School Building Authority
Variance Variance Variance
Favorable Favorahle Favorable

Budget Actual {Unfavorable} Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$ 17,780 % 19,787  § 1,998 % 3 $ $ 948,601 $ 942210 § (6,391)
e e e 844,190 809,825 (34,365)
1,397 1,205 T {192) 470,997 460,526 (10,471)
939 939 79,085 79,085
2,500 1,166 (1,334) 2,272 1,030 (1,242) 121,822 102,473 (19,349)
20,289 20,953 664 4,608 3,174 (1,434) 2,464,695 2,394,119 (70,576)
PP P . e R 735,322 546,706 {188,616)
20,289 20,953 664 4,608 3,174 (1,434) 3,200,017 2,940,825 (259,192)
19,789 19,655 134 £,718 1,708 { 531,888 474,705 57,183
193,583 191,237 2,346
735,116 727,048 8,068
5,196 4,757 439
e e e e .. 1,209,118 1,159,402 49,716
19,785 19,655 134 1,718 1,708 10 2,674,901 2,557,149 117,752
L IV e e 735,322 546,706 188,616
19,789 19,655 134 1,718 1,708 10 3,410,223 3,103,855 306,368
500 1,298 798 2,890 £,466 (1,424) (210,206) (163,030) 47,176

201 201 41,468 41,468

201 201 41,468 41,468
701 1,499 798 2,890 1,466 (1,424) (168,738) (121,562) 47,176

10,142 10,142 11,639 11,639 232,530 232,530
) 10,843 % 11,641 % 798 % 14,529 % 13,105 % (1.424) 3 63,792 § 110,968 § 47,176
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**EXPLANATORY NOTES: On September 25, 1789, the Congress proposed twelve articles of amendment
to the Constitution of the United States. Except for the first two, they were ratified by the required number-of States )
by December 15, 1791, and these became the first ten amendments. They have since been known as the Bill of Rights. -

The criginal first two articles in brief were: ARTICLE I — Regulating the number of representatives
according to the population of the State. Article IT — Senators and Representatives cannot increase their salaries
during their present term in office.
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Amendment L

No Soldier shall, in time of peace be quartered in any house, without the
consent of the Owner, nor in time of war, but in a manner to be
prescribed by law.

The Bill of Rights
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
DESCRIPTIONS

Debt service funds account for the accumulation of resources, principally from transfers
from other funds, for the payment of general long-term debt principal and interest.

Disaster Relief Redemption Fund — to account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued for the
rehabilitation of areas of the Commonwealth affected by the floods of 1971, 1972, and 1977. Funding consists of transfers
from the General Fund.

Water Facilities Loan Redemption Fund — to account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued
for loans to lacal water companies for the repair, construction, extension and improvement of water supply systems,
dams and port facilities and water control systems. Funding consists of transfers from the General Fund and the Water
Facilities Loan Fund.

Capital Debt Fund — to account for the payment of principal and interest related to general obligation bonds issued
for capital projects authorized by Capital Budget Acts. Funding consists of transfers from the General Fund and the
Motor License Fund.

Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority — to account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds
issued by the Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority (PHEFA). The PHEFA acts as the financing authority
for the construction and improvement of higher educational institutions. Funding consists of rental payments collected
for the use of the facilities.

State Public School Building Authority — to account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued by
the State Public School Building Authority (SPSBA). The SPSBA acts as a financing authority for the construction
and improvement of public school facilities. Funding consists of rental payments collected for the use of the facilities
and transfers from the SPSBA Special Revenue Fund.

Land and Water Development Sinking Fund — to account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued
for the acquisition, development and improvements to Commonwealth land and water facilities. Funding consists of
transfers from the General Fund.

Other — to account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued for loans to local water companies for

improvements to water supply systems, to nursing homes and volunteer fire companies, for the promotion of economic
redevelopment and for compensation to Vietnam Veterans. Funding consists primarily of transfers from the General Fund.

—65—




Sor6sT  $ LLT'OT $  098°1 §  996'11 $ €65'TI1 $  pL6BOE 0§ T9EE ¥E8°C g mHUZﬂ.—«.H ANOA ONY SHLLTIIVI'T TYLOL
BLLITET 80Z'1 £ 996°%1 £65°T11 0L6°E 9g 4 T SHINVYIVE ANNd TV.EOL
Ah.mv ﬁh‘mv DR o e . e PR ) [ I L I TR R B AHﬁOEOﬁV Ewﬂﬁm_WUﬁﬂD
787°69 T T 2981 0TH'L9 T : : UTrTossrereriien o SUOQ IS0 JO JUSWSINOY
9LT'S $92'1 3 Co T 0L6°€ 9¢ z AR spuoq uonediqo [essued Jo ALY
AIARS 1920
110y pajeudisacy
JpaAlasaIun)
F\LNANW - e e . P .QO.—AM.H MFHJXV - TR R L T I R R P R e mﬂﬂﬂﬂbmﬂ.ﬁhm EHQTWES
110} PAAIasYy
wamey pung
£89°LT1 696°71 LSSl T : +00°S0T A 4% : 3/ S Sttt SHILIIEVYIT TVLOL
0ZLT 72 6 . - . e % T . e e a A e SUIIGE 190
thm@w LR P o e e e —#hrwm « s . L S R R T T DB=0>0.H UQ:Q.HQQ
E.N.hN PLTT N - e spuny 110 01 I
816°59 ELETI 8PS c SR 888°s¥ LLT'E 434 ajgeded 1saiomu pue fediound 1gop paimepy
e $ 8 g s $ T8 e $ 8 ** SenI[iqer] paniooe pue d[qeded sjuneody
SONIpqeEr]
SADNVTIVI ONNA ANV SHLLFTIEVI'T
SOP'65T & LLT'OT §  095°1 $  996'%1 $ E6C°FI1  $  pL'80L § 19€'E 2% A § Tty srrrrrrrrrrtrttt QLASSV TVLOL
0z 81 7 67 R T LR T L TR T Spury Iemo woyy angg
ClbLe SIHLE - e Ceeis [ejuer 9sEYY
607" ¥ 061°C T Lye 6vL'l L0z §1 I . STt 1SaUajuL PONINOY
97E 61 97L61 ..  RREERRIRY 11 %
119U ‘S3[qBAISOY
LLTELS PN C POTET SL1 Ph [P - PP Ser e QUALBISAAUT ULIA)-Suor]
90001 61%'11 § €191 E6L'V9 LET'ET 6E0°€ T "+ sjusunsaAul Aterodurs,
Z6'SE 6LET 8751 T SR 888°8T LLT 2e8'T Tt sjusde [eOSy WIm UseD
888 $ ¢ $ $ € § 88 § 1 § 1 I $ TrrorrormrmrrrmrrTt yse’y
SLASSY .
1m0y, EE) ) Bonurg Apropoy Ljpogny FUEN | uondnapay wondwapay
jusmdojaaagg Buprng sanieeg mende)y Weo'g pEl 2
Tere M, 100135 [BuoIENpy : sy 1asEsd
OB pueTg mqng 3e1g iy HBM
BIUBAJASUOIg

(spuesnoy], ur passaadxy)

VINVATASNNAd 0 HLTVIMNOWINOD

I661 ‘o€ ounf

SANA HOIAYAS LIHd
LHIHS HONVIVE DONINIFNOD

&
©
i




SLLIEE  § 8071 § ¢ $ 996t1 0§ €6S'IIT  §  OL6'E $ 9E $ T § e e 1661 ‘0€ ANAL ‘SEONVIVE ANNI
£86°SHI 698 6 26891 0L8'LTT £0€ PE Tttt e 0661 “f AMNM ‘SHONVIVE ANNA
(50z'¥1) 65¢ 9) (ze6°1) (£L2°91) L99°¢ z 2 SHSN ¥IHLO ANV
STYNLIANTIXHE (JAANN) ITAC
SADYN0S YHHLO ANV SANNIATH
89¥'958 118°8¢ 1S£°0¢ PIOIS LPSTII %L T6S £TL'P1 +TirAl1) R SEOUNOS DNIONVYNIA dHHLO LAN
(101°58) T R ot (S9've) (95t*06) T Tt e WwadE M0I0SD puoy pIpUnyaX 0) AL
D—l@@.mﬂu Aﬁ_wNan PR mvmcfmu Ahaongmv e e PR e A R HDG m-._vwmﬂ_m.ﬂ mﬂmuﬁuummo
$01°288 S60° Tt 1SE°9¢ 00L'S PIT LN o9¥LT6S £TL'¥1 1270 1| S ur siopsuery Buneledo
~O~amw .« e [ P W.VW“.VM @m.vnow e . B a4 e mmam e e e e maaaaa e mEQUOhn— ﬂvﬂoﬂ_ m._.—_mvﬁ—.w..—um
Omoamﬁ cmc“n~ e R R I T T T R I N BN ) mﬁuuuon.—m ﬁﬂom
HSAS) SADANO0S ONIDNVNIA HIHLO
(££9°0L8) (zL¥'8E) (LSE'9D) (916°2S) (pz8‘sz) (6L0°685) QzL'vl) (przion) e SHANLIANIIXT YIAN STNNTATA
L£9°9T6 [ TANY LSE'9E 766'1S PLT GHI PIPET9 oL YT §IO'0T Torrenererenes SHANLIANAIXT TVIOL
Z10'00% 969'11 TIg'cI £TE°81 £€7°86 66L°EYT 60L L (0773 sofres [essy pue 1saru]
£79'9z¢ SL¥'6 SHO'IT 699°9¢ Iv0° LY ST9‘6LE SPO'L A wwIRI Tedioulid
19ARRS 195
STANLIGNIAIXA
$96'c¢S 669'T S10'T 05¥'91 SEE'PE €€ (12 SHANIATE TYLOL
709 7 — o1 7z el T By
.VW.V.MM e e e e o - e e .VWV“M— N I A I umvn.—ﬁu._.__ mu—.._ﬁ ._ﬁn:UE._-—Q —Nuﬁﬂn— Owﬁo.\.m
0L8°12 T69'T 0£0°C 82991 989 €€ | S QU] JUAULISIAU]
WMO.ON m e . % % - W v e % WMQnON ﬁ .. % e . mn .......................... mDUmavw —U-Hm mu—ﬂm HO.% mumh.ﬂr_u
SANNAATT
0L I Bupjurg Auoginy Aucymy 1991 uondurapay uonduspay
WwAdo[AN] Suipping SANII3e |euden 191124
INEA 1oods |evanEonpy ISISESI
pue pue] aang aselg Toydiy

BIURA[ASUUA]

(spuesnoy ], ul passaidxq)

VINVATASNNEd 40 HLTVEMNOWNOD

1661 “0€ dun{ papuy .reaf [vISL Y] 10
SAINVTIVE ANNA NI SHONVHD ANV STANLIANAIXA ‘SANNIATE 40 INFWALVLS DNINIINOD

SANNA IDIAYAS L93d

—67—



(THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)

—68—



Capital Projects Funds
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**EXPLANATORY NOTES: On Scptember 25, 1789, the Congress proposed twelve articles of amendment
Lo the Constitution of the United States. Excepl for the first two, they were ratified by the required number of States
by December 15, 1791, and these became the first ten amendments. They have since been known as the Bill of Righis.

The original first two articles in brief were: ARTICLE I - Regulating the number of representalives
according to the populatien of the Siate. Article I — Senators and Representatives cannot increase their salaries
during their present term in office.
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The right of the people to be secure in their persons, houses, papers,
and effects, against unreasonable searches and seizures, shall not be
violated, and no Warrants shall issue, but upon probable cause,
supported by Qath or affirmation, and particularly describing the place
to be searched, and the persons or things to be seized.

. - The Bill of Rights
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
DESCRIPTIONS

Capital projects funds account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition
or construction of major capital facilities, including those provided to political
subdivisions or other public organizations.

Capital Facilities Fund — to account for the proceeds of general obligation bonds issued to meet the ﬁnancmg costs
of capital projects specifically itemized and authorized by Capital Budget Acts.

Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Autherity — to account for proceeds of bonds issued to finance the
construction and improvement of higher educational institutions..

State Public School Building Authority — to account for the proceeds of bonds issued to finance the construction
and improvement of public school facilities. -

Land and Water Development Fund — to account for the proceeds of bonds issued to meet the financing costs for
the acquisition, development and improvement to Commonwealth iand and water facilities.
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
June 30, 1991

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

Pennsylvania
Higher State Public
Educational School Land and
Capital Facilities Building Water
Facilities Authority Authority Development Total
ASSETS
07T - $ 7 % 5053 § 575 % 6 3 5,641
Temporary IVESHMENLS . . . ..o vuenteeaianeaaeenans as 128,711 99,617 77,715 1,31¢ 307,353
Long-term investments . .. ... ..o e e 24,475 3,479 C e 27,954
Receivables, net: :

Accrued interest ..................n ey 748 737 483 7 1,975
Due fromother funds. . ......... .. o i, P e e 27 27
Other assets ... vvaininiverairinireaes PR, Ny e 706 e 706

TOTAL ASSETS ... . it e e enaeas $ 129466 $ 129,882 § 82958 % 1,350 § 343,656
LIABRILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. . ............... $ 81,661 $ ... % 10,289 $ 139 % 92,089

Duetootherfunds ....... ... ... ... i iiiiiiiiinnn 33,782 e NP 90 33,872

Due to other governments ...........cociiiinairinrnns- R C e e 6 6

Other Liabikities ...... ... i I 1,420 1,672 e 3,092

TOTAL LIABILITIES ......... ... 115,443 1,420 11,961 235 129,059
Fund Balance:
: Reserved for: . .
i Encumbrances ........... ... i i 269,716 e e 480 300,196
! Long-tertn investmnents . ........vvieirrranrernernnis .. 24,475 3,479 .. 27,954
Unreserved:
Designated for:
Capital Projects ..........coiiiiiiiiiii i e 103,987 67,518 635 172,140
Undesignated (deficit) ...... e (285,693) . e I (285,593)
TOTAL FUND BALANCES . ... .....coiniiennnn 14,023 128,462 70,997 1,115 214,597
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES .......... $ 129466 $ 129,882 3 82,958 % 1,350 $ 343,656
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1991

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)

Pennsylvania
Higher State Public
Educational School Land and
Capital Facitities Building Water
Facilities Authority Authority Development Total
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental . ... ........ . ... .., 3 9,765 % Lo.. 8 A A | 9,765
Charges for goods and services.......................... 20,141 e G AT 20,141
Investment income .............. .. ... it 6,830 10,042 6,000 81 22,953
Other ....... ... ... . L. A R 9,486 200 163 9,849
TOTAL REVENUES ... ... ... ... ... 36,736 19,528 6,200 244 62,708
EXPENDITURES:
General government .. .. ........ .. .. ... i e, 2,219 R e e 2,219
Publiceducation . ............ .. ... ... .. ... ... ... ... R 244,099 59,616 e 303,715
Economic development and assistance .................... 46,180 e R L 46,180
Transportation . ........... .. ... ... .. ... ... ... 95,550 S e L 95,550
Capital outlay ................ ... ... ... ... ... 244,190 R R 2,556 246,746
Debt service: '

Interest and fiscal charges ............ ... .. ......... 185 e Ce 3 188
TOTAL EXPENDITURES. ...............c0voue. ... 388,324 244,099 59,616 2,559 694,598
REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES .............. (351,588) (224,571) (53,416) (2,315) {631,890)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Bond proceeds. . ... .. L 490,174 196,720 34,969 1,969 723,832
Operating transfers in.................................. e 150,225 Ce e 150,225
Operating transfers out. . ........ .. ... .. ... . ......... (120,785} (151,262) (1,180) {79) (273,306)
NET OTHER FINANCING SQURCES ............... 369,389 195,683 33,789 1,890 | 600,751

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER (UNDER}
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES ............. 17,801 {28,888) (19,627) (425) (31,139
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1|, 1990 . 0t 30,918 157,35¢ 90,624 1,540 280,432
RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFERS ... ... ................. {34,696) C e R e (34,696)
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1991 ... ... .. ............ $ 14,023 § 128462 § 70,997 § L1153 § 214,597
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*+*EXPLANATORY NOTES: On September 25, 1789, the Congress proposed twelve articles of amendment
te the Constitution of the United States. Except for the first two, they were ratified by the required number of States
“by December 15, 1791, and these became the first ten amendments. They have since been known as the Bill of Rights.

The original first two articles in brief were: ARTICLE I - Regulating the number of represeniatives
according to the population of the State. Article Il — Senators and Representatives cannot increase their salaries
during their present term in office.
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No person shall be held to answer for a capital, or otherwise infamous
crime, unless on a presentment or indictment of a Grand Jury, except in
cases arising in the land or naval forces, or in the Militia, when in actual
service in time of War or public danger; nor shall any person be subject
for the same offense to be twice put in jeopardy of life or limb, nor shall
be compelled in any criminal case to be a witness against himself, nor be
deprived of life, liberty, or property, without due process of law; nor
shall private property be taken for public use without just compensation.

I The Bill of Rights




ENTERPRISE FUNDS
DESCRIPTIONS

Enterprise Funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises. Costs of providing goods and services to the
general public on a continuing basis, including depreciation, are financed or recovered
primarily through user charges.

Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (PTC) — to account for the construction, operation and maintenance of the
Pennsylvania Turnpike System. The PTC was created as an instrumentality of the Commonwealth with powers to issue
revenue bonds payable from tolls and other revenues coliected.

Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority — to account for loans to local industrial development agencies to
stimulate economic activity in areas of high unemployment. Earnings of the Authority and repayments of loans receivable
are reinvested in additional loans.

State Workmen’s Insurance Fund — to account for and provide workmen’s compensation insurance to private employers
in the Commonwealth, including those unable to obtain coverage from private insurance firms.

State Stores Fund — to account for the general operation of the Pennsylvania Liquor Control Board. Expenses include
all costs associated with the operation and administration of the Liquor Store System and enforcement of the Liquor
Control Law,

Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency — to account for a variety of programs, such as scholarships
and student loans, designed to provide financial assistance to students and institutions of higher education. Earnings
of the Agency and repayments of loans receivable are retained for additional loans and programmatic purposes.

Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency — to account for financing the construction and rehabilitation of housing units
for sale or rent to low and moderate income persons and families or the elderly, and to make or purchase loans to
finance the purchase, construction, improvement or rehabilitation of owner-occupied single-family residences. Earnings
of the Agency and repayments of notes and loans receivable are reinvested for financing of additional projects.

Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority PENNVEST) — to account for loans and other financing activities
for the construction, improvement, repair or rehabilitation of drinking water supply and sewage disposal systems
throughout the Commonwealth. PENNVEST was created as an instrumentality of the Commonwealth, funded by
contributed capital from other funds and general obligation bonds authorized by referendum. Earnings of the authority
and repayments of loans are reinvested for additional financing activities,

Other — to account for enterprise operations including activities associated with low interest loans to manufacturers,
minority business loans, vocational rehabilitation services, and loans to volunteer fire, ambulance and rescue companies,
and loans and grants issued to attract industrial, manufacturing or research and development enterprises to the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)

Penmsylvania Pennsylvania State
Turnpike Industrial Workmen's State
Commission Development Insurance Stores
CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED FOR) OPERATIONS: (May 31, 1991) Authority {Dec. 31, 1990} (June 25, 1991)
Operating income {I085) .. ... ..oiiiiiiii i 3 42097 % 14,324  § (57,31 % 41,698
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Deprectation. . ..ottt i s 63,521 . 588 4,561
Amortization . ... ... e 417 R R
Provision for uncollectible accounts .. ... .. ... ... ... ... ... 1,569 9,010 629
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in receivables. . ... s 254 (16,341) (2.967) (1,627)
(Increase)/decrease in due from other funds ... .......... ... e 22 237)
(Increase)/decrease in due from other governments .......... e P
{Increase)/decrease in inventory ......... .. ... (1,254) s P 13,062
(Increase)/decrease in other assets .............. ... ..... (1,378) {5,772) 1,478 (245)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities . 32,004 221 (2,924) (7,953)
Increase/(decrease) in due to other funds . ................. R &) 1,001 1,196
Increase/(decrease) in due to other governments ............ P 4 (16)
Increase/(decrease) in deferred revenue . ......... ... ..... (12) 4,495 e
Increase in insurance loss lability .. .. ... ... . ... ..... e P 99,241
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities ..................... 5,068 2,277 (9,366) R
Total adjustments .......... ... aainna. 98,305 (22,203) 100,582 9,368
NET CASH PROVIDED BY/{USED FOR) OPERATING
ACTIVITIES .. i e et iaaan 140,402 (7,879) 43,271 51,066
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of notes payable and revenue bonds ...... 276,402 R e
Principal paid on notes payable and revenue bonds.............. (91,039 R 414)
Interest paid on notes pavable and revenue bonds ............... RV e [§3)
Operating transfers in............ ... . iy R R
Operating transfers out ... ... i {120,000) (39,428)
Residual equity transfer out ...........oviri i PPN (5,000) e
Increases (decrease) in contributed capital ..................... (214,000) e
Nonoperating eXpenses . . .............ueiirureriiaiaianroas {7.592)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY/(USED FOR) NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES .................... e (36,229) (125,000) (39.843)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of revenue bonds ..................... 60,000
Principal paid onrevenue bonds ... . ool (64,135)
Interest paid on revenue bonds ......... ... ..o (70,452)
Increases in contributed capital ............... ... ... ... ... .. e
Decreases in contributed capital ................. ... ..t R Ce e
Acquisition and construction of capital assets .................. {309,713) (196) (9,232)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets .......................... R R e
(Gain)/loss on disposition of capital assets ..................... I3
NET CASH PROVIDED BY/(USED FOR) CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES ................... (384,300) (196) (9,219)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of inVESHMENtS . ... ...t irnrrrr e eeennnns (988,572) (14,321,721) (299,512) (485,995)
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investments .. ............. 1,141,445 14,366,047 382,028 481,700
Investment InComIE .. .. .. . e 91,038 .. e 2,548
Investment eXpemse . ... ..ot ottt e e (92)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY/(USED FOR) INVESTING
ACTIVITIES ... o i e s 243,911 44,326 82,516 (1,839)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) INCASH . ................. 13 218 591 165
CASH, JULY 1, 1990. .. ... .o i iiaie et 2,098 692 2,525 3,750
CASH, JUNE 30, 1991 .....ooinininiiiininininiiiiiiiiianans $ 2,111 $% 210 % 3,116 % 3,915
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1991

(Expressed in Thousands)

I Pennsylvania
Higher Pennsylvania Pennsylvania
Education Housing Infrastruciure
Assistance Finance Investment
Agency Agency Authority Gther Tatal

$ (180,612) $ 22,520 $ 1,659 $ 11,758 $  (103,867)

6,408 245 23 834 76,180
D 3,594 51 . 4,062
9,054 3,162 3,644 77,068

(169,668) (215,940) (161,731 (16,126) (584,146)
2 L 9,367 (1,938) 7,216

(867) e 6 (861)
49 11,857
(803) (1,240) (794) R (8,754)
21,328 2,331 (175) 131 45,051
37 16 %) (48) 2,187
(7.518) e . . (7.530)
3,392 184 e 76 8,135
99241
5,107 11,184 . . 9,716
(142,582) (190,572) (150,104) {13,372) (310,578
(323,194) (168,052) (148,445) (1,614) (414,445)
105,180 253,823 o C 635,405
(85,394) (156,944) . . (333,791)
(1)
186,452 6,500 o e 192,952
. . (159,428)
. (5.000)

. . 4,047 (209,953)

(1,166) . 232 (8.526)

206,238 102,213 . 4,279 111,658
(1,369) . 60,000 . 118,631
t64,135)
. . (70,452)

70,610 . 70,610

. . (10,408) . ¢10,408)
(6,767) (604) (18) (582) (327,112)
R . A 90 90
(73) (60)

(8.136) (604) 120,184 (565) (282,836)
(371,345) (1,458,059) (141,081) (50,964) (18,117,249)
518,109 1,524,502 171,658 47,737 18,633,226
1.112 94,608
©28) (120

146,764 66,443 30,577 (2,143) 610,555
21,672 o 2,316 (43) 24,932
11,901 . 604 308 21,878
§ 33,573 $ .... $ 2,90 $ 265 $ 46,810
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Internal Service Funds
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**EXPLANATORY NOTES: On September 25, 1789, the Congress proposed twelve articles of amendment
to the Constitution of the United States. Except for the first two, they were ratified by the required number of States
by December 15, 1791, and these became the first ten amendments. They have since been known as the Bill of Rights.

The original first lwo articles in brief were: ARTICLE I - Regulating the number of representatives
according to the population of the State, Article II — Senators and Representalives cannot increase their salaries
during their present term in office.
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In all criminal prosecutions, the accused shall enjoy the right to a speedy
and public trial, by an impartial jury of the State and district wherein
the crime shall have been committed; which district shall have been
previously ascertained by law, and to be informed of the nature and
cause of the accusation; to be confronted with the witnesses against him;
to have compulsory process for obtaining witnesses in his favor, and to
have the Assistance of Counsel for his defence.

The Bill of Rights . :
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
DESCRIPTIONS

Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods or services provided by
one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the Commonwealth,
or to other governmental units, on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Purchasing Fund — to account for the purchase of materials, supplies, motor vehicles and other equipment by the
Department of General Services for the sale or lease to other Commonwealth departments, boards and commissions.

Manufacturing Fund — to account for the manufacture and sale of goods by inmates in the institutions of the Department
of Corrections.
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS ' ' ' -
June 30, 1991

(
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
{Expressed in Thounsands} )
Manufacturing F
Purchasing (June 24, 1991) Total - L
ASSETS
(00T + R PN .3 139 $ 302 8 441 L i
Temporary iMVESIMENS - . ... ovvuvvenvreeenenonnn s 7,197 3,073 10,270 i
Receivables, net:
ACCOUNLS .+t v vt vt e ie e ie e cen it r s anarenn 7 e 7
Accrued IREBTESE ... v v v e 35 16 51
L0 7= C e 152 152 o
PDue fromother funds ... ... ... ... .o .. e 8,610 3,958 12,568 _
Pue from other governments ..............: e 394 148 542 P
R0 o AR U 1,869 9,285 11,154 N
Fixed assels ... ... oo ittt 32,562 12,386 44,948
Less: accumulated depreciation .............. ... ... (19,024) (7,778) (26,802) .
OHEE BSSELS « o v v e v e es e e e e e e e e e e . 2 2 |
TOTAL ASSETS .. ... i s $ 31,789 $ 21,544 $ 53,333 L
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY L
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ............... $ 9,692 $ 3,025 $ 12,7117 -
Puetoother funds........ooviiiirii e 453 203 656 Lo
Due to other governments. . ..........c.oo.venennieanns 17 17 34 “
Deferred TeVENUL . . .. vt n e, 22 R 22
Other liabilities . . .. ... o s R 54 . ;
TOTAL LIABILITIES . ........ oo 10,184 3,299 13,483 i
Fund Equity:
Contributed capital . .. ............... .o 9,386 . 9,386
Retained earnings:
Unreserved ..ot i i e e e 12,219 18,245 30,464
TOTAL FUND EQUITY .........coiiiiiiininns 21,605 18,245 39,850
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY .......... $ 31,789 $ 21,544 $ 53,333
Y
P
-
i
-
[
i
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1991

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Purchasing
OPERATING REVENUES:
Sales and SEIVICES ...t $ 18,859
Other . ... . . P
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES ................ 18,859
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales and services .. .......... ... cc0ovuvn.... 15,945
Depreciation .............. ... ... ... o i, 4,807
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES ................. 20,752
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) ........c.oovoo. ... (1,893)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES);
Investment income ............... ... ... . . ... ..., 1,110
Interest expense .. .......... .. ... .. i.iiiiiin... 13
OtheT . e
NONOPERATING REVENUES, NET .............. 1,123
NET INCOME (LOSS) ... ... (770)
RETAINED EARNINGS, JULY 1,1990................ 12,989
RETAINED EARNINGS, JUNE 30, 1991. ... .......... § 12,219

—fT—

(Expressed in Th 1ds)

Manufactoring
(June 24, 1991) Total *
$ 19,531 $ 38,390
36 36
19,567 38,426
18,822 34,767
573 5,380
19,305 40,147
172 1,721
353 1,463
an 2
163 163
308 _ 1628
677 93)
17,568 30,557
$ 18,245 $ 30,464



COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1991

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED FOR)
OPERATIONS:

Operating income (1058) ........... . 0o,

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
used for operating activities:
Depreciation . ... et
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in receivables .. ...............
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds .. ......
{Increase) decrease in due from other governments ..
Decrease In iNVEIOTY . .. .. ouvuniinarnvraveanenns
Decrease inotherassets . ...
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities . .
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds...........
Increase in due to other governments ..............
Decrease in deferred revenue ............ ... ...,
Decrease in other liabilities . .....................

TOTAL ADIJUSTMENTS ........... ... ...
NET CASH USED FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Nonoperating revenue .................ovvennnnn.

NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ....................

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTS:
Interest paid on revenue bonds .. ... ... ... ...
Acquisition and construction of capital assets ... ......
Proceeds from sale of capital assets . ................
Loss on disposition of capital assets. .. ..............

NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES ..........

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investments. .. ......oovvvrevennnvnnan
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investments. ... ..
Investment fMCOME . . ..o\ vur e cecne e ene e
Interest €Xpense ... ... .. v

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING
ACTIVITIES .. ... . i ianens

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH.........

CASH, JULY 1, 1990 . ... .... S

CASH, JUNE 30, 1991 . ......ciiiieiiinn s
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(Expressed in Th ds)

Manufacturing

Purchasing (June 24, 1991) Total
$ (1,893) $ 172 3 (1,720
4,807 573 5,380
16 (76) (60)
362 (2,255) (1,893)
449 (131 318
628 222 850
e 42 42
1,084 176 1,260
(7,327) 22 (7,305)
1 2 3
(104) Ce (104)
e (46) (46)
(84) (1,471) (1,555)
(1,977) (1,299) (3,276)
170 170
170 170
(34 Ce (34)
2,253) (696) (2,949)
478 R 478
35 35
(1,774 (696) (2,470)
(34,957 (12,836) 47,793)
37,493 14,314 51,807
1,220 367 1,587
(32) (1) {43)
3,724 1,834 5,558
2N 9 (18)
166 293 459
$ 139 $ 302 $ 441
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**EXPLANATORY NOTES: On September 25, 1789, the Congress proposed twelve articles of amendment
to the Constitution of the United States, Except for the first two, they were raltified by the required number of States
by December 15, 1791, and these became the first len amendments. They have since been known as the Bill of Rights,

The original first two articles in brief were: ARTICLE I — Regulating the number of representatives
according to the population of the State, Article IT - Senators and Representatives cannot increase their salarios

during their present term in office.
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In Suits at common law, where the value in controversy shall exceed
twenty dollars, the right of trial by jury shall be preserved, and no fact
tried by a jury shall be otherwise re-examined in any Court of the
United States, than according to the rules of the common law.

The Bill of Rights



TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS
DESCRIPTIONS

Trust and Agency Funds account for assets held by the Commonwealth in a trustee
capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental
units and/or other funds. These include Expendable Trust Funds, Pension Trust Funds
and Agency Funds.

EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

Unemploymeni Compensation Fund — to account for the receipt of employer and employe contributions under the
unemployment compensation law, for the payment of unemployment compensation benefits to eligible individuals, to
transfer and receive monies from the Federal Unemployment Trust Fund and to pay the interest due on the Federal
Unemployment Compensation Title XII Advances.

Workmen’s Compensation Security Trust Fund — to account for the payment of claims for compensation provided
by the Workmen’s Compensation Law to individuals who are insured by an insolvent stock insurance company and
for the administrative costs to administer the program.

Catastrophic Loss Benefits Continuation Fund — to account for the payment of medical and rehabilitative expenditures
in excess of $100,000 to residents of Pennsylvania injured in a motor vehicle accident covered by the original Catastrophic
Loss Frust Fund which is no longer in existence.

Other — to account for financial assistance to public schools or State Universities for repairs or alterations to buildings

needed to satisfy the standards of the Department of Labor and Industry and for reimbursement to aggrieved individuals
upon judgments against any person licensed by the Real Estate Commission.

PENSION TRUST FUNDS

State Employes’ Retirement System — to account for the payment of retirement, disability and death benefits to members
of the State Employes’ Retirement System and their beneficiaries.

Public School Employes’ Retirement System — to account for the payment of retirement, disability and death benefits
to members of the Public School Employes® Retirement System and their beneficiaries.
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TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS—DESCRIPTIONS

AGENCY FUNDS

Social Security Contribution Fund — to hold the employers’ and employes’ social security deductions
of Commonwealth and local government or other instrumentality employes and to remit such collections
to the Federal Government.

Statutory Liquidator Fund — to convert the assets of insolvent insurance companies into cash for distribution
to creditors, policyholders and stockholders.

Deferred Compensation Fund — to collect and administer funds contributed by Commonwealth employes
who are deferring a portion of their income until future years, in accordance with Internai Revenue Code
Section 457.

Fire Insurance Tax Fund — to collect a two-percent tax paid on premiums received from foreign (out-of-
state) fire insurance companies conducting business in the Commonwealth and to distribute monies to local
governments based on the amount of foreign fire insurance sold in their municipality. The municipalities
must pay these monies to the relief, pension or retirement fund of their recognized fire fighting organization.

Municipal Pension Aid Fund — to collect a portion of the revenues from the Foreign Casualty Insurance
Premium Tax and the Foreign Fire Insurance Premium Tax for distribution to municipalities for their

distribution to the various municipal, police and fire pension funds.

Medical Professional Liability Catastrophe Loss Fund — to collect annual surcharges levied on health
care providers to make available professional liability insurance at a reasonable cost to health care providers.

Other — to collect and administer funds from various sources for distribution to other governments and
for the personal needs of patients and inmates at State institutions.
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS
June 30, 1991

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Th ds)

Expendable Pension Agency
Trust Funds Trust Fuends Funds Total
ASSETS
[0 & $ 154 3 69 5 5,943 $ 6,166
Cash with fiscal agents . .............. ... .. ... 1,455,333 e L. 1,455,333
Temporary Investments . ...........iiiireiennineenn.n.. 17,492 1,518,657 408,430 1,944,579
Long-term investments .. ....... ... oiiiiiiiiinnns 238,823 25,381,162 54,168 25,674,153
Receivables, net:
P 256,254 R 4,144 260,398
ACCOUMS ... ittt ettt et e e e e 6,628 e 28,954 35,582
Accrued imterest ......... ... . e, 6,037 266,370 2,008 274,505
Pension contributions .......... ... e 260,045 260,045
Other ... e ... 14,884 e 14,384
Due fromother funds............ ... ... ... ... .., 24,852 383,768 378 408,998
Due from other governments. .. ...................o..... 14,464 12,984 2,022 29,470
Fixed a85888 . . o v e e e e . 8,451 e 8,451
Less: accumulated depreciation . ......................... . (3,210) e (3,210
Other as5els . . ..ottt e i e s e 303,602 3,881 307,483
TOTAL ASSETS .. ... . .. e $ 2,020,037 $28,146,782 $ 510,018 $30,676,837
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. .. .......... . ... $ 116,122 $ 100,378 $ 56,815 $ 273,315
Investment purchases payable ......................... AT 436,951 e 436,951
Tax refunds payable . ................ ... L 1,686 e C e 1,686
Obligations under reverse repurchase agresments . ...... .. e 125,531 L 125,531
Duetootherfunds ........... .. .. ... ... .. . v iiinii.. 21,604 609 1,102 23,315
Due to other governments ............................ 3,702 Lo 190,457 194,159
Other labilities ... .. ... ... . ... . . . . e e 261,644 261,644
TOTAL LIABILITIES ... ... .. ... ..., 143,114 663,469 510,018 1,316,601
Fund Balance:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances .. ... ... e 3,037 . e 3,037
Pension benefits ... . ........ .. .. ... ... ..., P 27,483,313 e 27,483,313
Long-term investments .....................c0viu.ns 238,823 e C 238,823
Unreserved:
Designated for:

Other ... .o e 13,526 L e 13,526
Undesignated . ...t 1,621,537 PV .. 1,621,537
TOTAL FUND BALANCES ........................ 1,876,923 27,483,313 . 29,360,236

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES .......... $ 2,020,037 $28,146,782 $ 510,018 $30,676,837
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS :
. ' June 30, 1991

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousans)

Workmen’s
Compensation Catastrophic
Unemployment Security Loss Benefits
Compensation Trust Continuation Other Total
ASSETS )
(10 $ oo % 135 § 14 % 5 3 154
Cash with fiscal agents . ............ ... ... ... ... ... 1,455,333 R e . - 1,455,333
Temporary investments ....................virrniarnrs- 2,111 7,125 6,164 2,092 - 17,492
Long-term investments . .......................viieiains e 238,248 e 575 238,823
Receivables, net:
B - S N _ 256,254 R e R 256,254
ACCOUTIIS . ot vt v vt st e e oo a e it e a e e P 31 6,597 . 6,628
Accrued IMErest .. ... e e s 32 5,969 26 10 6,037
Due fromother funds. . ... ... . o i 3,351 21,500 e 1 24,852
Due from other governments. ....................ooo.is 14,464 e e . 14,464
TOTAL ASSETS .. e $ 1,731,545 $§ 273,008 §% 12,801 § 2,683 % 2,020,037
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. ................ $ 63,697 % 18,534 % 33,863 % 28§ 116,122
Tax refunds pavable .............. .. ... ... .ol 1,686 e R AN 1,686
Duetoother funds . ......... .. i N 17 21,587 e 21,604
Due to other governments ...........c.oceeeeon.oo.n.. 3,701 e 1 . A 3,702
Deferred revenue . .. .. ..ot e P e e . .
TOTAL LIABILITIES ... ... ...t 69,084 18,551 55,451 28 143,114
Fund Balance:
Reserved for:
ENCUMBTANCES . .o\t e e et e et e e aiansnas e 2,891 R 146 3,037
Long-term investments . ...............c.virvriiren- R 238,248 Ce 575 238,823
Unreserved:
Designated for:
COMhET . . e R 13,318 I 208 13,526
Undesignated (deficit) . ......... ... 00 it © 1,662,461 T (42,650) 1,726 1,621,537
TOTAL FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) .............. 1,662,461 254,457 (42,650} 2,655 1,876,923
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES ......._.. $ 1,731,545 $ 273,008 % 12,801 § 2,683 % 2,020,037
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1991

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Th ds)
Workmen’s Catastrophic
Compensation Loss
Unemployment Security Benefits
Compensation Trust Continuation Other Total
REVENUES:
KOS . oottt e $ 6,012 % _ ... % AT ... 5 6,012
Unemployment taxes ..............oviiiiiiiiieian..... 1,174,513 e . e 1,174,513
Licenses and fees .. .. .. ... ... i I 22,755 36,039 57 58,851
Investment inCOMe . . ... ... ... i ... 141,579 22,659 227 202 164,667
Other . e e e e e 442 600 13 e 1,055
TOTAL REVENUES . .......ci i i 1,322,546 46,014 36,279 259 1,405,098
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government ................... i iiiiun, . 3,438 2,632 . 50 6,120
Protection of persons and property ..................... P 25,131 54,142 148 79,421
Public health and welfare . .. ...... .. .. ............. 1,612,130 e e I 1,612,130
Public education ...........oco i A 47 47
Debt service: )
Interest and fiscal charges ............................ 11 o 7 4 22
TOTAL EXPENDITURES ........... ... i, 1,612,141 28,569 56,781 249 1,697,740
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES ........ {289,595) 17,445 (20,502) 10 (292,642)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Operating transfers in. ............... ... .. oL S e e 11 11
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES ........................ {289,595) 17,445 (20,502) 21 (292,631)
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), JULY 1, 1990 ............. 1,952,056 237,012 (22,148) 2,634 © 2,169,554
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), JUNE 30, 1991 .. ......... $ 1,662,461 % 254,457 $§ (42,6500 $ 2,655 $ 1,876,923
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
PENSION TRUST FUNDS

June 30, 1991

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

ASSETS

Cash . ... . i e
Temporary investments .....................
Long-term investments .....................

Receivables, net:

Accrued inferest ...
Pension contributions .. ...................
Other . et e e e
Due fromother funds ......................
Due from other governments ................
Fixed assets ... .......ciiiunirierirannnnns
Less: accumulated depreciation ..............
Other assefs .......coviiiirnrrererterrinns

TOTAL ASSETS ............... ... oo,

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . . . ..
Investment purchases payable ..............

(Expressed in Th ds)

Obligations under reverse repurchase agreements . .. ...

Duetoother funds .......................
TOTAL LIABILITIES . ... ... .o aet

Fund Balance:
Reserved for:

Pension benefits ................. . .....
TOTAL FUND BALANCES .......... A
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

State
Employes’
Retirement

Systemn
(December 31, 1990)

Public School

5 1
446,952
9,284,505

39,152
14,834
98,112
12,984

100
(&7

$ 9,916,603

$ 13,929
16,567

194

30,690

9885913
9,885,913
$ 9,916,603

Employes’
Retirement
System Total

5 68 $ 69
1,071,705 1,518,657
16,096,657 25,381,162
207,218 266,370
260,045 260,045
e 14,884
285,656 383,768
e 12,984
8,351 8,451
(3,123) (3,210
303,602 303,602
$18,230,179 $28,146,782
$ 86,449 $ 100,378
436,951 436,951
108,964 125,531
415 609
632,779 663,469
17,597,400 27,483,313
17,597,400 27,483,313
$18,230,179 $28,146,782

f :

7
L
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

PENSION

TRUST FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1991

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

OPERATING REVENUES:

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales and services ............. ... ... .. ...
Interest expense ........ ... .. o i

Depreciation

Benefit payments and refunds ........................
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES .................
OPERATING INCOME ..............ccciiiuein..

OPERATING TRANSFERS:
Operating transfers in . .............................
Operating transfers out .............. ... ... .......

OPERATING TRANSFERS, NET..................
NETINCOME ... . ... i,

FUND BALANCES, JULY 1, 1990....................
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1991 ..................

State :

(Expressed in Th ds)

Employes’ Public School
Retirement Employes’
System Retirement
(December 31, 1990) System
$ 114,174 $ 1,215,114
588,377 1,479,854
702,551 2,695,568
7,374 12,538
o 1,505
26 1,090
595,670 958,971
603,070 974,504
99,481 1,721,064
5,700 2,075
(3,855) (11,506)
1,845 (9,431)
101,326 1,711,633
9,784,587 15,885,767
$ 9,885,913 $17,597,400
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Total

$ 1,329,888
2,068,231

3,398,119

19,912
1,905
1,116

1,554,641

1,577,574
1,820,545

7,775
(15,361)

(7,586)
1,812,959

25,670,354
$27,483,313




COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1991

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA -
(Expressed in Thousands)

Balance Balance

July 1, 1990 Additions Deductions June 30, 1991 l
SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIBUTION FUND o
' i
ASSETS : L
Cash. o e et T $ 2,252 $ 2,252 S '
Temporary investments ................... 14,956 2,256 3,690 13,522 .
Receivables, net: 1
Accrued imterest . ... ... it 107 1,138 1,176 69 [
Due from other governments .............. 5,649 2,022 5,649 2,022
TOTAL ASSETS .. ... ... ... $ 20,712 $ 7,668 $ 12,767 $ 15,613 -
LIABILITIES
Due to other governments ................. $ 20,712 3 1,114 $ 6,213 $ 15,613 ‘)
TOTAL LIABILITIES ............... $ 20,712 $ 1,114 $ 6,213 $ 15,613 :
STATUTORY LIQUIDATOR FUND
ASSETS '
Cash. s e e $ ... $ 4,966 $ 4,966 $ ... :
Temporary investments ................... 89,108 1,125,364 1,115,698 98,774 E
Long-term investments . ................... 3,313 6,912 235 9,990
Receivables, net: :
ACCOUNLS ..ot it m et iiananes 3,163 20,733 635 23,261 { g
; Accrued interest . ..... ... oL 662 7,085 7,189 538 I
Other assets. . ......... e _ 93 3, 140 1,092 -
TOTAL ASSETS .. ... ... .. ... ... $ 97,176 $1,165,362 $1,128,863 $ 133,675 .
_ - - - - §
LIABILITIES _ b
Other liabilities .. ..., ...ccoeii it C$ 97,176 § 38,513 $ 2,014 $ 133,675
TOTAL LIABILITIES ... ............ $ 97,176 $ 38,513 $ 2,014 $ 133,675
DEFERRED COMPENSATION FUND
(December 31) L
ASSETS .
; Cashl. oot e $ ... $ 49,728 $ 49,727 $ 1 ] :
Temporary inVeStMents .. ................. 2,884 6,647 3,258 6,273 i
Long-term investments.................... 18,284 27,167 1,821 43,630
Receivables, net: i I
Accrued IErest . ... iii i 18 2,569 2,548 39 i ‘E
Other assets. ... oo v i it ninaeens . &9 _F_MM __89_ 64 s
TOTAL ASSETS . ... ................ $ 21,275 $ 86,175 $ 57,443 $ 50,007 o
LIABILITIES h
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . .. .. $ 21,114 $ 29377 $ 689 5 49,802
Due to other funds .. .. ........oooiaain 161 205 161 205 [
TOTAL LIABILITIES ............... $ 21,275 $ 29,582 $ 850 $ 50,007 P
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS — (continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1991

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Th ds)

Balance Balance
July 1, 1990 Additions Deductions June 30, 1991
FIRE INSURANCE TAX FUND
ASSETS
Cash. ... o $ 1 $ 49,882 $ 49,882 $ 1
Temporary investments ................... 48,323 49,923 48,317 49,929
Receivables, net:
Accrued Inferest ......... ..., 33 337 40 7250
TOTAL ASSETS . ................... $ 48,657 $ 100,142 $ 98,619 $ 50,180
LIABILITIES
Duetoother funds ....................... $ 333 $ 337 $ 420 $ 250
Due to other governments . ................ 48,324 45,874 48,268 49,930
TOFAL LIABILITIES ... ... ... .. .. .. $ 48,657 $ 50,211 $ 48,688 $ 50,180
MUNICIPAL PENSION AID FUND
ASSETS
Cash. . ... e $ 1 $ 255,681 $ 255,681 $ 1
Temporary investments ................... 111,812 126,370 122,992 115,190
Receivables, net:
Accrued interest ......... ... ..., 769 4,525 4,728 566
Due from other funds .................... 420 5,108 5,150 378
TOTAL ASSETS .................... $ 113,002 $ 391,684 $ 388,551 $ 116,135
LIABILITIES
Due to other governments .. ............... $ 113,002 $ 132,444 $ 129311 $ 116,135
TOTAL LIABILITIES ............... $ 113,002 $ 132,444 $ 129,311 $ 116,135
MEDICAL PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY
CATASTROPHE LOSS FUND
ASSETS .
Cash..... ... . ... . . . $ 2 $ 288,017 $ 284,906 $ 3,113
Temporary investments ................. 118,216 128,736 142,088 104,864
Receivables, net:
ACCOUNLS . . ..ottt i 983 465 083 465
Accrued interest. ... ... . ... ... ... 801 8,271 8,350 522
TOTAL ASSETS .................... $ 120,002 $ 425,489 $ 436,527 $ 108,964
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . . . .. $ 2,684 $ 9,515 $ 9,799 $ 2,400
Due to other funds . ...................... 37 117 116 38
Due to other governments .. ............... 2 3 2 3
Other Liabilities .. ........................ 117,279 122,263 133,019 106,523
TOTAL LIABILITIES .. ............. $ 120,002 $ 131,898 $ 142,936 - § 108,964
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES |
AGENCY FUNDS — (continued) ‘ Lo
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1991

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA :
(Expressed in Thousands)

{ Balance Balanee
July 1, 1990 Additions Deductions June 30, 1991 R
OTHER FUNDS B
I
ASSETS )
Cash. . oo e $ 3,093 $ 73,346 $ 73612 $ 2,827
Temporary investments ................... 21,152 32,891 34,165 19,878 P
Long-term investments . . .................. 547 1 . 548 i
Receivables, net: :
TAXES vt et i 4,228 4,144 4,228 4,144 -
ACCOUDS .\ oot ee it iee e aan s 872 5,228 872 5,228
Accrued interest .........oiiiiiaa.. 102 94 102 94 i
Due fromother funds .................... 90 e 90 C
Oher AS8eL5. . .o\t e ee s 2,074 861 210 2,725 ' P
TOTAL ASSETS ... ................. $ 32,158 $ 116,565 $ 113,279 $ 35444 n
LIABILITIES .
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ... .. $ 803 $ 4,419 3 609 $ 4,613 1
Ductoother funds....................... 189 609 189 609 ’
Due to other governments ................. 9,749 31,620 - 32,593 8,776 o
Other liabilities . .. ....... ... ...t 21,417 30,168 30,139 21,446 ‘
TOTAL LIABILITIES ............... $ 32,158 $ 66,816 $ 63,530 $ 35,444 P
A
[
TOTAL — ALL FUNDS
ASSETS J w
Cash. . v e $ 3,097 $ 723,872 $ 721,026 5 5,943 L
Temporary investments .................-- 406,451 1,472,187 1,470,208 408,430
Long-term investments. .. ................. 22,144 34,080 2,056 54,168
Receivables, net:
TaRES ot et e 4,228 4,144 4,228 4,144
ACCOUMS . ..ottt e 5,018 26,426 2,490 28,954
Accrued interest . ...... ... .. 2,792 24 019 24,713 2,098
Due from other funds .................... 510 5,108 5,240 378
Due from other governments .............. 5,649 2,022 5,649 2,022
Other ASSE1S. . ot ee it iieie e ien e 3,093 1,227 439 3,881
TOTAL ASSETS . ......... ... ... $ 452,982 $2,293,085 $2,236,049 $ 510,018
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ... .. $ 24,601 $ 4331 5 11,097 $ 56,815 7
Duetootherfunds ....................... 720 1,268 886 1,102 } i
Due to other governments ................. 191,789 215,055 216,387 190,457
Other liabilities .. ... .. ... o it 235,872 190,944 165,172 261,644
TOTAL LIABILITEES .. ............. $ 452,082 $ 450,578 $ 393,542 $ 510,018
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General Fixed Assets Account Group
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*EXPLANATORY NOTES: On September 25, 1789, the Congress proposed twelve arlicles of amendment
to the Constitution of the United States. Except for the first two, they were ratified by the required number of States
" by December 15, 1791, and these became the first ten amendments. They have since been known as the Bill of Rights.

The original first two articles in brief were: ARTICLE I — Regulating the number of representatives
according to the population of the State. Article IT — Senators and Representatives cannot increase their salaries
during their present term in office.
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Amendment P

The

Excessive bail shall not be required, nor excessive fines imposed, nor P
cruel and unusual punishments inflicted. L

The Bill of Rights 2
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GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP
DESCRIPTION

The General Fixed Assets Account Group is maintained to account for fixed assets
acquired or constructed for general government purposes. These include all fixed
assets except those accounted for in Proprietary and Pension Trust Funds and College
and University Funds.

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY SOURCE
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1991

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Th i)
Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
1990 Additions Retirements 1991
GENERAI FIXED ASSETS:
Land . ... .. $ 209,026 % 7434 % 14 § 216,446
Buildings............................ 2,050,093 22,047 599 2,071,541
Improvements other than buildings. .. .... 152,017 465 S 152,482
Furniture, machinery and equipment ..... 419,321 35,354 14,471 440,204
2,830,457 65,300 15,084 2,880,673
Construction in progress . .............. 69,044 83,325 21,408 130,961
Total General Fixed Assets ......... $2,809.501 % 148625 § 36,492  $3,011,634
INVESTMENT IN GENERAL
FIXED ASSETS:
Acquired on or before June 30, 1986 .... $2,105533 $ . ... % 13,781  $2,091,742
Acquired after June 30, 1986 from:
General fund revenues . .............. 91,819 16,977 1,277 107,519
General obligatien bonds . ............ 467,422 13,531 e 480,953
Federal gramts .. .................... 16,998 6,143 e 23,141
Special revenue funds. ............... 140,992 28,509 i6 169,485
Donations . ........................ 7,693 140 e 7,833
Total Sources..................... 2,830,457 65,300 15,084 2,880,673
Construction in progress ............... 69,044 83,325 21,408 130,961

Total Investment in General Fixed Assets .  $2,809,501 § 148,625 % 36,492 $3,011,634

Funding sources for General Fixed Assets acquired on or before June 30, 1986 are not available.
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SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY FUNCTION

June 30, 1991

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
Expressed in Th ds

Furniture, B
Improvements Machinery .
Other Than And v
Land Buildings Buildings Equipment Total
FUNCTION ' a
General government ................. $ 5,602 $ 381,802 $ 23,095 $ 46,518 457,017 Lo
Protection of persons and property .. ... 6,247 432,929 45,377 41,539 526,092
Pubtic health and welfare............. 2,961 576,336 17,088 30,530 626,915 i
Public education .................. . 17,453 564,614 49,410 5,755 637,232
Conservation of patural resources...... 181,305 57.394 10,869 37,286 286,854 L
Economic development and assistance . . Ce e N 144 144 =
Transportation . .. ................... 2,878 58,466 6,643 278,432 346,419 :
TOTALS ALLOCATED TO . '
FUNCTIONS . ........ ..ot $ 216,446 $2,071,541 $ 152,482 $ 440,204 2,880,673 v
Construction in progress............ 130,961
TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS . ... $3,011,634

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY FUNCTION |

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1991

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Expressed in Thousands

I Balance Balance '
July 1, Transfers Transfers June 30, :
1990 Additions Retirements In Qut 1991

General GOVETRMENt .. .. .. ovvveenann. $ 454659 $ 3,558 % 6,567 % 6,300 % 933 § 457,017
Protection of persons and property....... 505,350 21,113 431 543 483 526,092
Public health and welfare .............. 633,813 2,469 6,786 43 2,624 626,915
Public education . .. ..........ciheinn 634,806 2,724 225 L. 73 637,232
Conservation of natural resources........ 270,354 16,693 328 160 25 286,854
Economic development and assistance . . . . 144 R e R e 144
Transportation. .. ....ovvveeeneeenns 331,331 18,743 747 115 3,023 346,419
2,830,457 65,300 15,084 7,161 7,161 2,880,673

Construction in progress ... ............ 69,044 83,325 21,408 e o 130,961 - L
TOTALS ... $2,899,501 $ 148625 § 36,492 § 7,161 % 7,161 $3,011,634
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College and University Funds

gyé}w /u%fé’m WMJM%W

ket of W fs, 8 at el ad iy e i e ooklds Bdas A (ot b e L e
7 ~ RESOLVED g.a,c.w’;’_. a,..,...;. f‘-{;':““‘ b %;&fw ,fa.cx...

4 d.r% [ 793 lﬁ.dnl_;:-k- 74(....—!.;6:..........&_& e lonstntns ol . .&-7 f#m-@.:?«ia‘..,l—i ol

M—ﬁ-#-.“u& ol Tk oo e s prnt f‘., PRVY A '7&

ARTICLES w st . et of e it ol Uit e of s il y gy e 5l 6t Gy

f e tmmat o st it il s it it

Al e foot . G hfot iy e e A
-&&.i.”auoczzdrwfw.k&ungﬂ.mwa,u..m......gﬂ.,.. d,-_.-.'z_ltzé’r,-ﬁu_;m
ol Ly el of s lfns ol tmpnnit e b e ik e o el st g il by G, Tt Mo il e Gf e e Hipernsstis,

Akl /)fm-l.l’d.. vnayng .r.a..,...:..,,l-f.....-.. e Fants amd Byprsmtins okl ey ol o i of Pepsimlilies bl s il

Akl . dlnk.. .&ntm_a.z.-ﬁ-m_:-,u,.....,.azy b o aiaslaci o ooy 8o s o ok f e pof ol e g pram 5
‘f‘“‘"““‘"’f‘“-":’“f'——"ﬁ"‘f f’-.-—-

Al tl et .,a..ar.;.m ke, Limg .7‘7#&«..774/.&,. ol falepopd :LWHQM.AM#&.

Al the /{flf.«..\‘.l w:..{fmly_.sJ-y{..meﬂwm.mfm it e 8 prosnibid byl
ki cam, el sl T iy, als flams & birnianskic, e g, T
Mler ko Gnibind i T of G rupnble g ol o i & B a7 e ) i‘am‘h&w T’ff w bk, ...bea_/
Cirmimad min Bl m i il Lol e dlipuivnt, of L e, s it o actsf of et s i Lot o ot it

it A ?(dddwfiyjlw &.;.kff,u‘;z/,ﬁf Bl f-'*r-“‘/’; 7% aim—dm-ﬂd—wﬁlh b, e meld
B :L..f..a...mf...g:. gt o 8 Loty o
o irioing wilisher smkis . Ao e af G sol’ o 4

il full.

‘-.:Z:.MM K- ol ke 7/&. apvirrirn, Lot

N PP AT

Al b o, Koo il e s e Gy o5 kit e ot i e Fe ity 058 e

oS S %.o?mwf% lhitid Sodes, and Fidont s Sl

2007@; ﬁ/vf OF THE Uﬂm JM&J’

Jﬁ% o iy o o Myttt

/-—--‘-M'J—..ﬁ, ofole S

*EXPLANATORY NOTES: On September 25, 1789, the Congress proposed twelve articles of amendmenl
to the Constilution of the United Siates, Except for the first two, they were ratified by the required number of States
by December 15, 1791, and these became the first ten amendments. They have since been known as the Bill of Rights.

The original first two articles in brief were: ARTICLE I - Regulating the number of representatives
according to the population of the State. Article Il — Senators and Representatives cannot increase their salaries
during their present term in office.
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The

The enumeration in the Constitution, of certain rights, shall not be
construed to deny or disparage others retained by the people.

The Bill of Rights |
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COLLEGE AND UNIVERSITY FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

The College and University Funds, which comprise the State System of Higher
Education, are used to account for the transactions relating to the Office of the
Chancellor and the state-owned universities of the Commonwealth.

The state-owned universities of the Commonwealth are as follows:

Bloomsburg University
California University
Cheyney University

Clarion University

East Stroudsburg University
Edinboro University
Indiana University of Pennsylvania
Kutztown University

Lock Haven University
Mansfield University
Millersville University
Shippensburg University
Slippery Rock University
West Chester University
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**EXPLANATORY NOTES: On September 25, 1789, the Congress proposed twelve articles of amendment
to the Constitution of the United States. Except for the first two, they were ratified by the required number of States
by December 15, 1791, and these became the first ten amendments. They have since been known as the Bill of Rights.

The original first two articles in brief were: ARTICLE I — Regulating the number of representatives
according to the population of the State. Article I — Senators and Representatives cannol increase their salaries
during their present term in office.
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The | Amendment

The powers not delegated to the United States by the Constitution, nor
prohibited by it to the States, are reserved to the States respectively, or
to the people.

The Bill of Rights |
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NET BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA

TABLE 2

For the Last Ter Fiscal Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

For The

—

Fiscal Year

Ended June 30

1981
1982
1983
1984
1985
1986
1987
1988
1989
1990

(Expressed in Thousands)

Net Bonded Debt

$4,578.163
4,450,236
4,487,011
4,483,573
4,535,008
4,529,393
4,558,839
4,698,645
4,705,202
4,633,507

SCOURCE: Population Information — U.S. Department of

Commerce, Bureau of the Census
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Population

11,880
11,885
11,896
11,892
11,866
11,897
11,943
11,998
12,040
11,882

Debt Per Capita

$385
375
37
377
382
381
382
392
391
390



RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
FOR GENERAL BONDED DEBT
TO TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES

TABLE 3

For the Last Ten Fiscal Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

For The
Fiscal Year

Ended June 30

1982
1983
1984
1985
1986
1987
1988
1989
1990
1991

(1) Excludes encumbrances included as *“Total Expenditures™ in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

(Expressed in Thousands)

Debt Service
Requirements
Funded by
General Fund

$ 303,713
301,727
341,413
359,200
350,195
371,702
393,907
381,617
450,752
456,325

Budgetary Basis
General Fund
Expenditures {1)

$ 9,361,800
10,038,371
10,436,777
11,223,622
11,781,951
12,395,674
13,180,073
13,549,111
15,137,774
16,251,111

and Changes in Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances—Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis).
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%

3.24
3.00
3.27
3.20
2.97
3.00
2.99
2.74
2.98
2.81



COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN TABLE 4

As of August 31, 1991

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Average anpual tax revenues deposited in the previous five

fiscal years ....... ..o $13,537,589,941
Constitutional factor . ......... . . x1.75,

Constitutional debt limit for debt incurred without the

approval of the electors .. ........... .. ... ......... 23,690,782,397
Less outstanding net debt (non electorate approved) . ... ... 4,053,427,683
Legal debt margin. .. ... .ot $19,637,354,714

The formuia for the legal debt limit is contained in Article VIII, Section 7(a) of the Pennsylvania Constitution, which
provides: '

No debt shall be incurred by or on behalf of the Commonwealth except by law and in accordance with the provisions
of this section, :

(1) Debt may be incurred without limit to suppress insurrection, rehabilitate areas affected by man-made or natural
disaster, or to implement unissued authority approved by the electors prior to the adoption of this article.

(2) The Governor, State Treasurer and Auditor General, ébting Jjointly, may (i) issue tax anticipation notes having
a maturity within the fiscal year of issue and payable exclusively from revenues received in the same fiscal

year, and (ii} incur debt for the purpose of refunding other debt, if such refunding debt matures within the term
of the original debt.

(3) Debt may be incurred without limit for purposes specifically itemized in the law authorizing such debt, if the
question whether the debt shall be incurred has been submitted to the electors and approved by a majority of
those voting on the question. '

{4) Debt may be incurred without the approval of the electors for capital projects specifically itemized in a capital
budget if such debt will not cause the amount of all net debt outstanding to exceed one and three-quarters times
the average of the annual tax revenues deposited in the previous five fiscal years as certified by the Auditor
General. For the purposes of this subsection, debt outstanding shall not include debt incurred under clauses
(1) and (2)(i), or debt incurred under clause (2){ii) if the original debt would not be so considered, or debt incurred
under subsection (3} unless the General Assembly shall so provide in the law autherizing such debt.

The figures above are abstracted from a certification of the Auditor General dated August 31, 1991.
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUE BOND COVERAGE : TABLE 5
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission
{Expressed in Thousands)
For the
Fiscal
Year Direct Net Revenue
Ended Gross Operating Available for Debt Service Requirements
May 31 Revenues Expenses Debt Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
1982 $132,046 $ 67,625 $ 64,421 $ 9,680 $ 4,381 s 14,061 4.58
1983 131,083 72,985 58,098 7,349 4,120 11,469 5.07
1984 144,815 78,287 66,528 5,352 3,812 9,164 7.26
1985 154,542 82,230 72,312 6,451 3,604 10,055 7.19
1986 162,539 93,648 68,891 4,662 3,381 8,043 8.57
1987 180,692 101,692 79,000 2,299 46,500 48,799 1.62
1988 221,807 100,875 120,932 3,225 56,514 59,739 2.02
1989 245,192 105,619 139,573 4,070 58,789 62,859 2.22
1990 252,373 113,546 138,827 123,940 73,051 196,991 70
1991 246,985 115,103 131,882 64,135 75,811 139,946 .94
Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority
(Expressed in Theusands)
For the
Fiscal
Year Direct Net Revenue
Ended Gross Operating Available for Debt Service Requirements
June 30 Revenues Expenses Debt Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
1982 $16,064 $1,009 $15,055 $5,800 $ 4,756 $10,556 1.43
1983 19,058 1,211 17,847 5,655 8,933 14,588 1.22
1984 21,775 1,662 20,113 5,630 9,537 15,167 1.33
1985 24,658 1,783 22,875 6,735 13,167 19,902 1.15
1986 23,320 1,897 21,423 7,910 3,359 21,269 1.01
1987 23,370 1,574 21,796 8,620 [2,433 21,053 1.04
1988 25,479 1,765 23,714 8,525 £1,257 19,782 1.20
1989 29,477 2,223 27,254 8,505 10,584 16,089 1.43
1990 30,422 1,997 28,425 8,900 9,873 18,773 1.51
1991 28,963 2,055 26,908 8,440 11,015 19,455 1.38
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency
(Expressed in Thousands}
For the
Fiscal
Year Direct Net Revenue
Ended Gross Operating Available for Debt Service Requirements
June 30 Revenues Expenses Debt Service Principal Interest® Total Coverage
1982 $ 771,773 $18,068 $ 59,705 $ 3,522 $ 42,347 $ 45,869 1.30
1983 109,023 18,793 90,230 3,440 77,010 80,450 1.12
1984 119,389 12,160 107,229 8,293 94,305 102,598 1.05
1985 146,205 10,686 135,519 §,180 119,420 127,600 1.06
1986 163,441 8,438 160,003 13,386 142,332 155,718 1.03
1987 159,034 8,088 150,946 14,987 136,625 151,612 1.00
1988 162,172 8,593 153,579 15,960 138,508 154,468 .99
1989 182,535 8,402 174,133 20,226 148,327 168,553 1.03
1990 199,10t 9,133 189,968 21,568 157,104 178,672 1.06
1991 214,580 9,944 204,636 25,173 153,305 178,478 1.15

(a) Excludes interest on notes payable,
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ANNUAL ESTIMATES OF THE RESIDENT POPULATION —

PENNSYLVANIA COMPARED TO THE UNITED STATES

TABLE 6

For the Last Ten Calendar Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Calendar Year

1681
1982
1983
1984
1985
1986
1987
1988
1989
1990

SOURCE: 1).8. Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census

(Expressed in Thousands)
United States

229,637
231,996
234,284
236,477
238,736
241,107
243,427
245,785
248,239
248,710
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Pennsylvania

11,880
11,885
11,896
11,892
11,866
11,897
- 11,943
11,998
12,040
11,882

%

5.2
5.1
5.1
5.0
5.0
4.9
4.9
4.9
4.9
4.8

TR



STATE BANKING INSTITUTIONS TABLE 7
DEMAND DEPOSITS AND TIME AND SAVINGS DEPOSITS

For the Last Ten Calendar Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)

Time and
Calendar Year Demand Deposits Savings Deposits
1981 $6,673,295 $34,871,097
1982 6,489,537 38,144,921
1983 6,606,723 42,982 476
1984 5,263,282 39,356,857
1985 5,728,297 42,322,007
1986 6,632,325 45,351,526
1987 6,443,804 47,556,165
1988 6,558,607 50,347,975
1989 6,481,900 53,565,427
1990 6,453,740 50,542,812

SOURCE: Peansylvania Department of Banking
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TOTAL PERSONAL INCOME AND PER CAPITA PERSONAL INCOME— TABLE 9
PENNSYLVANIA COMPARED TO THE UNITED STATES

For the Last Ten Calendar Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

TOTAL PERSONAL INCOME PER CAPITA PERSONAL INCOME
(Miklions of Dollars) (Dollars)

Calendar ,_— _| : _
Year United States Pennsylvania % United States Pennsylvania %o
1981 2,514,231 129,113 5.1 10,949 10,868 99.3
1982 2,663,432 135,945 5.1 11,480 11,438 99.6
1983 2,834,385 142,183 5.0 12,098 11,953 98.8
1984 3,101,163 151,386 49 13,114 12,730 - 97.1
1985 3,317,545 160,820 4.9 13,896 13,554 97.5
1986 3,519,364 169,697 4.8 14,597 14,264 97.7
1987 3,766,002 181,319 4.8 15,471 15,182 98.1
1988 4,053,282 194,659 4.8 16,491 16,224 98.4
1989 4,360,919 209,750 4.8 17,567 17,422 99.2
1990 4,647,055 221,850 4.8 18,685 18,672 99.9

SQURCE: U.S. Department of Commerce, Burezu of Economic Analysis.
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THIRTY LARGEST NONGOVERNMENTAL EMPLOYERS TABLE 10
L
For the Calendar Year 1990
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
EMPLOYER RANK i
Pennsylvania State UnIversity . ....... .ottt iia i e 1
Sears Roebuck and Company . .......... ... iiiiiriiiiiiiiiiiiiinan.s 2
General Electric Company ............ ... it i 3
The Bell Telephone Co. of Pennsylvania.................... ... ... ... ... 4
University of Pittsburgh ....... .. ... . . 5
K Mart Corporation. ......... y e e e e e e e 6
J.C. Penney Co., InC. .. ... o i e 7
Westinghouse Electric Corporation. . .......... ... ... . L, 8 -
Trustees of the University of Pennsylvamia .. ...............ccivveinnenn... 9 ! ]
Acme Markets, INC . ... .t e e 10
U.S. Air, Incorporated .. ....... ..ttt 11
United Parcel Service, InC. .. ... o i i e e e 12
The Prudential Insurance Co. of America............ .. ... ... o iiiiinnn. 13 »
Strawbridge & CIOtHEr . . ... ... .uet ittt 14
Bethlehem Steel Corporation. .......... ... .t 15
Weis Markets Incorporated . . ... ....vein it 16 I
Philadelphia BIEctric €O. .. ...ttt e, 17 Ls
USX COrporation . . . .....outu ittt et ettt in it 18 .
Temple University .. ... ...t i i i it ci i 19 '
Hershey Foods Corporation ........... ... .iiiiiiiiiiiiiiininiaiinnn.n. 20 -
Mellon Bank, N.A. ....................... P 21
Pennsylvania Power & Light Co........... ... ... .. o il 22
Giant Food Stores, InC. . ... ... it e e e e e 23
AMP Incorporated . ....... ... i e 24
Thomas Jefferson University . . ...t it 25
Hills Department Stores, InC........ .. i 26
AT & T Technologies, THC. . ...ttt et et e s 27 L
Giant Bagle, Inc. ........... ... ... ... e e e e e 28 r
UNISYS COtporation . . . .o oo v i ittt e et e e et 29 i
- The Boeing COMPATIY ... vttt it e ete it e e i e e eiee e aaeeens 30
b

SOURCE: Pennsylvania Department of Labor and Industry, Office of Employment Security
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LIST OF MAJOR CORPORATIONS THAT MAINTAIN TABLE 11
THEIR CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS IN THE COMMONWEALTH

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

AMP Incorporated

Air Products and Chemicals, Inc.
Alco Standard Corporation
Allegheny Ludlum Corporation
Aluminum Company of America
Ametek '
Armstrong World Industries, Inc.
Bayer USA Inc.

Bell Atlantic Corporation
Bethlehem Steel Corporation
Betz Laboratories

Carpenter Technology Corporation
Cigna Corporation

Comcast Corporation
Consolidated Natural Gas Co.
Consolidated Rail Corporation
CoreStates Financial Corporation

Crown Cork and Seal Company, Inc.

Cyclops Industries, Inc.
Dauphin Deposit Corporation
DQE Corporation

Equimark Corporation

Exide Corporation

H.J. Heinz Company

Harsco Corporation

Hershey Foods Corporation
Independence Bancorp Inc.
Integra Financial Corporation
Intelligent Electron

Joy Technologies
Kennametal

Lukens Inc.

Mellon Bank Corp.
Meridian Bancorp, Inc.
Meritor Financial Group
National Intergroup, Inc.
National Steel Corporation
P.H. Glatfelter Company
PPG Industries, Inc.

PNC Financial Corporation
Pennsylvania Power & Light Co.
Penn Traffic Co.
Philadelphia Electric Co.
Quaker State Corporation
Rhone—Poulenc Rorer

Rite Aid Corporation
Robertson—Ceco

Rohm and Haas Company
Scott Paper Company
Sunbeam/Oster

Sun Company, Inc.

USX Corporation

Union Pacific Corporation
UNISYS Corporation

U.S. Healthcare

VF Corporation

Weis Markets, Incorporated
Westinghouse Electric Corporation
Westmoreland Coal Co.
York Holdings

Zurn Industries

SOURCE: The Fortune 500 and the Forbes 500 listings, published April 1991
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MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS

TABLE 12

JUNE 30, 1991

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Date of Ratification of U.S. Constitution
Form of Government

Miles of State Highway

Land Area - in square miles

State Police Protection:
Number of Stations
Number of State Police

Higher Education (Universities, Colleges and
Community Colleges):

Number of campuses in state

Number of educators

Number of students

Recreation:

Number of State Parks
Area of State Parks
Area of State Forests

SOURCE:

December 12, 1787
Legislative-Executive-Judicial
40,844

44,888

106
4,282

233
21,966
597,531

114
277,168 Acres
2,084,731 Acres

Pennsylvania Department of Transportation, Bureau of Strategic Planning I
Pennsylvania State Police, Bureau of Research and Development '
Pennsylvania Department of Education, Division of Data Services

Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Resources, Bureau of Forestry
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